
2006—A Year of Challenges for Wintrust

We have always had a policy of presenting our goals, objectives and financial results in an up front manner to our shareholders.

In this annual report, we are confirming our policy of reporting thoroughly the financial results, accounting policies and objectives

of Wintrust Financial Corporation and our operating subsidiaries.

Who Is Wintrust?
For those of you new to our family, here is a brief description of who we are and what we do:

Wintrust Financial Corporation is a financial holding company headquartered in Lake Forest, Illinois, with total assets of $9.6 bil-
lion as of December 31, 2006. At the end of 2006, Wintrust operated 15 community banks located in the greater Chicago and
southern Wisconsin areas with 73 banking facilities.  Of our 15 banking charters, nine were de novo banks started by Wintrust
and six have been acquisitions.  Our banks provide community-oriented personal and commercial banking services. Our wealth
management companies provide trust, asset management and brokerage services to clients primarily located in the Midwest.
We also originate and purchase residential mortgage loans, many of which are sold into the secondary market. We are involved
in specialty lending through operating subsidiaries or divisions of the Company’s banks.  Our specialty lending niches include
commercial insurance premium finance, accounts receivable financing and administrative services to the temporary staffing
industry, condominium association lending, aircraft lending and indirect auto lending.

Summary
• Net income down 1%
• Fully diluted earnings per share down 7%
• Grew net revenue 10%
• Net interest income up 15%
• Total assets increased 17%
• Total deposits grew 17%
• Increased total loans 25%
• Total equity up 23%
• Book value per common share grew 16%
• Dividends paid per share increased 17%
• Return on average equity was 9.47%
• Return on average assets stood at 0.74%
• Launched de novo bank – Old Plank Trail Community Bank
• Successfully completed the acquisition of Hinsbrook Bank & Trust with 

locations in Darien, Downers Grove, Geneva, Glen Ellyn. and 
Willowbrook, Illinois

• 15 bank charters 
• 23 total operating subsidiaries
• 11 net new banking facilities in Illinois and Wisconsin
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Selected Financial Trends
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Selected Financial Highlights
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Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Financial Condition Data
(at end of year):

Total assets $ 9,571,852 $ 8,177,042 $ 6,419,048 $ 4,747,398 $ 3,721,555
Total loans 6,496,480 5,213,871 4,348,346 3,297,794 2,556,086
Total deposits 7,869,240 6,729,434 5,104,734 3,876,621 3,089,124
Notes payable 12,750 1,000 1,000 26,000 44,025
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 325,531 349,317 303,501 144,026 140,000
Subordinated notes 75,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 25,000
Long-term debt — trust preferred securities 249,828 230,458 204,489 96,811 50,894
Total shareholders’ equity 773,346 627,911 473,912 349,837 227,002

Selected Statements of Operations Data:
Net interest income $    248,886 $   216,759 $   157,824  $   120,492 $ 98,128
Net revenue

(1)
340,118 310,316 243,276 193,084 158,800

Net income 66,493 67,016 51,334 38,118 27,875
Net income per common share - Basic 2.66 2.89 2.49 2.11 1.71
Net income per common share - Diluted 2.56 2.75 2.34 1.98 1.60
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.28 0.24 0.20 0.16 0.12

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:

Net interest margin 3.10% 3.16% 3.17% 3.20% 3.34%
Core net interest margin (2) 3.31 3.37 3.31 3.32 3.51
Non-interest income to average assets 1.02 1.23 1.57 1.76 1.89
Non-interest expense to average assets 2.56 2.62 2.86 2.98 3.30
Net overhead ratio (3) 1.54 1.39 1.30 1.22 1.41
Efficiency ratio (4) 66.96 63.97 64.45 63.52 66.41
Return on average assets 0.74 0.88 0.94 0.93 0.87
Return on average equity 9.47 11.00 13.12 14.36 14.76

Average total assets $ 8,925,557  $ 7,587,602 $ 5,451,527 $ 4,116,618 $ 3,212,467
Average total shareholders’ equity 701,794 609,167    391,335 265,495 188,849
Ending loan-to-deposit ratio 82.6% 77.5% 85.2% 85.1% 82.7%
Average loans to average deposits ratio 82.2 83.4 87.7 86.4 88.5
Average interest earning assets to 

average interest bearing liabilities 107.78 108.83 109.89 109.68 109.86

Asset Quality Ratios:
Non-performing loans to total loans 0.57% 0.50% 0.43% 0.72% 0.49%
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.39 0.34 0.29 0.51 0.34
Allowance for credit losses(5) to:

Total loans 0.72 0.78 0.79 0.77 0.72
Non-performing loans 126.14 155.69 184.13 107.59 146.63

Common Share Data at end of year:
Market price per common share $ 48.02 $      54.90  $      56.96 $ 45.10 $ 31.32
Book value per common share $ 30.38 $  26.23  $      21.81 $ 17.43 $  13.19
Common shares outstanding 25,457,935 23,940,744 21,728,548 20,066,265 17,216,270

Other Data at end of year:
Number of:

Bank subsidiaries 15 13 12 9 7
Non-bank subsidiaries 8 10 10 7 7
Banking offices 73 62 50 36 31

(1) Net revenue is net interest income plus non-interest income.
(2) The core net interest margin excludes the effect of the net interest expense associated with the Company’s Long-Term Debt — Trust Preferred

Securities.
(3) The net overhead ratio is calculated by netting total non-interest expense and total non-interest income and dividing by that period’s total aver-

age assets.  A lower ratio indicates a higher degree of efficiency.
(4) The efficiency ratio is calculated by dividing total non-interest expense by tax-equivalent net revenues (less securities gains or losses).  

A lower ratio indicates more efficient revenue generation.
(5) The allowance for credit losses includes both the allowance for loan losses and the allowance for lending-related commitments.
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Welcome to Wintrust Financial Corporation’s eleventh

annual report.  And thank you for being a shareholder.

Celebrating Our 15th and 10th Anniversaries

2006 was a special year in a couple of ways for Win-

trust.  Not only did we celebrate the 15th anniversary of

our very first bank’s opening in 1991, Lake Forest Bank

& Trust, but we observed the 10th anniversary of the

creation of Wintrust Financial in 1996 as a publicly

traded company.  It’s amazing to look back and realize

that in only 15 years we have grown from nothing but a

good idea…to 15 bank charters, over 70 banking facili-

ties, 23 operating companies and $9.6 billion in assets

with over 1,800 employees, serving well over 200,000

client relationships.  

Solid Growth, But Not Without Its Challenges

2006 ends a very uncharacteristic year for Wintrust.

Although we achieved franchise growth consistent with

prior years and have maintained very good credit qual-

ity, overall profitability was down.  Records were

achieved in net revenue ($340 million, up 10%), assets

($9.6 billion, up 17%), deposits ($7.9 billion, up 17%), and

loans ($6.5 billion, up 25%).  And importantly, our core

franchise continues to be very healthy and exhibits an

excellent fundamental foundation for future growth.

However earnings were hampered in 2006 as will be

discussed in the following sections.

Overview of Challenges and Man-
agement’s Response

A disadvantageous yield curve, a loos-

ened lending environment devoid of

credit spreads, overall market liquidity

and our response to this environment

combined to adversely impact our

financial results.  Our return on assets

and equity are at levels that are unac-

ceptable to us. Management has initi-

ated a number of steps for 2007 to get

financial results back to acceptable lev-

els.  Deposit pricing discipline, chang-

ing our deposit mix, rigorous expense

control and our commercial lending ini-

tiatives are adopted tactics which

should help produce better results.  We

will not, however, change our core loan underwriting

standards as we believe this would simply trade current

earnings for long-term problems.  Although the afore-

mentioned tactics may curtail our customary balance

sheet growth trends, getting our earnings back on track

will be our top priority.

Continuing to Invest in the Long-term

Despite the challenging environment in 2006, we con-

tinue to manage the Company for long-term growth and

will not implement short-term profit strategies that could

adversely impact longer term shareholder value.

Accordingly, in 2006 Wintrust continued to invest in

expanding its banking, wealth management, and non-

banking companies, both on a de novo and acquisition

basis. This investment should pay-off long term with a

greater base to generate earnings and increased fran-

chise value for our shareholders.

Expanding our Banking Franchises

In 2006, we expanded our community banking fran-

chises by adding two new bank charters and 11 net

new banking facilities in key Chicago and southern Wis-

consin areas—one charter and six facilities were de

novo openings and one charter and five facilities were

added via acquisition.

In May 2006, we completed the acquisition of Hinsbrook

Bancshares, Inc. ("HBI") in a stock and

cash merger transaction. HBI was the

parent company of Hinsbrook Bank &

Trust ("Hinsbrook Bank'") which had five

Illinois banking locations in Willowbrook,

Downers Grove, Darien, Glen Ellyn and

Geneva. Hinsbrook Bank began opera-

tions as a de novo bank in 1987.  In

November 2006, Hinsbrook Bank’s loca-

tions in Willowbrook, Downers Grove

and Darien became part of Hinsdale

Bank, Hinsbrook Bank’s Glen Ellyn loca-

tion became part of Wheaton Bank and

its Geneva location was renamed and

became the charter for our St. Charles

Bank.  This was done to align the bank-

ing locations within the same market

area to operate under the same charters.

To Our Fellow Shareholders,
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Wealth Management

We continue to invest in our wealth manage-

ment business as it represents sizeable

earnings growth potential for Wintrust.  In

June, we hired Thomas P. Zidar to head up

Wayne Hummer Wealth Management.  Mr.

Zidar brings extensive financial services

experience to Wintrust.  Most recently he

was Executive Vice President in the Per-

sonal Financial Services group of a large

local bank competitor, responsible for five

business units.  His addition will help

improve our strategic focus and execution

as we continue to build on the solid founda-

tion that exists here.

We continue to add Wayne Hummer person-

nel to Wintrust banking offices and now have

wealth management representatives in over 20 offices.

We are finding the financial advisors that reside in our

community bank locations are being very well received

by our customer base and we intend to continue to add

professionals throughout our banking facilities.  In fact,

the successes of the financial advisors who are located

in community bank locations have translated into dou-

ble-digit revenue growth by those individuals on an

annual basis.  The large market share that our banking

locations have generally achieved coupled with their

dedication to superb customer service is a

good recipe for generating wealth manage-

ment clients for bank-situated Wayne Hum-

mer financial advisors.

Our People, Our Advantage

What is our primary advantage?  What really

separates us from the big bank competitors?

Our decentralized management philosophy?

Our local community bank marketing?  Our

beautiful bank facilities?    It’s our

people…and the superior customer service

they deliver.  

We hire smart, entrepreneurial and moti-

vated employees, who very much believe in

our golden rule—treat others like you would

like to be treated.  Many of our employees

are also shareholders, and as such, are personally

invested in delivering our unique brand of superior serv-

ice.  And our customers and clients appreciate the qual-

ity service these terrific employees provide.

Growth Plans for 2007

The growth of our core franchises is healthy and bodes

well for the future.  In 2007, we plan continued expan-

sion of our banking, wealth management and other

financial services franchises.  However, given the unfa-
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vorable interest rate environment and the irrational com-

petitive environment, our growth at the banking level

will focus more on the younger facilities that are still

growing into their infrastructures.  At our more mature

locations, growth may be somewhat slower than in the

past until market conditions, such as higher interest rate

spreads and better credit terms, provide for more prof-

itable growth. 

In addition to our plans to open a number of new com-

munity bank branches in 2007, we have made growth

of our commercial banking services a priority.  In order

for Wintrust to tap into a larger pool of commercial loans

and low cost checking deposits, we plan to expand our

commercial customer base to include more C&I (com-

mercial and industrial) businesses.  To do so, we have

added a level of sophistication, especially in the area of

treasury management services, which was necessary

to better penetrate this market.

Accordingly, in 2006 we made substantial investments

in our commercial banking infrastructure.  We hired a

number of experts in treasury management from other

banks in town and invested in the technology necessary

to deliver commercial services that are every bit as

good as our larger competitors.  We now offer, and are

beginning to promote more aggressively, a full spectrum

of treasury management products and services. This

includes wholesale and retail lockbox, remote deposit

capture, and numerous other valuable services — all of

the commercial banking sophistication of a big bank, but

with the local decision making and superior service of a

community bank.  We call it “Business Banking At Its

Best™”!

Our beginning focal point for selling these commercial

services will be with the small to mid-sized commercial

customers in our market areas.  Initially, we are targeting

business owners who bank with us on a retail basis but

may not be aware of the breadth of our sophisticated

commercial product offerings.  Since we have already

sold them on our service capabilities for their personal

needs, we are able to convert them to high-touch com-

mercial service.

We will continue to expand our Wayne Hummer wealth

management franchise.  Wealth management personnel

will be added to more bank facilities as well as our

downtown Chicago office.  The investment we made in

our new sophisticated trading platform is allowing our

Financial Advisors to compete on a more level playing

field with their larger competitors.  

Our other financial subsidiaries—FIRST Insurance Fund-

ing, Tricom, and WestAmerica—also have well thought

out growth plans for 2007 that will be discussed later in

this report.  

Challenges We Face

Our policy is to present our financial results in an up-

front and straight-forward manner to our shareholders.

“In the music business, anyone who 

is proficient on a musical instrument 

is said to have ‘great chops.’ I feel the

same about Village Bank & Trust.

Whether I’m designing a new building

or writing bass lines for my music, 

I know my business bankers are expertly

performing to ensure the smooth sounds

of financial success.

At Village Bank & Trust, they are always

willing to find the best business products

that meet your needs. In fact, they 

drafted a business plan that rocked my

world! For the financial performance of 

a lifetime, give them a call today...

We’re all in this together!”

“Village Bank & Trust  
has ‘great chops’”

Jim Tinaglia

Tinaglia Architects
847-253-0003

4 locations to serve you better:

Rand at Arlington Heights Rd. 
(847) 870-5000

234 W. Northwest Highway 
(847) 670-1000

311 S. Arlington Heights Rd. 
(847)483-6000

1845 E. Rand Rd.
(847) 670-1000

www.bankatvillage.com

©2006 Lake Forest Bank & Trust Company

Here. There. Everywhere!

We know that the number one reason you chose a bank is convenience. 

That is why Lake Forest Bank & Trust has so many locations to serve you – 

most just minutes from your front door. In fact, we have more combined 

locations and ATMs than any other bank in the area – national or local! 

All of these locations also mean that you have more of those friendly 

hometown banking employees to help you if you can’t use our ATMs. And 

by the way, as a member of the STAR®sf Network, you’ll have surcharge free 

banking at any STAR®sf ATM... 738 in Illinois alone! 

Now that’s convenience... that’s Lake Forest Bank & Trust.

Lake Forest
(Main Bank)
727 N. Bank Lane
847-234-2882

Drive-Thru/Walk-Up
780 North Bank Lane

West Lake Forest
810 S. Waukegan Rd.
847-615-4080

Drive-Thru/Walk-Up
911 S. Telegraph Road

Lake Bluff
103 E. Scranton Ave. 
847-615-4060

Drive-Thru/Walk-Up
103 E. Scranton Ave. 

Highland Park
1949 St. Johns Ave. 
847-432-9988

Drive-Thru/Walk-Up
1949 St. Johns Ave. 

Ravinia
643 Roger Williams Ave.
847-266-0300

Highwood - 
Fort Sheridan
507 Sheridan Rd.
847-266-7600

Drive-Thru/Walk-Up
507 Sheridan Rd.

www.lakeforestbank.com

The best bank around 
is also the most convenient.

Lake Forest Bank & Trust Bank locations STAR®sf Surcharge free ATM locations

Member FDIC

1. APY is Annual Percentage Yield. Tiered variable interest rates based on account balance. $0-
799 = 0.00% APY, $800-1,999 = 0.25% APY, $2,000-9,999 = 1.00% APY, $10,000-49,999 = 2.00% APY, 
$50,000-99,999 = 2.75% APY, $100,000+ = 3.10% APY. See bank for details. APY is accurate as of 
7/11/06. Rates are variable and subject to change. 2. No service charges if a minimum balance of 
$400 is maintained. If account balance falls below $400, a $10 monthly service charge will apply. 
Fees may reduce earnings. 3. Pending application approval, requires usage. 4. Fees may be 
imposed by other ATM owners.

The First and 
Only Checking 
Account You’ll 
Ever Need! 

Stop by today and see one of our personal bankers. 

They’re ready to show you why SingleSolution Checking is the 

only checking account you’ll ever need!

• Interest bearing checking where
your rate increases with your 
balance. Earn up to 3.10% APY1!

• No minimum deposit to open, no 
monthly service charges2

• Free online banking,
telebanking and online bill pay 

• Best CD rate guarantee – 
we’ll meet any rate in town 

• Access to over 500 STAR®sf
surcharge FREE ATM locations 
in the Chicagoland area

• Free Visa® credit card3 and no 
extra-fee STAR®sf ATM card or 
Visa® debit card4

• Your first 150 checks are free

• Free imaged checks with 
CheckManager Plus®



72006 ANNUAL REPORT

Consistent with that policy, 2006 was

disappointing and not without its

challenges.  Slower loan growth

hampered earnings growth.  Our

desired loan-to-deposit ratio of

approximately 85%-90% was not

reached.  On average in 2006, this

ratio stood at 82.2%.  This slower

growth in our loan portfolio was a

result of a more competitive credit

market in the form of lower rates and

less stringent credit standards by

some of our competitors.  However,

in the last two quarters of 2006, our

loan volume began to improve and

we are working diligently to safely

increase loan volumes to levels that

we have historically achieved.  And

by keeping our credit standards high,

our problem loans are very manageable and do not rep-

resent undue risk.

Share Repurchase Program

During 2006, our Board of Directors authorized a pro-

gram whereby the Company could repurchase up to 2

million shares of the Company’s common stock.  We

believe that our recent share price does not reflect the

long-term prospects of the Company and therefore rep-

resents an attractive investment.  Through February 26,

2007, we repurchased approximately 900,000 shares of

the Company’s common stock at an average price of

$46.75 per share.  Our decision to institute a share

repurchase program highlights our continuing confi-

dence in Wintrust's long-term growth and our 

commitment to

promote long-

term share-

holder value.

We will continue

to maintain the

flexibility to

invest in our cur-

rent business,

take advantage

of strategic

oppor tun i t ies

and pay dividends. Wintrust  plans to

continue to repurchase shares from

time to time in open market transac-

tions or in privately negotiated trans-

actions in accordance with applica-

ble federal securities laws. The

timing and amount of the repur-

chases will be determined by the

Company's management based on

their evaluation of market condi-

tions, share price and other factors. 

Some Thank You’s Are in Order

We owe our success to our leader-

ship teams, our employees, our

shareholders, and most importantly,

our clients.  So, some well deserved

“thank you’s” are due.

Let’s start by thanking our leadership

teams—our management and directors.  Your wise coun-

sel, leadership, community connections, and tireless

efforts are a key reason for our success.  Thank you.

And then let’s thank our employees and welcome those

who recently joined our Wintrust team, either from our

merger with Hinsbrook Bank, or the launch of one of our

new bank facilities, or by joining an existing member of our

family.  Our dedicated employees provide our customers

and clients the best service around, bar none.  Thank you.

Thanks as well to our shareholders for keeping us

focused on what we do best—growing our franchises

by delivering superior customer service and products

uniquely positioned to meet local consumer needs.

And finally, thank you to our clients—banking, lending,

m o r t g a g e ,

wealth manage-

ment, premium

finance, employ-

ment agencies—

for trusting us

with your finan-

cial affairs.  With-

out you, we

don’t exist.

Thank you.

The moment you step through our banks’ doors you can feel the difference.  It’s more than a friendly smile

and a refreshing lobby. It’s a feeling of comfort, friendship, and security.  It’s a bank you can fall in love with.  

But don’t take our word for it... take our customers!  Then stop into your hometown bank and talk with a

Personal Banker about our “We Love Our Bank” Checking Special.  Then start loving your bank today! 

We Love 

Our BankWe Love 

Our Bank

OUR CUSTOMERS LOVE US... AND YOU WILL TOO!

Open a Checking Account 
and take advantage of either:

15-month

5.50% APY

We Love Our Customers
CD Special2

1

MEMBER FDIC

211 S. Wheaton Avenue � Wheaton, IL 60087
630-690-1800 � www.wheatonbank.com

462 N. Park Boulevard � Glen Ellyn IL
630-469-4501 � www.glenellynbank.com 

“We Love Our Bank” Checking Special includes:

• Checking Account with TIERED INTEREST RATES, no

monthly maintenance fee, balance fee and no monthly service

charge1

• FREE safe deposit box FOR LIFE3

• No annual fee STAR® ATM or Debit Card FOR LIFE4

• FREE On-line banking, Bill Pay and TeleBanking FOR LIFE

• FREE CheckManager Plus® (imaged checks) with binder

• Access to more than 500 SURCHARGE-FREE ATM in

Chicagoland4 L’Anne
Les Deux Autres

Santa Fe Restaurant

Muldoon’s 
Shannon’s Irish Pub
Caponata’s Ristorante

$100 Gift Certificate5

(available at the below restaurants)

2

®

Close Enough to be
Active in the Community.

Community Support From Your Hometown Bank.

N
EI

GH
BO

RS

N
EI

GH
BO

RS

Close Enough to Make 
Earth Day Really POP!

Community Support From Your Hometown Bank.

N
EI

G
HB

OR
S

®
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In Summary

We ended 2006 and begin 2007 with a proven and

adaptable business model, a solid balance sheet, a

strong franchise and a terrific, dedicated team of people

who are committed to fighting through an unfavorable

interest rate environment and intense competition to

deliver value to our shareholders consistent with what

we have done in the past.

We are grateful for your continued support and are

enthusiastic about making 2007 a solid year for our

Company and our shareholders.  Please enjoy the

remainder of our 2006 Annual Report.

Thank you again for being a shareholder and supporting

our business. We hope to see you at our Annual Meet-

ing to be held on Thursday, May 24, 2007, at 10:00 a.m.

The location will again be at the Michigan Shores Club

located at 911 Michigan Avenue in Wilmette, Illinois. 

John S. Lillard Edward J. Wehmer David A. Dykstra

Chairman President & Senior Executive Vice President &
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

Sincerely,
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Overall Financial Performance

9

In 2006, we achieved record levels of assets as we sur-

passed the $9.5 billion mark. Deposits and loans also

reached record levels.  Despite the record balance

sheet growth, our earnings suffered in 2006 primarily

due to an adverse interest rate environment and what

we believe to be irrational competitive behavior, espe-

cially in lending terms and conditions.  

Core Growth

Our core balance sheet growth remains strong as we

continue to build desirous market share positions

throughout our franchise. Our commitment to de novo

branch development continues. As is typical with de

novo growth, expenses are incurred in advance of the

opening of these locations.

As a result of slower than expected loan and earnings

growth, diluted earnings per share in 2006 were unchar-

acteristically down from 2005.  Earnings per diluted

share decreased to $2.56 in 2006 from $2.75 in 2005.

However, the Company increased both shareholders’

equity and book value per common share by $145.4

million, or 23%, and $4.15, or 16%, respectively.

Compound Growth Rates

Over this past year, we continued our trend of building

a strong franchise base in our market area.  This is evi-

denced by consistently strong balance sheet growth in

every year of our Company’s young life.  Sticking to our

unique business building strategies has enabled us to

achieve something that few financial services groups

around the country can claim—compound growth rates

in assets, loans and deposits that consistently exceed

our peer group.  Additionally, although we have histori-

cally achieved double-digit growth in net income and

diluted earnings per share, 2006 was a year in which

growth in these areas did not occur in historical fashion.

The other sections of this report outline the reasons for

the revenue and earnings slowdown and we are com-

mitted to adapting our model to return to above average

earnings growth rates.

Compound Growth Rates

1 year 2 year 3 year 4 year 5 year

Total Assets 17.1% 22.1% 26.3% 26.6% 28.8%

Total Loans (1) 24.6% 22.2% 25.4% 26.3% 26.3%

Total Deposits 16.9% 24.2% 26.6% 26.3% 27.7%

Total Revenue 9.6% 18.2% 20.8% 21.0% 27.0%

Net Income (0.8)% 13.8% 20.4% 24.3% 29.2%

Diluted Earnings
Per Share (6.9)% 4.6% 8.9% 12.5% 15.1%

(1) Excludes mortgage loans held-for-sale

Net Revenue

Overall net revenue, which includes net interest income

and non-interest income, increased 10% to $340 million.

Our net interest margin remained relatively stable at

3.10% in 2006, but was down slightly from the prior year

net interest margin level of 3.16%, as we operated in an

inverted yield curve environment and as we continued

My big bank’s rates
always stay the same... 
VERY, VERY LOW!

Member FDIC

Easy access to 
YOUR money?!

My Big Bank doesn’t 
believe in that! 

One That Has 
Mr. Big Bank 
So Concerned 
and All Alone?

How can we offer such a 
GREAT MONEY MARKET 
Product...

Introducing Mr. Big Bank... 
He is not happy that everyone is getting on board 
with our Advantage Money Market! Advantage 
National BankTM is doing everything we can to bring 
you the best banking products and friendly home-
town service, with a smile. These are things Mr. Big 
Bank can’t bring you.

Sorry Mr. Big Bank, that’s the way we do business.

Elk Grove Village | 75 E. Turner | 847-364-0100
Roselle | 1350 W. Lake Street | 630-529-0100

www.advantagenationalbank.com

AMOUNT APY
4.50%

4.25%

4.00%

3.75%

3.50%

2.00%

$500,000 +
$250,000 - $499,999
$100,000 - $249,999

$25,000 - $99,999
$10,000 - $24,999

$1,000 - $9,999

Advantage Money Market

©2006 Advantage National BankTM

* Balances less than $1,000 will receive $10/mo. service charge and earn no interest.

1,000

2,000

3,000

6,000

5,000

4,000

  7,000

$8,000M

Total Deposits
(end of year)
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to face extremely competitive loan and deposit pricing.

Despite this pressure, organic growth remains positive. 

The yield curve has made for a tricky operating envi-

ronment.  This is true for most banking institutions. The

inverted yield curve environment, where long-term inter-

est rates are lower than short-term interest rates,

squeezes the spread between interest earned on our

assets and interest paid on liabilities.  

Our other main source of revenue, non-interest income,

fell 2% in 2006 to $91.2 million.  The primary reasons for

this can be attributed to declines in origination and selling

of residential mortgage loans into the secondary market,

lower fees from covered call transactions, and declines in

gains on sales of premium finance receivables which we

have suspended.  Our wealth management revenue

increased 6% in 2006, including the $2.4 million gain on

the sale of the Wayne Hummer Growth Fund. 

Return on Average Equity and Return on Average
Assets Still Need Work

We need to garner better results with regard to our return

on average equity and return on average assets goals.

Return on average equity fell from 11.0% a year ago to

9.5% for 2006.  Return on average assets also declined

from the prior year level by 14 basis points to 0.74%.  

The rising but inverted interest rate environment and

competitive pressures in the pricing of lending products

have contributed to the decline in these performance

measurements.  In the short-term, we believe these

environmental issues will not go away. However, as

noted previously, we are committed to managing your

Company in a manner that will achieve progress toward

our goals, especially with respect to return on average

equity and return on average assets.

Sound Asset Quality

In 2006, non-performing assets were $37.4 million, or

0.39% of total assets, compared to $27.6 million, or

0.34% of total assets in 2005.  Net loan charge-offs as a

percentage of average loans equaled 0.09% in 2006,

compared to 0.10% in 2005.  These figures are very

Core Net Interest Margin

20,000

40,000

$100,000

80,000

60,000

Non-Interest Income
(000’s)

Amount of Line: 10 Yr Term Variable Rate Current % APR2  

$10,000 to $99,999.99       Prime Rate minus .25% 7.75%

Our Low Rate Home Equity
Lines Make Every Home a Castle

5.99 APR1
• No Closing Costs
• No Application Fees
• No Annual Fees

%

For the first 6 months

$100,000 and above            Prime Rate minus 1.00%      7.00%

Rates in Effect After the First 6 Months, Based on Amount of Commitment.

Call a loan officer at 773-239-2265 for more information

1.  Offer applies to new Home Equity Line customers only.  For a limited time.  2.  For the Beverly Bank & Trust Co. variable rate Home Equity Line, the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is
a variable rate based on the highest Prime Rate reported in the Money Rates section of the Wall Street Journal (the “WSJ Prime”).  For example, on 6/20/06 the WSJ Prime was 8.00%
resulting in APRs disclosed in the rate section above.   The annual percentage rate may vary.  The maximum APR is 20%, minimum APR is 5.99%. Consult a tax advisor regarding the
deductibility of interest. Purchase of property insurance is required. Offer applies to lines secured by owner-occupied, 1-to-4 family residences located in the state of Illinois. Normal under-
writing guidelines apply. Offer is subject to credit approval. Rates are subject to change without notice. This offer may be withdrawn at any time. © 2006 Beverly Bank & Trust

LINE OF CREDIT RATES AS LOW AS:

Member FDIC

10258 Western Avenue l 1908 West 103rd Street
Chicago, Illinois 60643 l 773-239-2265

www.thebeverlybank.com

At Beverly Bank & Trust we keep the tradition of commu-
nity banking alive.   Consider using a home equity line to
refinance your credit card, purchase a new vehicle, take a
vacation, pay for college tuition, remodel your kitchen,
or any number of projects around the house.

Community banking still exists at Beverly Bank & Trust.
We place our neighbors and the community first—before
the numbers.  Plus, we offer customized products with
the personal service that you deserve. Come in and let us
show you what community banking is all about.

Use Auto Debit to pay your line from your Beverly
Bank & Trust checking account you’ll receive an addi-
tional .125% off your Home Equity Line of Credit!
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favorable from a historical perspective and the Com-

pany believes that non-performing assets remain at very

manageable levels.

The Company remains committed to maintaining sound

asset quality.  Wintrust will not sacrifice our asset quality

and pricing standards simply to grow outstanding loan

balances in the short-term.  Such a strategy, we believe,

would most likely impair future growth and franchise

value.  Sound asset quality has always been a basic

operating tenat for us and we are committed to main-

taining the quality of the loan portfolio in excellent con-

dition.

Dividend Payouts Increase Again

In January and July of 2006, our Board of Directors

approved semi-annual cash dividends of $0.14 per

share of outstanding common stock.  These dividends

were paid in February and August.  This annualized

cash dividend of $0.28 per share represented a 17%

increase over the per share common stock dividends

paid during 2005. 

And in January 2007, our Board approved a semi-annual

cash dividend of $0.16 per share of outstanding com-

mon stock. The dividend was paid on February 22,

2007 to shareholders of record as of February 8, 2007.

This cash dividend, on an annualized basis, represents

a 14% increase over the per share common stock divi-

dends paid during 2006.   Following is a historical sum-

mary of our increasing dividend distributions:

Diluted Dividend Dividend
Year Earnings Per Share Payout Ratio

2006 $ 2.56        $ 0.280 10.9%

2005 2.75 0.240 8.7

2004 2.34 0.200 8.5

2003 1.98 0.160 8.1

2002 1.60 0.120 7.5

2001 1.27 0.093 7.3

While we have increased our dividend every year since

we initiated payment of dividends, as a young company

which is continually investing in growth, we continue to

retain the majority of our earnings to fund future growth

and to build a strong long-term franchise.  Accordingly,

our dividend payments, on an annualized basis, have

represented approximately 10% of the Company’s prior

year earnings.  Although the payment of future divi-

dends will be subject to our Board’s periodic review of

the financial condition, earnings and capital require-

ments of the Company, it is our present intent to con-

tinue to pay regular semi-annual cash dividends.
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5,000

4,000
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$7,000M
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Wintrust Banking Locations
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LLaakkee FFoorreesstt BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $1.5 Billion

Bank Group Brands:

HHiinnssddaallee BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $1.4 Billion

Bank Group Brands:

NNoorrtthh SShhoorree CCoommmmuunniittyy BBaannkk &&
TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $997 Million

Bank Group Brand:

LLiibbeerrttyyvviillllee BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $933 Million

Bank Group Brands:

BBaarrrriinnggttoonn BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $876 Million

Bank Group Brands:

CCrryyssttaall LLaakkee BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $580 Million

Bank Group Brands:

NNoorrtthhbbrrooookk BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $745 Million

Bank Group Brands:

AAddvvaannttaaggee NNaattiioonnaall BBaannkk

Asset Size: $289 Million

Bank Group Brand:

VViillllaaggee BBaannkk && TTrruusstt

Asset Size: $635 Million

Bank Group Brand:

BBeevveerrllyy BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $161 Million

Bank Group Brand:

TToowwnn BBaannkk

Asset Size: $475 Million

Bank Group Brand:

WWhheeaattoonn BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $311 Million

Bank Group Brands:

SSttaattee BBaannkk ooff TThhee LLaakkeess

Asset Size: $570 Million

Bank Group Brand:

OOlldd PPllaannkk TTrraaiill CCoommmmuunniittyy BBaannkk,, NN..AA..

Asset Size: $111 Million

Bank Group Brand:

SStt.. CChhaarrlleess BBaannkk && TTrruusstt CCoommppaannyy

Asset Size: $54 Million

Bank Group Brand:

The Bank Brands We Market
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Tricom Funding Distribution

Wayne Hummer Offices

       First Insurance 

Headquarters
       
       Distribution

First Insurance 
Headquarter
Northbrook, IL

       WestAmerica Mortgage  
 
       Headquarters 
        
       Mortgage Office 
 
       Distribution 

WestAmerica 
Mortgage 

Headquarters
WestAmerica 

Mortgage 
Headquarters

       Tricom Funding 

Headquarters
       
       Distribution

Tricom 
Funding 

Headquarters

88 

55 

90 

94 

94 

80 57 

355 

94

Wisconsin

McHenry Boone

Lake

DeKalb

Kane DuPage

Cook

Kendall Will

Milwaukee

La Salle

Illinois

Chicago 
(Sauganash), IL

Antioch, IL

Libertyville, IL

Lake Forest , IL

Delafield, WI

Algonquin, IL Barrington, IL

Northbrook, IL

Wilmette, IL

Elk Grove 
Village, IL

Wheaton , IL

Hinsdale , IL

Chicago 
(Beverly), IL

New Lenox, IL

Appleton, WI

Downers 
Grove, IL

Gurnee, IL

West Lake Forest , IL

Highland Park, IL

Northview, IL

Western Springs, IL

Chicago, IL

       LEGEND

       Headquarters

       Branch Office

       City of Chicago

FIRST Insurance Distribution

WestAmerica Distribution



Retail Banking 

As previously mentioned, 2006 marked our fifteenth

anniversary for our very first founded bank.  In these 15

years we have grown to 15 chartered banks with 73

banking facilities.  Our success in the banking arena can

be directly attributed to providing the communities we

serve the best products and customer service utilizing

local bank management and boards of directors, and

aggressive marketing.  

We position ourselves as the local competitor of the big

banks.  This positioning on the retail banking side has

been a key to our successful growth.  

As we ourselves grow, many people ask us how we

can continue to provide high quality service.  Our

decentralized, multi-chartered approach is one way that

we endeavor to keep the decision making process

close to the customer.  By having multiple bank char-

ters that are branded to match the communities served

and by assigning specific accountability for growth,

earnings and top-notch customer service to each indi-

vidual bank management team, we believe we keep

our teams focused on providing the best possible serv-

ice to their own respective target markets.

As the true community banks in our markets, we pro-

vide a number of programs and products that the big

banks can't or won't offer.  We provide community

focused programs

like our Junior

Savers Account

and Platinum

Adventures Travel

and Entertainment

Club.  In fact, in

2006 our Platinum

Adventures Pro-

gram welcomed

over 1,500 new

members, who

have enjoyed

events and activi-

ties geared

towards seniors.

Commercial Banking

In keeping with our strategy of giving our clients the best

customer service, bar none, we have continued to

expand our commercial banking services in 2006.  We

now have a collection of commercial products that are

set to be aggressively promoted to our existing cus-

tomer base and to small and mid-sized business

prospects in our market areas.  

Our initial efforts to promote our depth of commercial

services with existing retail customers that are also busi-

ness owners have been very promising.  Many of these

customers have looked upon our banks as great retail

oriented community banks but have not thought of us

as a commercial bank that could handle their business

needs.  Once we have presented our capabilities, we

have generally been successful in gaining the opportu-

nity to compete for the commercial piece of their bank-

ing needs.  There are a number of ways we have

achieved this progress.

People. We have put together a group of seasoned,

knowledgeable lenders and business development

leaders to carry the task of being the bank that busi-

nesses look to in their communities.  This allows us the

advantage of local, timely decision making capabilities

for our customers.

Service and Customization. Customer relationships

begin with the ability to meet day-to-day needs of the
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Banking, Wealth Management, and Other Companies Update

Real Adventure Begins at 50!

Day Tours:

• Theatre

• Sporting Events

• Historic Tours

• Book Reviews

• Seminars

• Much More!

Join our Platinum Adventures Club® and enjoy 
Exciting Travel and Social Events...

No cost to join. See a Personal Banker to learn more about our events! 

Contact Kay Olivo, Director at (847) 483-6035.

Expanded Tours:

• Domestic Tours

• International Tours
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customers.  Based on our local presence we are able to

provide personal customer service and product cus-

tomization, providing services that fit the needs of our

customers to run their businesses more efficiently.

Technology. We have concentrated on our product

offerings to be at the leading edge of new product devel-

opment and enhancements provided to our customers

from our internet service portal, i-Business Banking, to

our latest product offering,  i-Business Capture, allowing

customers to make deposits at our banks without leav-

ing their office.

Broad Product Offering. We provide our customers a vari-

ety of products and services from loans to treasury man-

agement.  As we continue to understand the needs of

our customers, we will concentrate on deepening these

relationships in 2007 through cross-selling initiatives.  

We will continue in 2007 to aggressively promote our

commercial banking expansion initiatives for “Business

Banking at Its Best” highlighting the personal customer

service of community banks with the technology capa-

bilities of the big banks. High tech, high touch; not high

tech, no touch.

Some highlights that point to our banks’ success:

• Customer base has grown to approximately 130,000,
up from 120,000 in 2005;

• Average deposits per bank group exceeded $524 mil-
lion, up from $518 million a year ago;

• Average deposits per banking facility remained rela-
tively stable at approximately $108 million in 2006
and 2005 which is a good result given that we
opened 11 new facilities or 18% more; and, 

• 29% growth in commercial/commercial real estate loan
balances.

Below is a chart of FDIC deposit market share as of June

30, 2006, for each Wintrust main bank zip code.

Deposit
Market 

De Novo Acquisition Share 
Bank Opening Date Rank
1. Lake Forest Bank 12/91 1 (out of 9)

2. Hinsdale Bank 10/93 3 (out of 13)

3. North Shore Bank 9/94 1 (out of 8)

4. Libertyville Bank 10/95 1 (out of 10)

5. Barrington Bank 12/96 2 (out of 8)

6. Crystal Lake Bank 12/97 2 (out of 15)

7. Northbrook Bank 11/00 2 (out of 14)

8. Advantage Bank 10/03 3 (out of 15)

9. Village Bank 12/03 1 (out of 10)

10. Beverly Bank 4/04 3 (out of 10)

11. Wheaton Bank 9/04 5 (out of 16)

12. Town Bank 10/04 1 (out of 5)

13. State Bank 1/05 1 (out of 6)

14. Old Plank Bank 3/06 4 (out of 11)

30,000

60,000

120,000

90,000

150,000

Total New Bank Households
(end of year)

Business Banking that puts you in control.

Business Banking at Its BestTM

Treasury 
Management 

Services

PICTURE
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Each of our bank groups is charged with expanding and
opening new facilities.  These carefully planned oppor-
tunities allow us to broaden our banks’ footprints and
provide neighboring communities with our superior cus-
tomer service and banking products.  In 2006, we
opened or expanded the following banking facilities
(including acquisitions):

• Algonquin Bank & Trust (permanent location with
drive-through, a branch of Crystal Lake Bank & Trust
Company);

• Downers Grove Community Bank (conversion of pre-
vious Hinsbrook Bank & Trust-Downers Grove facility
with drive through is now a branch of Hinsdale Bank
& Trust Company);

• Glen Ellyn Bank & Trust (conversion of previous
Hinsbrook Bank & Trust-Glen Ellyn facility with drive-
through is now a branch of Wheaton Bank & Trust
Company); 

• Gurnee Community Bank (permanent location with
drive-through, a branch of Libertyville Bank & Trust
Company);

• Hinsbrook Bank & Trust-Darien (conversion of previ-
ous Hinsbrook Bank & Trust facility with drive-
through, now a branch of Hinsdale Bank & Trust
Company);

• Hinsbrook Bank & Trust-Willowbrook (conversion of
previous Hinsbrook Bank & Trust facility with drive-
through, now a branch of Hinsdale Bank & Trust
Company);

• Old Plank Trail Community Bank-Frankfort 
(temporary facility); 

• Old Plank Trail Community Bank-New Lenox 
(temporary facility);

• Old Plank Trail Community Bank-Mokena 
(temporary facility); 

• St. Charles Bank & Trust Company (temporary main
bank facility);

• St. Charles Bank & Trust Company-Geneva (conver-
sion of previous Hinsbrook Bank & Trust-Geneva
facility with drive-through); and,

• Town Bank-Elm Grove (branch facility with drive-
through, a branch of Town Bank).

As we look to 2007, plans are being developed or con-
struction is underway for a number of new or improved
banking facilities including:

• Carol Stream Bank & Trust (a branch of Wheaton
Bank & Trust Company);

• Hoffman Estates Community Bank (an additional
branch of Barrington Bank & Trust Company);

• Island Lake Community Bank (a branch of
Libertyville Bank & Trust Company);

• North Chicago Community Bank (a branch of Lake
Forest Bank & Trust Company);

• North Shore Community Bank & Trust (main bank
expansion);

• Old Plank Trail Community Bank-Frankfort (perma-
nent bank branch facility with drive through);

• Old Plank Trail Community Bank-New Lenox (perma-
nent main bank facility with drive through);

• Old Plank Trail Community Bank-Mokena (permanent
bank branch facility with drive through);

• Old Town Bank & Trust-Bloomingdale (a branch of
Advantage National Bank); 

• Palatine Bank & Trust (new main bank facility with
drive-through, a branch of Barrington Bank); 

• State Bank of The Lakes-Antioch (an additional
branch of State Bank of The Lakes in East Antioch); 

• Town Bank of Elm Grove (new bank branch facility);
and,

• Town Bank of Hartland (permanent bank 
branch facility).

©2006 Old Plank Trail Community Bank
Member 

FDIC

www.oldplanktrailbank.com

New Lenox 
352 W. Maple St.

New Lenox, IL 60451
815-485-0001

Frankfort
37 Old Frankfort Way

Frankfort, IL 60423
815-464-6888

Mokena
11041 Front St.

Mokena, IL 60448
708-478-4447

OLD PLANK TRAIL COMMUNITY BANK WANTS 
TO HELP YOU PREPARE!
At Old Plank Trail Community Bank, we want you to enjoy every moment of the holiday season…
shopping included. That is why we have the Christmas Club, a year-long savings program designed 
to help you get through your Christmas wish list without breaking the budget!

THE CHRISTMAS CLUB FEATURES AND 
BENEFITS:

PUT AWAY MONEY EVERY WEEK/MONTH AT NO 
CHARGE—YOU CAN STOP INTO THE BANK, MAIL 
IN YOUR MONEY, OR HAVE IT AUTOMATICALLY 
DEPOSITED

SAVE UP MONEY ALL YEAR LONG UNTIL 
YOU REACH YOUR CHRISTMAS GOAL

FREE COUPONS TO KEEP TRACK OF SAVINGS

EARN INTEREST ALL YEAR LONG!

NEED HELP
GETTING    

READY
FOR NEXT

CHRISTMAS?

NEED HELP
GETTING    

READY
FOR NEXT

CHRISTMAS?

Bank with
State Bank of The Lakes
and the gifts just
keep piling up!

Switch to true 
community banking 
and make 2007
a rewarding year.

A great special from a true community bank.

www.sbotl.com

Antioch Bank:

440 Lake Street

Antioch, IL 60002

847-395-2700

©2006 State Bank of The Lakes MEMBER FDICEQUAL HOUSING 
LENDER

We don’t just give you one gift like you’ve come to expect from the big banks in town, we keep the gifts coming your way. Our 

gifts to you include everything you could want in a bank: specials on our loan rates, CD specials where you pick the CD term, free 

safe deposit box, no fee on a purchase of our new Visa® Gift Card, a free analysis on your investments and much more.**

We take care of our customers and 

offering this holiday package is sure proof.

Visit a personal banker today and 
begin enjoying the 
whole package from 
State Bank of The Lakes!

Open a checking account and companion 
account* and receive the Whole Package!

$50 in car wash coupons 1

5.00% APY2, You pick your 
CD term

.50% off current consumer 
installment loan rate3

FREE safe deposit box4

Fee waived for purchase of a 
VISA®Gift Card5

NO FEE Home equity 
loan3

FREE Piggy bank or back-
pack with a new Junior 
Savers Account

FREE 1st order of checks

FREE consultation with 
Wayne Hummer Wealth 
Management**

Community Banking At Its Best
Grayslake Bank:

50 Commerce Drive

Grayslake, IL 60030

847-548-2700

Lindenhurst Bank:

2031 Grand Avenue

Lindenhurst, IL 60046

847-356-5700

McHenry Bank:

2730 West Route 120

McHenry, IL 60050

815-344-5100

Spring Grove Bank:

1906 Holian Drive

Spring Grove, IL 60081

815-675-3700

* To qualify for these special offers open any checking account with a minimum balance of $100 and a companion account including regular savings, money market or CD. Offers do not apply for any business accounts. Offer expires January 31, 2007. 
1. Coupons available at time of account opening; considered income & may be 1099 reportable. 2. The Annual Percentage Yield (APY) is calculated on simple interest rates with interest compounded and paid monthly and assumes interest remains on 
deposit until maturity. APY accurate as of 11/28/06. Rates subject to change without notice. Substantial penalty may be charged for early withdrawal. Penalty may reduce earnings. To obtain the APY, you must open a CD with a minimum of $1,000 
and a maximum of $100,000 not currently on deposit with State Bank of The Lakes. Offer expires 1/31/2007. 3. Subject to credit approval. 4. Free safety deposit box rental for same term as new CD opened. 3”X5” only; subject to availability. 5. $2.50 
fee waived at time of Visa Gift Card purchase. One coupon only, available at time of account opening. 6. May be considered to be income for tax purposes, subject to 1099 reporting. © 2006 State Bank of The Lakes.

Plus, you’ll enjoy FREE On-line 
banking & bill pay, FREE
24-hour TeleBank service at 
866-721-2370, FREE VISA®

Check Card3, FREE check 
images with statements, 
convenient hours & locations, 
and next day availability of 
funds.

To top it all off, we’ll even take 

care of you through the winter

with $50 in car wash coupons.
In Antioch:
Main Street Car Wash
41174 N. Route 83
Antioch, IL  60002
(847) 838-9274

In Grayslake:
Fast Jack’s Car Wash & Lube
59 U.S. Hwy. 45
Grayslake, IL  60030
(847) 543-7333

In Fox Lake:
Village Car Wash & Detail Center
1372 U.S. Route 12
Fox Lake, IL  60020
(847) 587-7601

In McHenry:
Fast Eddie’s Full Service Car Wash 
& Detail Center
2150 N. Richmond Rd.
McHenry, IL  60050
(815) 363-7100 

Pick up your coupons at the bank to visit the following locations:

** Securities and insurance products offered through Wayne Hummer Investments (Member NASD/SIPC). Trust and asset management services offered by Wayne Hummer Trust Company and Wayne Hummer 

Asset Management Company, respectively. Investment products such as stocks, bonds, and mutual funds are not insured by the FDIC or any federal government agency, not bank guaranteed or a bank deposit, 

and may lose value.

FREE Holiday music CD6
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Wealth Management 

Having recently celebrated its 75th

Anniversary, the Wayne Hummer Com-

panies and their team of experts in

investments, trust services, asset man-

agement, and financial planning pro-

vide clients sophisticated financial

advice using a complete range of wealth management

products and services. Wayne Hummer offers the prod-

ucts, technology, and experience of a larger national

firm but with the highly personal service and attention of

a boutique firm. Wayne Hummer Investments, LLC,

Wayne Hummer Trust Company, N.A., and Wayne Hum-

mer Asset Management Company comprise the wealth

management component of the Wintrust organization. 

Wayne Hummer has 160 professionals employed at

over 20 locations throughout the greater Chicagoland

area and parts of Wisconsin, as well as 22 correspon-

dent firm offices in the Midwest. During 2006, Wayne

Hummer added professionals to our Illinois banking

locations in Arlington Heights, Algonquin, and Beverly.

The offering of wealth management services continues

to be well received by our banking customers. 

Wayne Hummer anticipates continued expansion of its

offices during 2007 with particular emphasis on person-

nel growth as it plans to hire 14

additional professionals into the

various wealth management divi-

sions including Financial Advi-

sors, Portfolio Managers, and

other various individuals to launch

the new “farm team,” a group of

aspiring financial professionals

who will be groomed to become

trusted financial advisors. The

development of the “Wayne Hum-

mer Way,” which is the unique

team approach to wealth manage-

ment solutions revolving around

the needs of each client, will lay

the foundation to fortify its com-

petitive advantage in the financial

services market. By beginning

every client relationship with a

Comprehensive Financial Review,

Wayne Hummer will effectively

introduce its clients to appropriate prod-

ucts and leverage the services and

expertise of the entire organization. 

During the past year, to better align its

sales team for improved success in the

future, Wayne Hummer Investments

upgraded the sales support system to a state-of-the-art

platform designed specifically for client account mainte-

nance and trading functionality. The user-friendliness of

the new SmartStation platform paired with its extensive

research capabilities allows Wayne Hummer Financial

Advisors to quickly and conveniently respond to client

inquiries and requests. Clients were also introduced to

the high-tech world of electronic transactions. Not only

can clients elect to receive statements and trade confir-

mations via e-mail, but they can also place trades when

they sign-up for online trading. 

In further efforts to extend the Wayne Hummer brand

name, after careful consideration of the needs of our

clients, it was determined that it was no longer benefi-

cial to operate two separate broker-dealers. Therefore,

in December 2006, Focused Investments, a subsidiary

of Wayne Hummer Investments, was merged into its

parent and now operates as one broker-dealer under the

Wayne Hummer Investments name. Separately, as a

result of the Wintrust merger with Hinsbrook Bank &

Trust, the Wayne Hummer Trust

Company was able to combine

the resources of the Hinsbrook

Trust Department with those of its

own to expand service offerings

to new clientele. 

Wayne Hummer Asset Manage-

ment Company spent significant

time refocusing the investment

management process and found

strong success and outstanding

first-year investment returns with

its new PathMaster product, an

ETF-based mutual fund. PathMas-

ter proved to be a catalyst for

continued investment opportuni-

ties within the Wayne Hummer

companies.

An Active approach to traditional indexing.

For more complete information on the PathMaster Fund, you may request a prospectus by calling 877-942-8434.  Investors should consider the Fund’s investment
objectives, risks, charges and expenses carefully before investing. This and other important information is contained in the prospectus, which should be read
carefully before investing.
The PathMaster Fund is Advised by Wayne Hummer Asset Management Company® and is distributed by BISYS Fund Services Limited Partnership, which is
not affiliated with Wayne Hummer Asset Management Company.

300 S. Wacker Drive
Suite 1300
Chicago, IL 60606

Financial Professionals
800-621-4477 ext. 294

PathMasterFund.com

An Active approach to traditional indexing.
Historically, many active managers do not beat their benchmarks consistently, over
time. Common mistakes include poor stock or sector bets, or failure to time buys
and sells appropriately. In the last 2 decades, we have seen managers move from
portfolios aimed at beating a broad benchmark to portfolios aimed at smaller sub-
sets – small, medium, or large companies, and growth versus value stocks. Perfor-
mance can vary widely, from year to year, for the subsets. This led many investors to
indexed portfolios that sought to match the market’s returns. However, static index-
es have limitations of their own, such as capitalization (size) and style bias.

These observations offered an important insight into an innovative way to manage a
portfolio: one that seeks to provide excess returns (while moderating risk) by over
or under emphasizing each size and style combination, rather than tinkering with
stock and sector decisions.

PathMaster is driven by a quantitative, bottom-up asset allocation model derived
from a two-year research study (covering 20 years of data) that focused on domestic
equity size and style leadership changes. The model weighs multiple fundamental,
valuation and technical factors each month to forecast the market cap and style seg-
ments that may outperform. To manage allocations efficiently, the Fund invests pri-
marily in six exchange-traded funds (ETFs) that make up the components of the
Russell 3000 Index, its benchmark.

PathMaster is available in multiple share classes on platforms nationwide –
• All cap, blended portfolio provides broad diversification
• Potential for excess returns versus the benchmark
• Seeks moderate risk characteristics

For more information, contact us at 1-800-621-4477 ext. 294 or visit us on the web
at www.PathMasterFund.com
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Other Strategic Companies

FIRST Insurance Funding Corp.

Last year was a tough one for the premium finance

industry as shrinking insurance premiums, rising interest

rates and industry consolidation conspired to constrain

loan volume and squeeze margins. However, FIRST

once again proved its industry leadership by achieving

solid growth, reaching $3.0 billion in loan volume, an

increase over 2005 new loan volume of $2.7 billion. 

FIRST also strengthened its position as the finance com-

pany of choice for successful, independent insurance

agents by winning the exclusive endorsement of

Assurex Global from a competitor that had held the

endorsement for more than three decades. This

endorsement should bring FIRST meaningful new busi-

ness over the next few years. FIRST gained this

endorsement while maintaining the endorsements of

other strong independent agent associations like The

Council of Insurance Agents & Brokers and the Agency

Peak Performance Exchange.

These endorsements, along with an expanded sales

force and continued aggressive sales and marketing

efforts, are helping FIRST to lay the groundwork for a

successful 2007, which will also see FIRST’s continued

expansion into insurance company billing programs and

the small business market.

FIRST remains committed to making asset quality as

important as volume growth. This is seen in the fact that

FIRST’s 2006 non-performing assets were 1.07% of out-

standings with charge-offs of only 0.22% of average out-

standing loans. 

As one of the largest premium finance companies in the

country, FIRST continues to prove its industry leader-

ship with cutting edge technology, unique products and

services and, what we believe to be, one of the clean-

est portfolios in the industry.

Tricom Inc. of Milwaukee

The general temporary staffing industry saw tepid

growth in 2006. However, Tricom, celebrating its seventh

year as a Wintrust subsidiary, maintained a net revenue

contribution to the company of $8.5 million in 2006, and

a net income contribution of $1.8 million. Good

results, considering the overall temporary help business.

Growth in 2007 will come from possible acquisitions, as

well as a focused effort on growing the business via a

comprehensive sales and marketing effort. An analysis

of our primary competition has yielded certain strategic

benefits for firms that work with us. Aggressively mar-

keting this advantage, we hope to attract many of the

firms in the temporary staffing industry to our leading,

all-inclusive solutions that quite frankly, outshine our
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You will if it’s 
Tricom Funding.

Strong partners make the best partners. 

Trust your back office and funding needs to 

an industry leader with a reputation for 

excellent service and extensive knowledge 

of the staffing industry.

Depend on Tricom Funding to deliver:

• COMPETITIVE PRICING — with no hidden 

fees or surprise rate increases — so you know 

your exact funding costs

• COMPREHENSIVE BACK OFFICE 
SOLUTIONS with a system of checks and 

balances that ensures accuracy, security, and 

peace of mind

• A HELP DESK WITH LIVE SUPPORT 
available from 7 am CST to 7 pm CST for 

prompt and professional answers to your 

questions and needs

• FLEXIBLE AND UNLIMITED FINANCIAL 
RESOURCES necessary for staffing 

businesses of all sizes to have unlimited 

growth potential

• A SIMPLE SWITCH APPROACH that makes 

transitioning to Tricom Funding worry and 

hassle free

Do you have a 
strong partner 

at your side?

Call today for your complimentary, 

no obligation evaluation to see 

how Tricom Funding can help 

your business grow! 

1-888-4TRICOM (487-4266) 

Sales@tricom.com • www.tricom.com



competition. Where needed, this will include matching

or beating our competitors rates in the short-term.  

WestAmerica Mortgage Company 

In 2006, WestAmerica focused on consolidation and

expense reduction after concentrating on growth the

previous few years.  Warehouse interest spread was vir-

tually non-existent with the inverted yield curve. Volume

reduction throughout the industry contributed to

increased pressure on margins.  WestAmerica ended

2006 with $1.5 billion in originations down from $1.7 bil-

lion in 2005.

For 2007, WestAmerica will continue to improve effi-

ciencies and manage every production branch to

ensure they contribute to corporate profitability.  The

focus will remain on profitability instead of growth.

Offering a full array of mortgage products will again be

emphasized in the ever changing mortgage origination

marketplace.

Wintrust Information Technology Services (WITS)

Internet and computer security is always on everyone’s

mind, especially these days with stories of “phishing” and

identity theft. Given this environment, WITS continues

monitoring developments to provide the highest practi-

cal level of customer information security. By keeping a

watchful eye on our network, including events as they

are happening, we are better positioned to prevent any

potential loss of our customers’ valuable information.

2006 was a year of operational support and integrations

for WITS. We made a number of improvements for our

technical support area including an enhanced project

management process. A number of improvements were

made for our retail customers with our new Internet

Banking and Voice Response services. Our commer-

cial customers received a new service in I-Business

Capture, our remote deposit product. Additionally,

WITS provided the full integration of Town Bank and

Hinsbrook Bank & Trust into our network and systems.

For 2007, WITS looks to continue to provide our banks

and other subsidiaries the best IT support available.   
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ID SafeChoiceSM

Protecting Our Customers’ Identity

A Great Free Program To Help With Identity Protection & Theft Resolution:  ID SafeChoiceSM

Introducing ID SafeChoiceSM4 the most comprehensive solution available 

today. Identity theft is the fastest growing crime in the United States. Identity theft 

resolution is provided to all primary checking/NOW account customers for free. 

There is also an option available to upgrade this valuable service and even to cover 

the entire family5. 

Start taking key 
steps to protect-

ing your identity; 
one of the many 
advantages that 

our checking 
customers have.

507 N. Milwaukee Ave.,  | 1200 S. Milwaukee Ave.,
201 E. Hurlburt Ct.,  | Libertyville, IL 60048
847-367-6800 | www.libertyvillebank.com 

®

Lake Villa Community Bank

A Branch of Libertyville Bank & Trust

345 S. Milwaukee Ave.,

Lake Villa, IL 60046

847-265-0300

www.lakevillabank.com

Wauconda Community Bank

A Branch of Libertyville Bank & Trust

495 W. Liberty St.,

1180 Dato Ln.,

Wauconda, IL 60084

847-487-2500

www.waucondabank.com

Mundelein Community Bank

A Branch of Libertyville Bank & Trust

1110 W. Maple

Mundelein, IL 60060

847-837-1110

www.mundeleinbank.com

Gurnee Community Bank

A Branch of Libertyville Bank & Trust

675 O’Plaine Rd.,

Gurnee, IL 60031

847-625-3800

www.gurneebank.com

Don’t let it be you.

One in23
Identity Theft.

will be a
victimof

Community Classic® Checking Account

• No minimum balance required

• No per check or monthly service 

charge

• Free first order of standard checks

• No annual fee STAR® ATM or Visa®

Debit Card1

• FREE ID SafeChoiceSM for primary 

account holder

• Access to over 500 surcharge-Free  

ATMS in the Chicagoland area2

• FREE on-line banking and bill pay 

• FREE imaged checks with                

CheckManager Plus®

Ask us about our 15 month CD: 5.35% APY3
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#1 Strategy is Best Customer Service, Bar None.

We make fulfilling clients’ needs priority one, whether that

be banking, mortgages, wealth management, premium

finance or any of our other businesses.  This results in

more satisfied customers and higher customer loyalty.  

On the banking side, what really separates us from our

big bank competitors is our superior customer service.

Customers may come to us because of a certain prod-

uct or an attractive price, but they stay with us because

of our service.  

On a regular basis we measure bank customer satisfac-

tion and our delivery of customer service.  In our 2006

survey, we are pleased to note that on average our Win-

trust community banks were rated “excellent” or “good”

on overall level of service by more than 80% of cus-

tomers.  And, on average, over 85% of respondents rated

their Wintrust community banks’ delivery of customer

service as “excellent” or “good” versus the competition.

This level of satisfaction is outstanding and will result in

higher loyalty to our brands.  

Profitable Growth Formula

Our formula for growth includes four “building block”

strategies that provide the framework for Wintrust’s

strong growth and earnings:

1. Building a base of community banks;

2. Growing commercial banking business;

3. Expanding wealth management distribution; and

4. Developing asset niches and other income 

generators to fuel growth.

1. Building Base of Community Banks

The first of our building block strategies is that of build-

ing a strong base of community bank franchises.  At

year end, Wintrust had 15 bank charters with 73 loca-

tions—69 in Illinois and four in Wisconsin.  Nine banks

and 51 facilities were de novo launches over the last fif-

teen years.  Seven banks and 22 facilities have been

added via acquisition since 2003.  (One of our acquired

charters was combined into another in-market charter.)

In 2007, we have plans to add additional branches via

de novo launches and perhaps acquisition if the correct

opportunity presents itself.

Growth and Earnings Strategies

According to FDIC deposit data as of June 30, 2006, we are the eighth largest bank group in the Chicago Standard Met-

ropolitan Statistical Area (SMSA) and have the highest number of individual bank charters.

Deposit Market Share-Chicago SMSA

In-market Deposit Year Ago
Deposit Market Market Share Headquarter

Bank Holding Company Dollars Share % Change Location

1) JP Morgan Chase & Co. $40.1 BB 15.30% -0.72% New York, NY

2) ABN AMRO Holding N.V. $37.0 BB 14.11% 1.19% Netherlands

3) Bank of Montreal $25.6 BB 9.77% 0.03% Canada

4) Fifth Third Bancorp $8.5 BB 3.23% -0.13% Cincinnati, OH

5) Corus Bankshares $8.3 BB 3.18% 0.88% Chicago, IL

6) Royal Bank of Scotland Group $7.3 BB 2.79% 0.10% Scotland

7) Northern Trust Corporation $7.3 BB 2.79% -0.74% Chicago, IL

8) Wintrust Financial Corporation $7.2 BB 2.75% 0.24% Lake Forest, IL

Source: FDIC website – Summary of Deposits as of June 30, 2006.  Market share data is for the Chicago Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area.



22 WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Wintrust banks use a proven mix of operating and mar-

keting strategies that allow us to position ourselves dif-

ferently from the centralized big banks and to better

deliver our community bank benefits.  Our unique bank

growth strategies include:

Decentralized Management. Each of our 15 banks has

profit responsibilities and the authority to make deci-

sions locally.  As compared to the rigid, centralized

approach of most big banks, our local decision making

structure results in more flexibility, customized products

to better meet local needs, sharper pricing, quicker deci-

sions, more community involvement, and customer

service more in tune with local customers and busi-

nesses.  This allows Wintrust to truly operate real com-

munity banks with local roots and local decision mak-

ing.  And because our management teams are allowed

the autonomy to essentially operate like an independent

bank, we are able to attract and retain the best and most

entrepreneurial bankers in the area who want to run

their own show.

Local Board and Local Bankers. Each of our banks is

governed by its own local board of directors.  These

boards are made up of business and community lead-

ers who are influential in the markets served by their

bank.  Their oversight, local contacts and involvement

are keys to making our banks real community banks.  

Our manage-

ment teams

include expe-

r i e n c e d

bankers who

are well

known in

their markets.

We also staff

our banks

with local

bankers who

are deeply

involved in

the commu-

nity as well.

Our bankers’

local roots

are also an

important part

of being a

good home-

town bank.

Most local resi-

dents and

b u s i n e s s e s

prefer to bank

with a local

i n s t i t u t i o n

staffed with

local bankers

that know

them and can

better meet

their needs. 

Local Branding. Not only do we run our banks locally,

but we brand many of our banks and branches after the

local communities as well.  The Hinsdale Bank & Trust

group is a good example, with its branches also posi-

tioned locally as Clarendon Hills Bank, The Community

Bank of Western Springs, Riverside Bank, Downers

Grove Community Bank, and Hinsbrook Bank & Trust.  

Aggressive Marketing Plans. Wintrust uses very aggres-

sive introductory marketing programs designed to

acquire new customers when we enter a new market.

Quickly expanding the customer base allows us to grow

into our overhead and become profitable sooner.  It also

helps us move toward the #1 or #2 market share in the

first few years after opening a location.  After our intro-

ductory period, our banks continue to be aggressive

with marketing to grow household penetration and

accounts per household.

Creative Anti-Big Bank Advertising. Our retail advertis-

ing mission dictates that superior advertising must cre-

ate traffic and grow business in the short term while it

builds our distinct positioning for the long term.  We

help accomplish this mission by creating ads that poke

fun at the big banks and positioning them as profits-

over-service institutions as compared to our community

banks’ preferred customer-first focus.  Please enjoy the

ads we have scattered throughout this report.  

201 South Hough Street | 847-842-4500 • 233 West Northwest Highway | 847-381-1715 • www.barringtonbank.com

T here is a Bank of America and there is a Bank of Montreal, but there is 
only one Bank of Barrington — Barrington Bank & Trust Company. 

Remember that when you hear the news about the new big bank branch com-
ing to town. Maybe you’ve already seen the ads and articles. 

The branch will offer a special “introductory” promotion to get new customers 
in their doors. Unfortunately, the offer is short-term ... and then you’re stuck 
with big bank service and big bank fees and big bank, well, bigness. 

We decided our customers shouldn’t have to open up an account at other banks 
to get one of their deals, so we 
came up with our “Beat Any 
Offer” pledge. We’ll match or 
beat any fixed-rate CD offer 
advertised by one of our local 
competitors. 

If you find a competitive promotion with an attractive rate, but prefer our 
superior hometown service, come on in. Talk with a personal banker, and we’ll 
match or beat those new bank offers. And if you’re new to our bank, simply 
open a checking account (like our SingleSolution Checking, at right) to get the 
same deal. That’s part of our continuing pledge to be the best bank in town.

Member FDIC © Barrington Bank & Trust Company, N.A. 1. You must have an existing checking account with Barrington Bank & Trust to qualify for the best rate guarantee on competitors’ fixed-rate CDs. 2. New SingleSolution Checking customers only. New money only. 
This offer is for a limited time and may be withdrawn at any time. Offer good while supplies last. The cash value of the gift certificate, $100.00, is considered to be interest for tax purposes, subject to 1099 reporting. 3. No service charge if a minimum daily balance of $500 is 
maintained. If account balance falls below minimum daily balance of $500, a $10 service charge will apply. 4. Free first order of specialty checks includes either 200 single checks or 150 duplicate checks. 5. Foreign transaction fees may apply; pending credit application approval. 
5. The effective date of the Annual Percentage Yield (APY) is 07/25/06. Tiered interest rates based on account balance. Rates subject to change at the discretion of the bank. See bank for details.

Account benefits:
• No minimum deposit to open
• No monthly service charge with minimum required balance3

• FREE first order of specialty checks4

• Unlimited check writing
• FREE online banking, online bill pay and telebanking
• FREE no-annual-fee STAR® ATM card or Visa debit card5

• Access to more than 500 surcharge-free ATMs in the
Chicagoland area

With your SingleSolution Checking account, your rate increases
with your balance. Earn up to 5.25% APY6!

Balance APY
$100,000+ 5.25%
$50,000 - $99,999 5.00%
$10,000 - $49,999 4.00%

Balance APY
$5,000 - $9,999 2.50%
$1,000 - $4,999 1.00%
$0 - $999 0.00%

There’s only one Bank of Barrington — Barrington Bank & Trust Company.

GET A FREE $100 GIFT CERTIFICATE

TO FRANCESCA’S FAMIGLIA
when you open a SingleSolution Checking® account
with direct deposit.2

With our “Beat Any Offer” 
pledge, we’ll match or beat 
any fixed-rate CD offer 
advertised by one of our 
local bank competitors.1 

You
To:

From:
Your 

Community 
Banks

© 2006 Crystal Lake Bank & Trust Company, N.A. Member FDIC

This coupon is good for one free poinsettia 
hand-delivered to your home by a bank

Bring in this coupon, open any 
checking or savings account, 
and a president will deliver a 
lovely poinsettia to your door.

P R E S I D E N T

Limit one coupon per household. Offer expires 12/30/2006. All 
checking and savings accounts require an initial deposit of $100. 
A $10 fee will be imposed if account is closed within the first six 
months. The cash value of the poinsettia, $14.99, may be considered 
interest for tax purposes, subject to 1099 reporting.

We hope we can bring you and your 
family a little holiday cheer with a 
beautiful poinsettia from our bank. This 
poinsettia will last throughout the season 
and is perfect decor for your home.

We want
to help you
usher in the

Holiday
 Season

70 N. Williams St.
Crystal Lake, IL 60014

815-479-5200
www.crystallakebank.com

2205 N. Richmond Rd.
McHenry, IL 60050

815-344-6600
www.mchenrybank.com

60 East Main Street
Cary, IL 60013
847-462-8881

www.carybank.com

4049 W. Algonquin Rd.
Algonquin, IL 60102

847-669-7500
www.bankalgonquin.com

Jim Thorpe
President/CEO, 

Crystal Lake

Phil Oeffling
President,
McHenry

Joe McVicker
President, 

Cary

Dave Ward
President,
Algonquin

H A P P Y H O L I D A Y S

Hurry! Offer endsDec. 30th.
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2. Growing Commercial Banking Business

In 2006, we kicked off our second “building block” strat-

egy, a major Wintrust-wide initiative designed to aggres-

sively grow our commercial banking business, both on

the lending side as well as the deposit side.  Our key tar-

get is middle market commercial and industrial business

and our key competition is the larger banks.  To better

compete, we have invested in both product and per-

sonnel.  We now have sophisticated cash management

capabilities that are every bit as good as the big banks

and the professionals who know how to sell and imple-

ment these programs.  

3. Expanding Wealth Management Services

Our third “building block” strategy is the expansion of

wealth management. Given the affluent markets in

which most Wintrust banks operate, a large opportunity

is to convince our bank customers that we can better

serve their wealth management needs.  They have sig-

nificant wealth management assets at other firms, just

not with us…yet.

In 2007, we have plans to continue to increase the num-

ber of Wayne Hummer wealth management personnel

at our banks. We are actively recruiting professionals

from large multi-national and regional firms. Many of the

opportunities for these new wealth management

experts will be in our community banks where they can

work in the same community in which they live.

4. Developing Asset Niches and Other Income Generators 

Our fourth “building block” strategy is the development

and growth of asset niches and other income genera-

tors.  Most community banks have difficulty generating

loans from local consumers and small businesses that

represent more than 60% of their lending capacity with-

out compromising credit quality.  That’s because in

many suburban communities, there are more con-

sumer and small business deposit opportunities than

there are loans.  

To overcome this limitation, we augment our commu-

nity banks’ loan portfolios with non-traditional earning

assets.  This not only improves the profitability of our

community banks and gives us additional income to

continue to invest in growth, but diversifies our loan

portfolios and allows the banks to maintain their credit

standards by not feeling compelled to pursue inappro-

priately priced or structured credits for the sake of

earnings growth. 

70 N. Williams St. | Crystal Lake, IL 60014
Tel: 877-359-6663 | Fax: 815-479-5714

www.namaf.com

© 2006 NorthAmerican Aviation Finance Member FDIC

TAKE
OFF
TAKE
OFF

with NorthAmerican Aviation Finance
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To create these additional assets, we operate several

non-bank financial services companies and have devel-

oped internally a number of non-traditional bank lend-

ing functions. Non-bank asset niches account for 18.6%

of total loans while specialty banking asset niches

account for 6.0%. 

% of Total Loans

Non-Bank Asset Niches

● Commercial premium finance
lending (FIRST Insurance Funding) 17.9%

● Temporary staffing industry
financing (Tricom) 0.7%

18.6%

Specialty Banking Asset Niches

● Indirect auto lending (Hinsdale Bank) 3.6%

● Mortgage warehouse lending
(Hinsdale Bank) 1.0%

● Condominium and association lending
(Community Advantage-
Barrington Bank) 0.7%

● Small craft aviation lending
(NorthAmerican Aviation
Finance-Crystal Lake Bank) 0.7%

6.0%

Technology, the Great Equalizer

Technology allows Wintrust to provide better customer

support, whether it be superior back-end software for

our customer service representatives or state-of-the-art

on-line banking applications for our customers.  We

have always been committed to providing our cus-

tomers with the best and most recent on-line technology

and other high-tech services; and in doing so, generat-

ing operating efficiencies to improve our earnings.  Here

are some key technology initiatives for 2007:   

• Completion of our banks’ web site upgrade—New

design will offer better content and state of the art

navigation;

• Another update of internet banking services—

improved functionality of on-line banking, bill pay

and bill presentment;

• Continue to review centralized common banking

applications for cost reduction, increased quality

control and support efficiencies;

• Complete implementation of the selected central-

ized document imaging service for the Wintrust

companies:

• Implement enhanced Account Analysis functionality

for our commercial business:

• Implement a fully automated wire transfer system:

• Add Electronic transaction functionality for our com-

mercial customers to offer their customers: and

• Add improved international wire transfer services

for commercial customers.

Investor Relations

In 2007, we will continue to execute our investor rela-

tions plan which includes presenting at investor con-

ferences, providing interviews and story ideas to finan-

cial publications, distributing investor packages to

interested investors through various programs, and

meeting with interested institutional buyers.  Meeting

with analysts and communicating our story creates

Loans
December 31, 2006
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awareness about our Company.  This is an important

responsibility of management.

Acquisitions remain an important and viable source of

growth for many companies. Since 1999, Wintrust has

added various banking and other complementary busi-

nesses via acquisitions. These acquisitions are an

important tactic for Wintrust to add key strategic and

niche assets, as well as to expand into banking loca-

tions and markets, creating value for our shareholders.  

Banking Acquisitions 

Over the past few years, we have been contacted by

many Illinois, Wisconsin and Indiana community banks

with the goal of merging their community-based bank

and branches into our Wintrust family of banks.  This

year has not been any different. In 2006, we completed

an acquisition of Hinsbrook Bancshares, the parent

company of Hinsbrook Bank & Trust. 

It is our goal to continue to add new banks in attrac-

tive markets, either on a de novo basis or by acquisi-

tion, taking into account business sense and share-

holder value.  Our bank acquisitions have proved

successful in  the past.  Our acquired banks have

grown deposits and assets, as well as significantly

growing their market share.

Other Acquisitions

Your management team and Board of Directors con-

tinue to evaluate additional non-banking acquisition

opportunities.  These include businesses within the

wealth management arena, and asset and fee income

generators as well.  Adding these types of companies

to our “stable” should add diversified earning asset and

fee-based income to supplement and diversify Win-

trust's revenue stream. 

Acquisition Strategy
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Report on Management’s Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
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Wintrust Financial Corporation is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of the consolidated finan-

cial statements included in this annual report.  The consolidated financial statements and notes included in this annual

report have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and neces-

sarily include some amounts that are based on management’s best estimates and judgments. 

We, as management of Wintrust Financial Corporation, are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal

control over financial reporting that is designed to produce reliable financial statements in conformity with generally

accepted accounting principles in the United States.  The system of internal control over financial reporting as it relates

to the financial statements is evaluated for effectiveness by management and tested for reliability through a program of

internal audits.  Actions are taken to correct potential deficiencies as they are identified.  Any system of internal control,

no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations, including the possibility that a control can be circumvented or over-

ridden and misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  Also, because of changes in conditions,

internal control effectiveness may vary over time.  Accordingly, even an effective system of internal control will provide

only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation.

Management assessed the Corporation’s system of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in

relation to criteria for the effective internal control over financial reporting as described in “Internal Control – Integrated

Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  Based on this assess-

ment, management concludes that, as of December 31, 2006, its system of internal control over financial reporting is

effective and meets the criteria of the “Internal Control – Integrated Framework.” Ernst & Young LLP, independent regis-

tered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of the Corporation’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Edward J. Wehmer David L. Stoehr

President & Executive Vice President &

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Lake Forest, Illinois

February 28, 2007



The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Wintrust Financial Corporation 

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report on Management’s Assessment of

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Wintrust Financial Corporation maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).  Wintrust Finan-

cial Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial report-

ing based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United

States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effec-

tive internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered nec-

essary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles.  A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-

tion of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the finan-

cial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.

Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Wintrust Financial Corporation maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria.  Also,

in our opinion, Wintrust Financial Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United

States), the consolidated statements of condition of Wintrust Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,

2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2006 and our report dated February 28, 2007 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon.

Chicago, Illinois

February 28, 2007
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WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,
2006 2005

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 169,071 158,136
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 136,221 183,229
Interest bearing deposits with banks 19,259 12,240
Available-for-sale securities, at fair value 1,839,716 1,799,384
Trading account securities 2,324 1,610
Brokerage customer receivables 24,040 27,900
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 148,331 85,985
Loans, net of unearned income 6,496,480 5,213,871

Less: Allowance for loan losses 46,055 40,283
Net loans 6,450,425 5,173,588

Premises and equipment, net 311,041 247,875
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 180,889 272,772
Goodwill 268,936 196,716
Other intangible assets 21,599 17,607

Total assets $ 9,571,852 8,177,042

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing $ 699,203 620,091
Interest bearing 7,170,037 6,109,343

Total deposits 7,869,240 6,729,434

Notes payable 12,750 1,000
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 325,531 349,317
Other borrowings 162,072 95,796
Subordinated notes 75,000 50,000
Long-term debt — trust preferred securities 249,828 230,458
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 104,085 93,126

Total liabilities 8,798,506 7,549,131

Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and 

outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005 - -
Common stock, no par value; $1.00 stated value; 60,000,000 shares 

authorized at December 31, 2006 and 2005; 25,802,024 and 23,940,744 
shares issued at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively 25,802 23,941

Surplus 519,233 420,426
Treasury stock, at cost, 344,089 shares at December 31, 2006 (16,343) -
Common stock warrants 681 744
Retained earnings 261,734 201,133
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (17,761) (18,333)

Total shareholders' equity 773,346 627,911

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 9,571,852 8,177,042

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Financial Statements
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WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Interest income
Interest and fees on loans $ 456,384 335,391 218,298
Interest bearing deposits with banks 651 279 80
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 5,393 3,485 934 
Securities 93,398 66,555 40,891 
Trading account securities 51 68 130
Brokerage customer receivables 2,068 1,258 1,413 

Total interest income 557,945 407,036 261,746 

Interest expense
Interest on deposits 265,729 156,252 83,135 
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank advances 14,675 11,912 8,070
Interest on notes payable and other borrowings 5,638 4,178 2,358
Interest on subordinated notes 4,695 2,829 2,891 
Interest on long-term debt - trust preferred securities 18,322 15,106 7,468 

Total interest expense 309,059 190,277 103,922 

Net interest income 248,886 216,759 157,824 
Provision for credit losses 7,057 6,676 6,298 

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 241,829 210,083 151,526 

Non-interest income
Wealth management 31,720 30,008 31,656 
Mortgage banking 22,341 25,913 18,250 
Service charges on deposit accounts 7,146 5,983 4,100 
Gain on sales of premium finance receivables 2,883 6,499 7,347
Administrative services 4,598 4,539 3,984
Fees from covered call and put options 3,157 11,434 11,121 
Gains on available-for-sale securities, net 17 1,063 1,863
Other 19,370 8,118 7,131

Total non-interest income 91,232 93,557 85,452 

Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee benefits 137,008 118,071 94,049 
Equipment 13,529 11,779 9,074
Occupancy, net 19,807 16,176 10,083 
Data processing 8,493 7,129 5,560 
Advertising and marketing 5,074 4,970 3,403
Professional fees 6,172 5,609 5,376
Amortization of other intangible assets 3,938 3,394 1,110
Other 34,799 31,562 27,436 

Total non-interest expense 228,820 198,690 156,091 

Income before income taxes 104,241 104,950 80,887
Income tax expense 37,748 37,934 29,553
Net income $ 66,493 67,016 51,334
Net income per common share - Basic $ 2.66 2.89 2.49
Net income per common share - Diluted $ 2.56 2.75 2.34

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

Compre- Accumulated
hensive Common other compre- Total
income Common Treasury stock Retained hensive income shhareholders’
(loss) stock Surplus stock warrants earnings (loss) equity

Balance at December 31, 2003 $ 20,066 243,626 - 1,012 92,301 (7,168) 349,837 
Comprehensive income:

Net income $  51,334 - -   -   -   51,334 -   51,334 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on securities, net of 
reclassification adjustment (353) -   -   -    -    -    (353) (353) 

Unrealized gains on derivative instruments 163 -   -   -   -   -   163 163
Comprehensive Income 51,144 

Cash dividends declared on common stock -   -   -    -   (4,069) -   (4,069)
Common stock issued for:

Business combinations 1,035 58,903 - -  -   -   59,938 
Exercise of stock options 474 13,004 -   -   -   -   13,478 
Employee stock purchase plan 27 1,303 -   -   -   -   1,330 
Restricted stock awards 28 907 -   -   -   -   935
Exercise of common stock warrants 94 1,236 -   (184) -   -   1,146 
Director compensation plan 5 168 -   -   -   -   173

Balance at December 31, 2004 21,729 319,147 -     828 139,566 (7,358) 473,912 
Comprehensive income:

Net income 67,016 -   -   -   -   67,016 -   67,016 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on securities, net of 
reclassification adjustment (11,081) - - - - - (11,081) (11,081) 

Unrealized gains on derivative instruments 106 - - - - - 106 106 
Comprehensive Income 56,041

Cash dividends declared on common stock - - - - (5,449) - (5,449)
Common stock issued for:

New issuance, net of costs 1,000 54,845 - - - - 55,845 
Business combinations 601 29,986 - - - - 30,587   
Exercise of stock options 461 12,692 - - - - 13,153
Employee stock purchase plan 35 1,679 - - - - 1,714
Restricted stock awards 19 832 - - - - 851
Exercise of common stock warrants 89 935 - (84) - - 940
Director compensation plan 7 310 - - - - 317

Balance at December 31, 2005 23,941 420,426 -     744 201,133 (18,333) 627,911 
Comprehensive income:

Net income 66,493 - - - - 66,493 - 66,493
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on securities, net of
reclassification adjustment 2,051 - - - - - 2,051 2,051

Unrealized losses on derivative instruments (1,479) - - - - - (1,479) (1,479)
Comprehensive Income $ 667,065

Cash dividends declared on common stock - - - - (6,961) - (6,961)
Treasury stock purchases - - (16,343) -- - - (16,343)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

for mortgage servicing rights - - - - 1,069 - 1,069
Sttock-based compensation - 17,282 - - - - 17,282
Common stock issued for:

New issuance, net of costs 200 11,3884 - - - - 11,584
Business combinations 1,123 55,965 - - - - 57,088
Exercise of stock options 401 11,255 - -- - - 11,656
Employee stock purchase plan 37 1,949 - - - - 1,986
Restricted stock awards 73 (73) - - - - -
Exercisee of common stock warrants 14 476 - (63) - - 427
Director compensation plan 13 569 - - - - 582

Balance at December 31, 2006 $ 25,802 519,233 (16,343) 681 261,734 (17,761) 773,346

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Operating Activities:
Net income $ 66,493 67,016    51,334
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for credit losses 7,057 6,676 6,298
Depreciation and amortization 17,622 14,113 9,805
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (1,207) 345 2,956
Shared-based compensation 12,159 4,450 -
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation arrangements 5,281 7,038 8,671
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements (4,565) - -
Net (accretion) amortization of premium on securities (1,1136) 2,638 2,259
Fair market value change of interest rate swaps (1,809) 1,809 -
Originations and purchases of mortgage loans held-for-sale (1,971,894) (2,198,638) (1,520,848)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held-for-sale 1,922,284 2,227,636 1,571,524
Gain on sales of premium finance receivables (2,883) (6,499) (7,347)
Net (increase) decrease in trading securities (714) 1,989 70
Net decrease in brokerage customer receivables 3,860 3,947 2,065
Gain on mortgage loans sold (12,736) (10,054) (11,117)
Gains on available-for-sale securities, net (17) (1,063) (1,863)
(Gain) loss on sales of premises and equipment, net (14) 40 (535)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable and other assets, net (10,3077) (4,507) 8,515
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable and other liabilities, net 13,918 (30) 2,744

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 41,392 116,906 124,531

Investing Activities:
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities 857,199 384,840 179,643
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 372,613 1,068,470 922,732
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (1,069,5596) (1,827,642) (1,477,226)
Proceeds from sales of premium finance receivables 302,882 561,802 495,720
Net cash paid for acquisitions (51,070) (79,222) (7,433)
Net (decrease) increase in interest bearing deposits with banks (6,819) (7,191) 16,769
Net increase in loans (1,211,300) (1,007,090) (1,114,479)
Purchases of Bank Owned Life Insurance - - (7,861)
Purchases of premises and equipment, net (64,824) (47,006) (30,606)

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (870,915) (953,039) (1,022,741)

Financing Activities:
Increase in deposit accounts 717,044 1,038,247 679,237
Increase (decrease) in other borrowings, net 63,476 (133,755) 22,236
Increase (decrease) in notes payable, net 11,750 (5,000) (25,000)
(Decrease) increase in Federal Home Loan Bank advances, net ((36,080) 22,815 136,000
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - trust preferred securities 50,000 40,000 90,000
Redemption of long-term debt - trust preferred securities, net (31,050) (20,000) -
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated note 25,000 - -
Repayment of subordinated note (8,000) - -
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements 4,565 - -
Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 11,584 55,845 -
Issuance of common stock resulting from exercise of stock options, employee 

stock purchase plan and conversion of common stock warrants 8,465 8,769 7,283
Treasury stock purchases (16,343) - -
Dividends paid (6,961) (5,449) (4,069)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 793,450 1,001,472 905,687
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalennts (36,073) 165,339 7,477
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 341,365 176,026 168,549
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 305,292 341,365 176,026

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informmation:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $ 304,088 183,804 102,387
Income taxes, net 33,281 28,618 18,365

Acquisitions:
Fair value of assets acquired, including cash and cash equivalents 483,723 707,406 722,057
Value ascribed to goodwill and other intangible assets 79,832 92,597 72,821
Fair value of liabilities assumed 448,409 660,452 686,281

Non-cash investing activities:
Common stock issued for acquisitions 57,0888 30,587 59,938
Transfer to other real estate owned from loans 2,439 1,456 1,819

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Description of the Business

Wintrust Financial Corporation (“Wintrust” or “the Com-

pany”) is a financial holding company currently engaged

in the business of providing traditional community bank-

ing services to customers in the Chicago metropolitan

area and southern Wisconsin.  Additionally, the Company

operates various non-bank subsidiaries.

Wintrust has 15 wholly-owned bank subsidiaries (collec-

tively, “the Banks”), nine of which the Company started as

de novo institutions, including Lake Forest Bank & Trust

Company (“Lake Forest Bank”), Hinsdale Bank & Trust

Company (“Hinsdale Bank”), North Shore Community

Bank & Trust Company (“North Shore Bank”), Libertyville

Bank & Trust Company (“Libertyville Bank”), Barrington

Bank & Trust Company, N.A. (“Barrington Bank”), Crystal

Lake Bank & Trust Company, N.A. (“Crystal Lake Bank”),

Northbrook Bank & Trust Company (“Northbrook Bank”),

Beverly Bank & Trust Company, N.A. (“Beverly Bank”) and

Old Plank Trail Community Bank, N.A. (“Old Plank Trail

Bank”).  The Company acquired Advantage National Bank

(“Advantage Bank”) in October 2003, Village Bank & Trust

(“Village Bank”) in December 2003, Northview Bank &

Trust (“Northview Bank”) in September 2004, Town Bank

in October 2004, State Bank of The Lakes in January

2005, First Northwest Bank in March 2005 and Hinsbrook

Bank and Trust (“Hinsbrook Bank”) in May 2006.  In

December 2004, Northview Bank’s Wheaton branch

became its main office, it was renamed Wheaton Bank &

Trust (“Wheaton Bank”) and its two Northfield locations

became branches of Northbrook Bank and its Mundelein

location became a branch of Libertyville Bank.  In May

2005, First Northwest Bank was merged into Village

Bank.   In November 2006, Hinsbrook Bank’s Geneva

branch was renamed St. Charles Bank & Trust (“St.

Charles Bank”), its Willowbrook, Downers Grove and

Darien locations became branches of Hinsdale Bank and

its Glen Ellyn location became a branch of Wheaton

Bank.

The Company provides, on a national basis, loans to

businesses to finance insurance premiums on their com-

mercial insurance policies (“premium finance receiv-

ables”) through First Insurance Funding Corporation

(“FIFC”).  FIFC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Crabtree

Capital Corporation (“Crabtree”) which is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Lake Forest Bank. 

Wintrust, through Tricom, Inc. of Milwaukee (“Tricom”),

provides high-yielding short-term accounts receivable

financing (“Tricom finance receivables”) and value-added

out-sourced administrative services, such as data pro-

cessing of payrolls, billing and cash management serv-

ices, to the temporary staffing industry, with clients

located throughout the United States.  Tricom is a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Hinsdale Bank.

The Company provides a full range of wealth manage-

ment services through its trust, asset management and

broker-dealer subsidiaries.  Trust and investment services

are provided at the Banks through the Company’s wholly-

owned subsidiary, Wayne Hummer Trust Company, N.A.

(“WHTC”), a de novo company started in 1998.  Wayne

Hummer Investments, LLC (“WHI”) is a broker-dealer pro-

viding a full range of private client and securities broker-

age services to clients located primarily in the Midwest.

WHI has office locations in a majority of the Company’s

Banks.  WHI also provides a full range of investment serv-

ices to individuals through a network of relationships with

community-based financial institutions primarily in Illinois.

WHI is a wholly-owned subsidiary of North Shore Bank.

Focused Investments LLC was a wholly-owned sub-

sidiary of WHI and was merged into WHI in December

2006.  Wayne Hummer Asset Management Company

(“WHAMC”) provides money management services and

advisory services to individuals, institutions and munici-

pal and tax-exempt organizations, in addition to portfolio

management and financial supervision for a wide range

of pension and profit-sharing plans.  WHAMC is a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Wintrust. WHI, WHAMC and

Focused were acquired in 2002, and are collectively

referred to as the “Wayne Hummer Companies”.  In Feb-

ruary 2003, the Company acquired Lake Forest Capital

Management (“LFCM”), a registered investment advisor,

which was merged into WHAMC. 

In May 2004, the Company acquired SGB Corporation

d/b/a WestAmerica Mortgage Company (“WestAmerica”)

and its affiliate, Guardian Real Estate Services, Inc.

(“Guardian”).  WestAmerica engages primarily in the origi-

nation and purchase of residential mortgages for sale into

the secondary market, and Guardian provides document

preparation and other loan closing services to West-

America and a network of mortgage brokers.  WestAmer-

ica maintains principal origination offices in nine states,

including Illinois, and originates loans in other states

through wholesale and correspondent offices.  West-

America and Guardian are wholly-owned subsidiaries of

Barrington Bank. 

Wintrust Information Technology Services Company

(“WITS”) provides information technology support, item

capture, imaging and statement preparation services to

the Wintrust subsidiaries and is a wholly-owned sub-

sidiary of Wintrust.
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(1)  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Wintrust and its

subsidiaries conform to generally accepted accounting

principles (“GAAP”) in the United States and prevailing

practices of the banking industry.  In the preparation of

the consolidated financial statements, management is

required to make certain estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts contained in the consoli-

dated financial statements.  Management believes that

the estimates made are reasonable; however, changes in

estimates may be required if economic or other condi-

tions change beyond management’s expectations.

Reclassifications of certain prior year amounts have been

made to conform to the current year presentation.  The

following is a summary of the Company’s more signifi-

cant accounting policies.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Wintrust include

the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.  All sig-

nificant intercompany accounts and transactions have

been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Variable Interest Entities

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards

Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of

Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 46”), which addresses the

consolidation rules to be applied to entities defined in FIN

46 as “variable interest entities,” the Company does not

consolidate its interests in subsidiary trusts formed for

purposes of issuing trust preferred securities.  Manage-

ment believes that FIN 46 is not applicable to its various

other investments or interests. 

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income

available to common shareholders by the weighted-aver-

age number of common shares outstanding for the

period.  Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential

dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to

issue common stock were exercised or converted into

common stock or resulted in the issuance of common

stock that then shared in the earnings of the Company.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by the pur-

chase method of accounting.  Under the purchase

method, assets and liabilities of the business acquired

are recorded at their estimated fair values as of the date

of acquisition with any excess of the cost of the acquisi-

tion over the fair value of the net tangible and intangible

assets acquired recorded as goodwill.  Results of opera-

tions of the acquired business are included in the income

statement from the effective date of acquisition.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash

flows, Wintrust considers cash on hand, cash items in the

process of collection, non-interest bearing amounts due

from correspondent banks, federal funds sold and securi-

ties purchased under resale agreements with original

maturities of three months or less, to be cash equivalents.

Securities

The Company classifies securities upon purchase in one

of three categories:  trading, held-to-maturity, or available-

for-sale.  Trading securities are bought principally for the

purpose of selling them in the near term.  Held-to-maturity

securities are those debt securities in which the Com-

pany has the ability and positive intent to hold until matu-

rity.  All other securities are currently classified as avail-

able-for-sale as they may be sold prior to maturity.

Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortized cost,

which represents actual cost adjusted for premium amor-

tization and discount accretion using methods that

approximate the effective interest method.  Available-for-

sale securities are stated at fair value.  Unrealized gains

and losses on available-for-sale securities, net of related

taxes, are included as accumulated other comprehensive

income and reported as a separate component of share-

holders’ equity.  

Trading account securities are stated at fair value.   Real-

ized and unrealized gains and losses from sales and fair

value adjustments are included in other non-interest

income.

A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or

held-to-maturity security below cost that is deemed other

than temporary is charged to earnings, resulting in the

establishment of a new cost basis for the security.  Inter-

est and dividends, including amortization of premiums

and accretion of discounts, are recognized as interest

income when earned.  Realized gains and losses for

securities classified as available-for-sale are included in

non-interest income and are derived using the specific

identification method for determining the cost of securi-

ties sold.

Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreements and
Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

Securities purchased under resale agreements and secu-

rities sold under repurchase agreements are generally

treated as collateralized financing transactions and are
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recorded at the amount at which the securities were

acquired or sold plus accrued interest.  Securities, gener-

ally U.S. government and Federal agency securities,

pledged as collateral under these financing arrangements

cannot be sold by the secured party.  The fair value of

collateral either received from or provided to a third party

is monitored and additional collateral is obtained or

requested to be returned as deemed appropriate. 

Brokerage Customer Receivables

The Company, under an agreement with an out-sourced

securities clearing firm, extends credit to its brokerage

customers to finance their purchases of securities on

margin.  The Company receives income from interest

charged on such extensions of credit.  Brokerage cus-

tomer receivables represent amounts due on margin bal-

ances.  Securities owned by customers are held as col-

lateral for these receivables.

Loans, Allowance for Loan Losses and Allowance for
Losses on Lending-Related Commitments

Loans, which include premium finance receivables, Tri-

com finance receivables and lease financing, are gener-

ally reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of

unearned income.  Interest income is recognized when

earned.  Loan origination fees and certain direct origina-

tion costs are deferred and amortized over the expected

life of the loan as an adjustment to the yield using meth-

ods that approximate the effective interest method.

Finance charges on premium finance receivables are

earned over the term of the loan based on actual funds

outstanding, beginning with the funding date, using a

method which approximates the effective yield method. 

Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of

aggregate cost or market.  Gains from the sale of these

loans into the secondary market are included in non-

interest income. 

Interest income is not accrued on loans where manage-

ment has determined that the borrowers may be unable

to meet contractual principal and/or interest obligations,

or where interest or principal is 90 days or more past

due, unless the loans are adequately secured and in the

process of collection.  Cash receipts on non-accrual

loans are generally applied to the principal balance 

until the remaining balance is considered collectible, 

at which time interest income may be recognized 

when received.

The Company allocates the allowance for loan losses to

specific loan portfolio groups and maintains its allowance

for loan losses at a level believed adequate by manage-

ment to absorb probable losses inherent in the loan port-

folio.  The allowance for loan losses is based on the size

and current risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, an

assessment of Problem Loan Report loans and actual

loss experience, changes in the composition of the loan

portfolio, historical loss experience, changes in lending

policies and procedures, including underwriting stan-

dards and collections, charge-off, and recovery practices,

changes in the experience, ability and depth of lending

management and staff, changes in national and local eco-

nomic and business conditions and developments,

including the condition of various market segments and

changes in the volume and severity of past due and clas-

sified loans and trends in the volume of non-accrual

loans, troubled debt restructurings and other loan modifi-

cations. The allowance for loan losses also includes an

element for estimated probable but undetected losses

and for imprecision in the credit risk models used to cal-

culate the allowance.  The Company reviews Problem

Loan Report loans on a case-by-case basis to allocate a

specific dollar amount of allowance, whereas all other

loans are reserved for based on assigned allowance per-

centages evaluated by loan groupings.  The loan group-

ings utilized by the Company are commercial and com-

mercial real estate, residential real estate, home equity,

premium finance receivables, indirect consumer, Tricom

finance receivables and consumer.  Determination of the

allowance is inherently subjective as it requires signifi-

cant estimates, including the amounts and timing of

expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated

losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on histor-

ical loss experience, and consideration of current envi-

ronmental factors and economic trends, all of which may

be susceptible to significant change.  Loan losses are

charged off against the allowance, while recoveries are

credited to the allowance.  A provision for credit losses is

charged to operations based on management’s periodic

evaluation of the factors previously mentioned, as well as

other pertinent factors.  Evaluations are conducted at

least quarterly and more frequently if deemed necessary.  

In accordance with the American Institute of Certified

Public Accountants Statement of Position (SOP) 03-3,

“Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities

Acquired in a Transfer,” loans acquired after January 1,

2005, including debt securities, are recorded at the

amount of the Company’s initial investment and no valu-

ation allowance is carried over from the seller for individ-

ually-evaluated loans that have evidence of deterioration

in credit quality since origination, and for which it is prob-

able all contractual cash flows on the loan will be unable

to be collected.  Also, the excess of all undiscounted

cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition over

the purchaser’s initial investment are recognized as inter-
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est income on a level-yield basis over the life of the loan.

Subsequent increases in cash flows expected to be col-

lected are recognized prospectively through an adjust-

ment of the loan’s yield over its remaining life, while sub-

sequent decreases are recognized as impairment.  Loans

carried at fair value, mortgage loans held-for-sale, and

loans to borrowers in good standing under revolving

credit agreements are excluded from the scope of SOP

03-3.

In estimating expected losses, the Company evaluates

loans for impairment in accordance with Statement of

Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) 114, “Accounting

by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.”  A loan is consid-

ered impaired when, based on current information and

events, it is probable that a creditor will be unable to col-

lect all amounts due pursuant to the contractual terms of

the loan.  Impaired loans are generally considered by the

Company to be commercial and commercial real estate

loans that are non-accrual loans, restructured loans or

loans with principal and/or interest at risk, even if the loan

is current with all payments of principal and interest.

Impairment is measured by estimating the fair value of

the loan based on the present value of expected cash

flows, the market price of the loan, or the fair value of the

underlying collateral less costs to sell.  If the estimated

fair value of the loan is less than the recorded book value,

a valuation allowance is established as a component of

the allowance for loan losses.

The Company also maintains an allowance for lending-

related commitments, specifically unfunded loan com-

mitments and letters of credit, to provide for the risk of

loss inherent in these arrangements.  The allowance is

computed using a methodology similar to that used to

determine the allowance for loan losses.  This allowance

is included in other liabilities on the statement of condi-

tion while the corresponding provision for these losses is

recorded as a component of the provision for credit

losses.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company originates mortgage loans for sale to the

secondary market, the majority of which are sold without

retaining servicing rights.  There are certain loans, how-

ever, that are originated and sold to governmental agen-

cies, with servicing rights retained.  Mortgage servicing

rights (MSR) associated with loans originated and sold,

where servicing is retained, are capitalized at the time of

sale at the future net cash flows expected to be realized

for performing the servicing activities, carried at fair value

and included in other assets in the consolidated state-

ments of condition.  The change in MSR fair value is

recorded as a component of mortgage banking revenue

in non-interest income in the consolidated statements of

income.  For purposes of measuring fair value, a third

party valuation is obtained.  This valuation stratifies the

servicing rights into pools based on product type and

interest rate. The fair value of each servicing rights pool

is calculated based on the present value of estimated

future cash flows using a discount rate commensurate

with the risk associated with that pool, given current mar-

ket conditions.  Estimates of fair value include assump-

tions about prepayment speeds, interest rates and other

factors which are subject to change over time.  Changes

in these underlying assumptions could cause the fair

value of mortgage servicing rights to change significantly

in the future.  Prior to the adoption of SFAS 156, “Account-

ing for the Servicing of Financial Assets – An Amendment

of FASB Statement No. 140” (“SFAS 156”) on January 1,

2006, the capitalized value of mortgage servicing rights

were carried at the lower of the initial carrying value,

adjusted for amortization, or estimated fair value.

Sales of Premium Finance Receivables 

Sales of premium finance receivables to an unrelated

third party are recognized in accordance with SFAS 140,

“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial

Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities.”  The Company

recognizes as a gain or loss the difference between the

proceeds received and the allocated cost basis of the

loans.  The allocated cost basis of the loans is deter-

mined by allocating the Company’s initial investment in

the loan between the loan and the Company’s retained

interests, based on their relative fair values.  The retained

interests include assets for the servicing rights and inter-

est only strip and a liability for the Company’s guarantee

obligation pursuant to the terms of the sale agreement.

The servicing assets and interest only strips are included

in other assets and the liability for the guarantee obliga-

tion is included in other liabilities.  If actual cash flows are

less than estimated, the servicing assets and interest

only strips would be impaired and charged to earnings.

Loans sold in these transactions have terms of less than

twelve months, resulting in minimal prepayment risk.

The Company typically makes a clean-up call by repur-

chasing the remaining loans in the pools sold after

approximately 10 months from the sale date.  Upon

repurchase, the loans are recorded in the Company’s pre-

mium finance receivables portfolio and any remaining

balance of the Company’s retained interest is recorded as

an adjustment to the gain on sale of premium finance

receivables.
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Administrative Services Revenue 

Administrative services revenue is recognized as serv-

ices are performed, in accordance with the accrual

method of accounting.  These services include providing

data processing of payrolls, billing and cash manage-

ment services to Tricom’s clients in the temporary staffing

services industry. 

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumu-

lated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and

amortization are computed using the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.  Use-

ful lives range from two to ten years for furniture, fixtures

and equipment, two to five years for software and 

computer-related equipment and seven to 39 years for

buildings and improvements.  Land improvements are

amortized over a period of 15 years and leasehold

improvements are amortized over the shorter of the use-

ful life of the improvement or the term of the respective

lease. Land and antique furnishings and artwork are not

subject to depreciation. Expenditures for major additions

and improvements are capitalized, and maintenance and

repairs are charged to expense as incurred.  Internal

costs related to the configuration and installation of new

software and the modification of existing software that

provides additional functionality are capitalized.  Equip-

ment owned that is leased to customers under leasing

contracts characterized as operating leases is also

included in premises and equipment. 

Long-lived depreciable assets are evaluated periodically

for impairment when events or changes in circumstances

indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Impairment exists when the expected undiscounted

future cash flows of a long-lived asset are less than its

carrying value.  In that event, a loss is recognized for the

difference between the carrying value and the estimated

fair value of the asset based on a quoted market price, if

applicable, or a discounted cash flow analysis.  Impair-

ment losses are recognized in other non-interest

expense.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned is comprised of real estate

acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loans and is

included in other assets.  Other real estate owned is

recorded at its estimated fair value less estimated selling

costs at the date of transfer, with any excess of the

related loan balance over the fair value less expected

selling costs charged to the allowance for loan losses.

Subsequent changes in value are reported as adjust-

ments to the carrying amount and are recorded in other

non-interest expense.  Gains and losses upon sale, if any,

are also charged to other non-interest income or

expense, as appropriate.  At December 31, 2006 and

2005, other real estate owned totaled $572,000 and $1.4

million, respectively.  

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisi-

tion over the fair value of net assets acquired.  Other

intangible assets represent purchased assets that also

lack physical substance but can be distinguished from

goodwill because of contractual or other legal rights or

because the asset is capable of being sold or exchanged

either on its own or in combination with a related 

contract, asset or liability.  In accordance with SFAS 142,

“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”  goodwill is not

amortized, but rather is tested for impairment on an

annual basis or more frequently when events warrant.

Intangible assets which have finite lives are amortized

over their estimated useful lives and also are subject to

impairment testing.  All of the Company’s other intangible

assets have finite lives and are amortized over varying

periods not exceeding ten years.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

The Company owns bank-owned life insurance (“BOLI”)

on certain executives.  BOLI balances are recorded at

their cash surrender values and are included in other

assets.  Changes in the cash surrender values are

included in non-interest income.  At December 31, 2006

and 2005, BOLI totaled $82.1 million and $70.3 million,

respectively.

Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into derivative transactions princi-

pally to protect against the risk of adverse price or inter-

est rate movements on the future cash flows or the value

of certain assets and liabilities. The Company is also

required to recognize certain contracts and commit-

ments, including certain commitments to fund mortgage

loans held-for-sale, as derivatives when the characteris-

tics of those contracts and commitments meet the defini-

tion of a derivative.  The Company accounts for deriva-

tives in accordance with SFAS 133, “Accounting for

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which

requires that all derivative instruments be recorded in the

statement of condition at fair value.  The accounting for

changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument

depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies

as part of a hedging relationship and further, on the type

of hedging relationship. 
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Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship

to mitigate exposure to changes in the fair value of an

asset or liability attributable to a particular risk, such as

interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges. Deriv-

ative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to

mitigate exposure to variability in expected future cash

flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are con-

sidered cash flow hedges. Formal documentation of the

relationship between a derivative instrument and a

hedged asset or liability,  as well as the risk-management

objective and strategy for undertaking each hedge trans-

action and an assessment of effectiveness is required at

inception to apply hedge accounting.  In addition, formal

documentation of ongoing effectiveness testing is

required to maintain hedge accounting.

Fair value hedges are accounted for by recording the fair

value of the derivative instrument and the fair value

related to the risk being hedged of the hedged asset or

liability on the statement of condition with corresponding

offsets recorded in the income statement. The adjust-

ment to the hedged asset or liability is included in the

basis of the hedged item, while the fair value of the 

derivative is recorded as a freestanding asset or liability.

Actual cash receipts or payments and related amounts

accrued during the period on derivatives included in a fair

value hedge relationship are recorded as adjustments to

the interest income or expense recorded on the hedged

asset or liability.  

Cash flow hedges are accounted for by recording the fair

value of the derivative instrument on the statement of

condition as either a freestanding asset or liability, with a

corresponding offset recorded in other comprehensive

income within shareholders’ equity, net of deferred taxes.

Amounts are reclassified from other comprehensive

income to interest expense in the period or periods the

hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. 

Under both the fair value and cash flow hedge scenarios,

changes in the fair value of derivatives not considered to

be highly effective in hedging the change in fair value or

the expected cash flows of the hedged item are recog-

nized in earnings as non-interest income during the

period of the change. 

Derivative instruments that do not qualify as hedges pur-

suant to SFAS 133 are reported on the statement of con-

dition at fair value and the changes in fair value are rec-

ognized in earnings as non-interest income during the

period of the change. 

Commitments to fund mortgage loans (interest rate locks) to

be sold into the secondary market and forward commit-

ments for the future delivery of these mortgage loans are

accounted for as derivatives not qualifying for hedge

accounting. Fair values of these mortgage derivatives are

estimated based on changes in mortgage rates from the date

of the commitments. Changes in the fair values of these

derivatives are included in mortgage banking revenue.

Periodically, the Company sells options to an unrelated

bank or dealer for the right to purchase certain securities

held within the Banks’ investment portfolios.  These

option transactions are designed primarily to increase the

total return associated with holding these securities as

earning assets.  These transactions do not qualify as

hedges pursuant to SFAS 133 and, accordingly, changes

in fair values of these contracts, are reported in other non-

interest income. There were no covered call option con-

tracts outstanding as of December 31, 2006 or 2005.

Long-term Debt — Trust Preferred Securities 
Offering Costs

In connection with the Company’s currently outstanding

Long-term debt — trust preferred securities, approxi-

mately $726,000 of offering costs were incurred, includ-

ing underwriting fees, legal and professional fees, and

other costs.  These costs are included in other assets

and are being amortized as an adjustment to interest

expense using a method that approximates the effective

interest method.  As of December 31, 2006, the unamor-

tized balance of these costs was approximately

$460,000. See Note 15 for further information about the

Long-term debt — trust preferred securities.    

Trust Assets, Assets Under Management and 
Brokerage Assets

Assets held in fiduciary or agency capacity for customers

are not included in the consolidated financial statements

as they are not assets of Wintrust or its subsidiaries.  Fee

income is recognized on an accrual basis and is included

as a component of non-interest income.

Income Taxes

Wintrust and its subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal

income tax return.  The subsidiaries provide for income

taxes on a separate return basis and remit to Wintrust

amounts determined to be currently payable.

Income tax expense is recorded based on the liability

method.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recog-

nized for the estimated future tax consequences attribut-

able to differences between the financial statement car-

rying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their

respective tax bases.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are measured using currently enacted tax rates in effect
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for the years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on

deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates

is recognized in income in the period that includes the

enactment date.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted provisions of

FASB Statement No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”

(“SFAS 123R”), using the modified prospective transition

method. Under this transition method, compensation

cost is recognized in the financial statements beginning

January 1, 2006, based on the requirements of SFAS

123R for all share-based payments granted after that date

and based on the grant date fair value estimated in accor-

dance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, “Account-

ing for Stock-Based Compensation” for all share-based

payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of

December 31, 2005.  Results for prior periods have not

been restated. 

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based

compensation using the intrinsic value method set forth

in APB 25, as permitted by SFAS 123. The intrinsic value

method provides that compensation expense for

employee stock options is generally not recognized if the

exercise price of the option equals or exceeds the fair

value of the stock on the date of grant. As a result, for

periods prior to 2006, compensation expense was gen-

erally not recognized in the Consolidated Statements of

Income for stock options. Compensation expense has

always been recognized for restricted share awards. 

Compensation cost is measured as the fair value of the

awards on their date of grant.  A Black-Scholes model is

utilized to estimate the fair value of stock options and the

market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant

is used to estimate the fair value of restricted stock

awards.  Compensation cost is recognized over the

required service period, generally defined as the vesting

period.  For awards with graded vesting, compensation

cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requi-

site service period for the entire award.

SFAS 123R requires the recognition of stock based com-

pensation for the number of awards that are ultimately

expected to vest. As a result, recognized stock compen-

sation expense was reduced for estimated forfeitures

prior to vesting primarily based on historical forfeiture

data.  Estimated forfeitures will be reassessed in subse-

quent periods and may change based on new facts and

circumstances.  Prior to January 1, 2006, actual forfei-

tures were accounted for as they occurred for purposes

of required pro forma stock compensation disclosures. 

The Company issues new shares to satisfy option exer-

cises and vesting of restricted shares.

The following table reflects the Company’s pro forma net

income and earnings per share as if compensation

expense for the Company’s stock options, determined

based on the fair value at the date of grant consistent

with the method of SFAS 123, had been included in the

determination of the Company’s net income for the years

ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004

Net income: 
As reported $  67,016 51,334
Compensation cost of stock 

options based on fair value,
net of related tax effect (3,313) (2,304)

Pro forma $  63,703 49,030
Earnings per share - Basic:

As reported $ 2.89    2.49
Compensation cost of stock 

options based on fair value,
net of related tax effect (0.14) (0.12)

Pro forma $    2.75 2.37
Earnings per share - Diluted:

As reported $     2.75    2.34
Compensation cost of stock 

options based on fair value,
net of related tax effect (0.13) (0.11)

Pro forma $    2.62 2.23

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed in the period in which

they are incurred.

Start-up Costs

Start-up and organizational costs are expensed in the

period in which they are incurred. 

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other

comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income

includes unrealized gains and losses on securities avail-

able-for-sale, net of deferred taxes, and adjustments

related to cash flow hedges, net of deferred taxes.
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(2)  Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN

48”), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an

interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for

Income Taxes,” effective for the Company beginning on

January 1, 2007.  FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for

income taxes by prescribing the minimum recognition

threshold a tax position is required to meet before being

recognized in the financial statements.  FIN 48 also pro-

vides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classifi-

cation, interest and penalties, accounting in interim peri-

ods, disclosure and transition.  The adoption of FIN 48

will not materially impact the consolidated financial 

statements.    

Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155,

“Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments”

(“SFAS 155”) which amends SFAS 133. SFAS 155 estab-

lishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized

financial assets to identify hybrid instruments that contain

embedded derivatives requiring bifurcation. SFAS 155

permits companies to irrevocably elect, on a deal by deal

basis, fair value re-measurement for any hybrid instru-

ment that contains an embedded derivative that other-

wise would require bifurcation. SFAS 155 is effective for

all financial instruments acquired or issued in fiscal years

beginning after September 15, 2006. The adoption of

SFAS 155 will not materially impact the consolidated

financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Finan-

cial Accounting Standards 157, “Fair Value Measure-

ments” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 establishes a framework

for measuring fair value and requires expanded disclo-

sure about the information used to measure fair value.

The statement applies whenever other statements

require, or permit, assets or liabilities to be measured at

fair value. The statement does not expand the use of fair

value in any new circumstances and is effective January

1, 2008.  The Company is currently assessing the impact

of SFAS 157 on its financial statements.

Effects of Prior Year Misstatements

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Com-

mission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Con-

sidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When

Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial State-

ments” (“SAB 108”), which provides interpretive guidance

on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior

year misstatements should be considered in quantifying

a current year misstatement. SAB 108 is effective for fis-

cal years ending after November 15, 2006.  The adoption

of SAB 108 did not materially impact the consolidated

financial statements.

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an

Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115” (“SFAS 159”)

which permits entities to measure eligible financial instru-

ments and certain other items at fair value.  SFAS 159 is

effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,

2007, however early adoption is permitted.  The Com-

pany is assessing the impact of SFAS 159 on its financial

statements.

(3)  Available-for-Sale Securities

A summary of the available-for-sale securities portfolio presenting carrying amounts and gross unrealized gains and

losses as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
cost gains losses Value cost gains losses Value

U.S. Treasury $ 35,990 8 (1,926) 34,072 36,577 - (1,991) 34,586 
U.S. Government agencies 696,946 396 (6,768) 690,574 724,273 79 (9,637) 714,715 
Municipal 49,602 206 (599) 49,209 48,853 - (456) 48,397 
Corporate notes and other debt 61,246 391 (1,5557) 60,080 8,467 - (109) 8,358 
Mortgage-backed 884,130 405 (18,247) 866,288 891,799 138 (17,870) 874,067 
Federal Reserve/FHLB stock  

and other equity securities 138,283 1,210 - 139,493 119,103 158 -   119,261 
Total available-for-sale securities $1,866,197 2,616 (29,097) 1,839,716 1,829,072 375 (30,063) 1,799,384 
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The following table presents the portion of the Company’s available-for-sale securities portfolio which has gross unreal-

ized losses, reflecting the length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at

December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Continuous unrealized Continuous unrealized
losses existing for losses existing for

less than 12 months greater than 12 months Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

value losses value losses value losses
U.S. Treasury $ -   - 32,540   (1,926)   32,540 (1,926) 
U.S. Government agencies 90,635 (46) 279,716   (6,722)   370,351 (6,768)
Municipal 4,910 (273) 20,158  (326)   25,068 (599) 
Corporate notes and other debt 51,582   (1,478)  7,846 (79) 59,428 (1,557) 
Mortgage-backed 36,635 (579) 725,534   (17,668)   762,169 (18,247)  
Total $    183,762   (2,376)    1,065,794 (26,721) 1,249,556 (29,097)

Management does not believe any individual unrealized loss as of December 31, 2006 represents an other-than-tempo-

rary impairment.  The fair value of available-for-sale securities includes investments totaling approximately $1.0 billion

with unrealized losses of $26.7 million, which have been in an unrealized loss position for greater than 12 months. U.S.

Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and Mortgage-backed securities totaling $1.0 billion with unrealized losses of $26.3

million are primarily fixed-rate investments with temporary impairment resulting from increases in interest rates since the

purchase of the investments.   The Company has the intent and ability to hold these investments until such time as the

value recovers or maturity.   

The amortized cost and fair value of securities as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, by contractual maturity, are shown

in the following table.  Contractual maturities may differ from actual maturities as borrowers may have the right to call or

repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.  Mortgage-backed securities are not included in the matu-

rity categories in the following maturity summary as actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because the

underlying mortgages may be called or prepaid without penalties (in thousands):

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair  

Cost Value Cost Value  
Due in one year or less $ 459,736 458,858 442,526 440,182
Due in one to five years 58,404 57,814 106,893 105,424
Due in five to ten years 295,613 287,258 254,756 246,516
Due after ten years 30,031 30,005 13,995 13,934 
Mortgage-backed 884,130 866,,288 891,799 874,067
Federal Reserve/FHLB Stock

and other equity 138,283 139,493 119,103 119,261 
Total available-for-sale securities $ 1,866,197 1,839,716 1,829,072 1,799,384 

In 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company had gross realized gains on sales of available-for-sale securities of $510,000, $1.1

million and $2.2 million, respectively.  During 2006, 2005 and 2004, gross realized losses on sales of available-for-sale

securities totaled $493,000, $40,000 and $358,000, respectively.  Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities dur-

ing 2006, 2005 and 2004, were $373 million, $1.1 billion and $923 million, respectively.  At December 31, 2006 and

2005, securities having a carrying value of $910.1 million and $774.5 million, respectively, were pledged as collateral for

public deposits, trust deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances and securities sold under repurchase agree-

ments. At December 31, 2006, there were no securities of a single issuer, other than U.S. Treasury obligations and other

U.S. Government-sponsored agency securities, which exceeded 10% of shareholders’ equity.
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(4)  Loans

A summary of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2006

and 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Commercial and commercial real estate $ 4,068,437 3,161,734
Home equity 666,471 624,337
Residential real estate 207,059 275,729
Premium finance receivables 1,165,846 814,681
Indirect consumer loans 249,534 203,002
Tricom finance receivables 43,975 49,453
Consumer and other loans 95,158 84,935
Total loans $ 6,496,480 5,213,871

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, premium finance receiv-

ables were recorded net of unearned income of $27.9 mil-

lion and $16.0 million, respectively.  Total loans include net

deferred loan fees and costs and fair value purchase

accounting adjustments totaling $5.3 million at December

31, 2006 and $3.9 million at December 31, 2005.

Certain real estate loans, including mortgage loans held-for-

sale, and home equity loans with balances totaling approx-

imately $607.1 million and $606.9 million, at December

31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were pledged as collat-

eral to secure the availability of borrowings from certain

Federal agency banks.  At December 31, 2006, approxi-

mately $364.1 million of these pledged loans are included

in a blanket pledge of qualifying loans to the FHLB.  The

remaining $243.0 million of pledged loans was used to

secure potential borrowings at the Federal Reserve Bank

discount window.  At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the

Banks borrowed $325.5 million and $349.3 million,

respectively, from the FHLB in connection with these col-

lateral arrangements.  See Note 12 for a summary of these

borrowings.

The Company’s loan portfolio is generally comprised of

loans to consumers and small to medium-sized busi-

nesses located within the geographic market areas that the

Banks serve.  The premium finance receivables and Tri-

com finance receivables portfolios are made to customers

on a national basis and the majority of the indirect con-

sumer loans are generated through a network of local auto-

mobile dealers.  As a result, the Company strives to main-

tain a loan portfolio that is diverse in terms of loan type,

industry, borrower and geographic concentrations.  Such

diversification reduces the exposure to economic down-

turns that may occur in different segments of the economy

or in different industries.  

It is the policy of the Company to review each prospective

credit in order to determine the appropriateness and, when

required, the adequacy of security or collateral necessary

to obtain when making a loan.  The type of collateral,

when required, will vary from liquid assets to real estate.

The Company seeks to assure access to collateral, in the

event of default, through adherence to state lending laws

and the Company’s credit monitoring procedures. 

Certain officers and directors of Wintrust and certain cor-

porations and individuals related to such persons bor-

rowed funds from the Banks.  These loans were made at

substantially the same terms, including interest rates and

collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable

transactions with other borrowers. A rollforward of these

loans is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2005 $  5,772
New loans and advances 9,028
Maturities and paydowns (6,657)

Balance at December 31, 2006 $  8,143

(5)  Allowance for Loan Losses and Allowance for    
Losses on Lending-Related Commitments

A summary of the activity in the allowance for loan losses

for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004

is as follows (in thousands): 

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Allowance at beginning of year $ 40,283 34,227 25,541
Provision for credit losses 7,057 6,676 6,298
Allowance acquired in 

business combinations 3,852 4,792 5,110
Reclassification from/(to) 

allowance for losses on
lending-related commitments 92 (491) -

Charge-offs (8,477) (6,523) (4,870)
Recoveries 3,248 1,602 2,148
Allowance at end of year $ 46,055 40,283 34,227

The Company also maintains an allowance for lending-

related commitments, specifically unfunded loan com-

mitments and letters of credit.  The balance of the

allowance for lending-related commitments was

$457,000 and $491,000 at December 31, 2006 and

2005, respectively.     
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A summary of non-accrual and impaired loans and their

impact on interest income as well as loans past due

greater than 90 days and still accruing interest are as fol-

lows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Total non-accrual loans 
(as of year-end) $ 23,509 18,693 13,724

Reduction of interest income 
from non-accrual loans 1,126 1,258 522

Average balance of impaired loans 10,230 9,331 6,681
Interest income recognized

on impaired loans 140 581 73
Loans past due greater than 

90 days and still accruing 13,365 7,496 4,864

Management evaluates the value of the impaired loans

primarily by using the fair value of the collateral.  A sum-

mary of impaired loan information at December 31, 2006

and 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Impaired loans $ 11,191 11,530
Impaired loans that had allocated 

specific allowance for loan losses 6,165 6,383
Allocated allowance for loan losses 1,400 1,319

(6)  Mortgage Servicing Rights

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the pro-

visions of SFAS 156 and elected the fair value measure-

ment method for mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”).

Upon adoption, the carrying value of the MSRs was

increased to fair value by recognizing a cumulative effect

adjustment of $1.7 million pre-tax, or $1.1 million after

tax. Following is a summary of the changes in the carry-

ing value of MSRs, accounted for at fair value, for the year

ending December 31, 2006 (in thousands):   

2006
Balance at beginning of year $ 3,630
Cumulative effect of change in accounting 1,727
Additions from loans sold with servicing retained 579
Changes in fair value due to:

Payoffs and paydowns (802)
Changes in valuation inputs or assumptions (103)

Fair value at end of period $ 5,031

Unpaid principal balance of mortgage
loans serviced for others $ 494,695

Prior to January 1, 2006, MSRs were accounted for at the

lower of their initial carrying value, net of accumulated

amortization, or fair value.  MSRs were periodically eval-

uated for impairment, and a valuation allowance was

established through a charge to income when the carry-

ing value exceeded the fair value and was believed to be

temporary.  

Changes in the carrying value of MSRs, accounted for

using the amortization method, for the years ended

December 31, 2005 and 2004 follow (in thousands): 

2005 2004
Balance at beginning of year $     2,179 2,277
Balance acquired in business combinations 2,064 -
Additions from loans sold with 

servicing retained 810 969
Amortization (1,423) (1,067)
Balance at end of period $     3,630 2,179

Fair value at end of period $     5,357 2,669

Unpaid principal balance of mortgage
loans serviced for others $ 521,520  296,758

There was no valuation allowance at December 31, 2005

or December 31, 2004.

The capitalization of MSRs on loans sold as well as

changes in fair values are recognized in mortgage bank-

ing revenue.  MSRs are subject to decline in value from

prepayment of the underlying loans.  The Company does

not specifically hedge its MSRs.

Fair values are provided by a third party which uses a dis-

counted cash flow model that incorporates the objective

characteristics of the portfolio as well as subjective valu-

ation parameters that they believe purchasers of servic-

ing would apply to such portfolios sold into the second-

ary market. The subjective factors include loan

prepayment speeds, interest rates, servicing costs and

other economic factors. 

(7) Business Combinations

The Company completed one business combination in

2006.  The acquisition was accounted for under the pur-

chase method of accounting; thus, the results of opera-

tions prior to the effective date of acquisition is not

included in the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.  Goodwill, core deposit intangibles and other

purchase accounting adjustments were recorded upon

the completion of the acquisition. 
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On May 31, 2006, Wintrust completed the acquisition of

Hinsbrook Bancshares, Inc. (“HBI”) and its wholly-owned

subsidiary, Hinsbrook Bank & Trust, which has five Illinois

locations in Willowbrook, Downers Grove, Darien, Glen

Ellyn and Geneva.  HBI was acquired for a total purchase

price of $115.1 million, consisting of $58.2 million cash,

the issuance of 1,120,033 shares of Wintrust’s common

stock (then valued at $56.8 million) and vested stock

options valued at $65,000.  In the fourth quarter of 2006,

the Willowbrook, Downers Grove and Darien branch loca-

tions of Hinsbrook Bank & Trust were merged into Hins-

dale Bank, while the Glen Ellyn branch was merged into

Wheaton Bank.  The Hinsbrook Bank’s Geneva branch

was renamed St. Charles Bank.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values

of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the

date of acquisition for Hinsbrook (in thousands):

Assets:
Cash and due from banks $       7,146
Available-for-sale securities 77,713
Loans 378,883
Allowance for loan losses (3,851)
Goodwill 71,902
Other intangible assets 7,930
Other assets 23,832
Total assets $   563,555

Liabilities and Equity:
Deposits $   423,102
Federal funds purchased 2,800
Borrowings 20,395
Other liabilities 2,112
Equity 115,146
Total liabilities and equity $   563,555

(8)  Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

A summary of goodwill by business segment is as fol-

lows (in thousands):

Jan 1, Goodwill Impairment Dec 31,
2006 Acquired Losses 2006

Banking $ 173,640 72,165 - 245,805
Tricom 8,958 - - 8,958
Wealth management 14,118 55 - 14,173
Total $   196,716 72,220 - 268,936

Approximately $24.9 million of the December 31, 2006

balance of goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.

A summary of finite-lived intangible assets as of Decem-

ber 31, 2006 and 2005 and the expected amortization as

of December 31, 2006 is follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005

Wealth management segment: 
Customer list intangibles

Gross carrying amount $ 3,252 3,252
Accumulated amortization (2,463) (2,071)
Net carrying amount 789 1,181

Banking segment: 
Core deposit intangibles

Gross carrying amount 27,918 19,988
Accumulated amortization (7,108) (3,562)
Net carrying amount 20,810 16,426

Total intangible assets, net $ 21,599 17,607

Estimated amortization
2007 $ 3,862
2008 3,129
2009 2,717
2010 2,381
2011 2,253

The customer list intangibles recognized in connection

with the acquisitions of LFCM in 2003 and WHAMC in

2002, are being amortized over seven-year periods on an

accelerated basis.  The core deposit intangibles recog-

nized in connection with the Company’s seven bank

acquisitions in the last four years are being amortized

over ten-year periods on an accelerated basis.  Total

amortization expense associated with finite-lived intangi-

bles in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $3.9 million, $3.4 mil-

lion and $1.1 million, respectively.

(9)  Premises and Equipment, Net

A summary of premises and equipment at December 31,

2006 and 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Land $ 81,458 53,033
Buildings and leasehold improvements 204,249 175,039
Furniture, equipment and

computer software 71,495 61,407
Construction in progress 21,545 13,081

378,747 302,560
Less:  Accumulated depreciation

and amortization 67,721 54,735
311,026 247,825

Equipment under leasing contracts,
net of accumulated depreciation 15 50

Total premises and equipment, net $ 311,041 247,875
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Depreciation and amortization expense related to prem-

ises and equipment, excluding equipment under leasing

contracts, totaled $13.5 million in 2006, $11.9 million in

2005 and $9.2 million in 2004.  Depreciation expense

related to equipment under leasing contracts totaled

$15,000 in 2006, $206,000 in 2005 and $582,000

in 2004.

(10)  Deposits

The following is a summary of deposits at December 31,

2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

22000066 2005

Non-interest bearing accounts $$          669999,,220033          620,091

NOW accounts 884444,,887755 704,640

Wealth Management deposits 552299,,773300 421,301

Money market accounts 669900,,993388 610,554

Savings accounts 330044,,336622 308,323

Time certificates of deposits 44,,880000,,113322 4,064,525

Total deposits $$    77,,886699,,224400    6,729,434

The scheduled maturities of time certificates of deposits at

December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

22000066 2005

Due in one year $$    33,,770044,,550077 2,732,656

Due in one to two years 664433,,225522 631,656

Due in two to three years 118855,,880033 216,086

Due in three to four years 110066,,111111 160,216

Due in four to five years 115577,,778833 87,240

Due after five years 22,,667766 236,671

Total time certificates of deposits $$    44,,880000,,113322 4,064,525

Certificates of deposit in amounts of $100,000 or more

approximated $2.64 billion and $2.15 billion at December

31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  

(11)  Notes Payable

The notes payable balance was $12.8 million and $1.0

million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

These balances represent the outstanding balances on a

$51.0 million revolving loan agreement (“Agreement”)

with an unaffiliated bank.  The Agreement consists of a

$50.0 million revolving note, which matures on June 1,

2007 and a $1.0 million note that matures on June 1,

2015.  At December 31, 2006, the notes payable balance

includes the $1.0 million note and an $11.8 million out-

standing balance on the $50.0 million revolving note.

During 2006, interest was calculated at a floating rate

equal to, at the Company’s option, (1) LIBOR plus 140

basis points  or (2) the greater of the lender’s prime rate or

the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points.  At Decem-

ber 31, 2006 and 2005, the interest rates were 6.77% and

5.81%, respectively. 

The Agreement is secured by the stock of some of the

Banks and contains several restrictive covenants, includ-

ing the maintenance of various capital adequacy levels,

asset quality and profitability ratios, and certain restric-

tions on dividends and other indebtedness.  At Decem-

ber 31, 2006, the Company is in compliance with all debt

covenants.  The Agreement may be utilized, as needed,

to provide capital to fund continued growth at the Com-

pany’s Banks, expand its wealth management business,

fund possible acquisitions of financial institutions or other

finance related companies, purchase treasury stock or

for other general corporate matters.

(12)  Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

A summary of the outstanding FHLB advances at Decem-

ber 31, 2006 and 2005, is as follows (in thousands):

22000066 2005

2.13% advance due February 2006 $$                    -- 25,000

2.74% advance due February 2006 -- 2,001

1.97% advance due July 2006 - 499

4.30% advance due July 2006 - 1,009 

3.13% advance due September 2006 - 702 

2.78% advance due October 2006 - 4,955 

2.99% advance due November 2006 - 750 

2.77% advance due February 2007 2255,,000000 25,000 

4.89% advance due November 2007 33,,003344 3,070 

5.37% advance due February 2008 22,,551188 - 

3.32% advance due March 2008 22,,550055 2,509 

4.36% advance due March 2008 22,,000000 2,000 

2.72% advance due May 2008 11,,998866 1,977 

4.78% advance due October 2008 33,,000000 3,000 

2.84% advance due May 2009 - 50,000 

4.40% advance due July 2009 22,,004444 2,061 

4.85% advance due November 2009 33,,000000 3,000 

4.58% advance due March 2010 55,,002266 5,035 

4.61% advance due March 2010 22,,550000 2,500 

4.50% advance due September 2010 44,,991188 - 

4.88% advance due November 2010 33,,000000 3,000 

4.60% advance due July 2011 3300,,000000 30,000 

3.30% advance due November 2011 2255,,000000 25,000 

3.95% advance due November 2011 - 35,000 

4.33% advance due November 2011 - 6,249 

4.79% advance due June 2012 2255,,000000 25,000 

3.78% advance due February 2015 2255,,000000 25,000 

4.12% advance due February 2015 2255,,000000 25,000 

3.70% advance due June 2015 4400,,000000 40,000 

4.55% advance due February 2016 4455,,000000 - 

4.85% advance due May 2016 5500,,000000 -

Federal Home Loan Bank advances $$  332255,,553311 349,317
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At December 31, 2006 all of the FHLB advances were

fixed-rate term obligations.  All of the advances due after

2011 have varying one-time call dates ranging from June

2007 to February 2011 and the $2.5 million advance due

February 2008 has a quarterly call provision. FHLB

advances are stated at par value of the debt adjusted for

unamortized fair value adjustments recorded in connec-

tion with advances acquired through acquisitions.   

At December 31, 2006, the weighted average contractual

interest rate on FHLB advances was 4.18% and the

weighted average effective interest rate, which reflects

amortization of fair value adjustments associated with

FHLB advances acquired through acquisitions, was

4.16%.

FHLB advances are collateralized by qualifying residen-

tial real estate loans and certain securities. The Banks

have arrangements with the FHLB whereby based on

available collateral, they could have borrowed an addi-

tional $164 million at December 31, 2006.

(13)  Subordinated Notes
A summary of the subordinated notes at December 31,

2006 and 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Subordinated note, due October 29, 2012 $ 25,000 25,000
Subordinated note, due May 1, 2013 25,000 25,000
Subordinated note, due May 29, 2015 25,000 -
Total subordinated notes $ 75,000 50,000

The subordinated notes were issued in 2002, 2003 and

2005. Each subordinated note has a term of ten years

and may be redeemed by the Company at any time prior

to maturity.  The subordinated note issued in 2005 was

signed by the Company on October 25, 2005, but was

not funded until May 2006.  The proceeds from the

issuance were used to fund the acquisition of HBI.  Each

note requires annual principal payments of $5.0 million

beginning in the sixth year of the note.  During 2006, the

interest rate on each subordinated note was calculated at

a rate equal to LIBOR plus 1.60%.  At December 31, 2006,

the weighted average contractual interest rate on the sub-

ordinated notes was 6.97%.  In connection with the

issuances of the subordinated notes in 2002 and 2003,

the Company incurred costs totaling $1.0 million.  These

costs are included in other assets and are being amor-

tized to interest expense using a method that approxi-

mates the effective interest method. At December 31,

2006 and 2005, the unamortized balance of these costs

were $508,000 and $636,000, respectively.  No issuance

costs were incurred in connection with the subordinated

note issued in 2005. The subordinated notes qualify as

Tier II capital under the regulatory capital requirements.

(14)  Other Borrowings

The following is a summary of other borrowings at

December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Federal funds purchased $ - 235
Securities sold under 

repurchase agreements 159,883 93,312
Other 2,189 2,249
Total other borrowings $ 162,072 95,796

As of December 31, 2006 there were no Federal funds

purchased outstanding.  At December 31, 2005, the

weighted average interest rate of federal funds pur-

chased was 4.25%. 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements represent

customer sweep accounts in connection with master

repurchase agreements at the Banks as well as short-

term borrowings from banks and brokers.  Securities

pledged for these borrowings are maintained under the

Company’s control and consist of U.S. Government

agency, mortgage-backed and corporate securities.

These securities are included in the available-for-sale

securities portfolio as reflected on the Company’s Con-

solidated Statements of Condition.  As of December 31,

2006 and 2005, the weighted average interest rate of

securities sold under repurchase agreements was 4.91%

and 2.61%, respectively.

Other includes a 6.17% fixed-rate mortgage (which

matures May 1, 2010) related to the Company’s Northfield

banking office. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the bal-

ance of this mortgage was $1.9 million and $2.0 million,

respectively. This mortgage was originally assumed in

connection with the acquisition of Northview Bank in

2004, and was refinanced in 2005.



46 WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION

(15)  Long-term Debt — Trust Preferred Securities

As of December 31, 2006 the Company owned 100% of

the Common Securities of nine trusts, Wintrust Capital

Trust III, Wintrust Statutory Trust IV, Wintrust Statutory Trust

V, Wintrust Capital Trust VII, Wintrust Capital Trust VIII, Win-

trust Capital Trust IX, Northview Capital Trust I, Town Bank-

shares Capital Trust I and First Northwest Capital Trust I

(the "Trusts") set up to provide long-term financing.  The

Northview, Town and First Northwest capital trusts were

acquired as part of the acquisitions of Northview Financial

Corporation, Town Bankshares, Ltd. and First Northwest

Bancorp, Inc., respectively.  The Trusts were formed for

purposes of issuing Trust Preferred Securities to third-

party investors and investing the proceeds from the

issuances of the Trust Preferred Securities and the Com-

mon Securities solely in Subordinated Debentures

("Debentures") issued by the Company, with the same

maturities and interest rates as the Trust Preferred Securi-

ties.  The Debentures are the sole assets of the Trusts.  In

each Trust the Common Securities represent approxi-

mately 3% of the Debentures and the Trust Preferred Secu-

rities represent approximately 97% of the Debentures.

The Trusts are reported in the Company's financial state-

ments as unconsolidated subsidiaries; the Debentures are

reflected as "Long-term debt - trust preferred securities"

and the Common Securities are included in Available-for-

sale Securities.

A summary of the Company's Long-term debt -- trust pre-

ferred securities, which represents the par value of the obli-

gations and basis adjustments for the unamortized fair

value adjustments recognized at the acquisition dates for

the Northview, Town and First Northwest obligations at

December 31, 2006 and 2005, is as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
9.0% Debentures owed to

Wintrust Capital Trust I,
due September 30, 2028 $ 32,01- 32,010

Variable rate (LIBOR + 3.25%)
Debentures owed to
Wintrust Capital Trust III,
due April 7, 2033 25,774 25,774

Variable rate (LIBOR + 2.80%)
Debentures owed to
Wintrust Statutory Trust IV, 
due December 8, 2033 20,619 20,619

Variable rate (LIBOR + 2.60%)
Debentures owed to
Wintrust Statutory Trust V, 
due May 11, 2034 41,238 41,238

Variable rate (LIBOR + 1.95%)
Debentures owed to
Wintrust Capital Trust VII, 
due March 15, 2035 51,550 51,550

Variable rate (LIBOR + 1.45%)
Debentures owed to 
Wintrust Capital Trust VIII
due September 30, 2035 41,238 41,238

6.84% Debentures owed to
Wintrust Capital Trust IX, 
due September 15, 2036 51,547 -

6.35% Debentures owed to
Northview Capital Trust I, 
due November 8, 2033 6,279 6,330

Variable rate (LIBOR + 3.00%)
Debentures owed to Town
Bankshares Capital Trust I, 
due November 8, 2033 6,301 6,365

Variable rate (LIBOR + 3.00%)
Debentures owed to First
Northwest Capital Trust I,
due May 31, 2034 5,282 5,334

Total long-term debt — trust 
preferred securities $ 249,828 230,458
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The interest rates associated with the variable rate Deben-

tures are based on the three-month LIBOR rate and were

8.62%, 8.17%, 7.97%, 7.31%, 6.81%, 8.37%, and 8.36%, for

Wintrust Capital Trust III, Wintrust Statutory Trust IV, Win-

trust Statutory Trust V, Wintrust Capital Trust VII, Wintrust

Capital Trust VIII, Town Bankshares Capital Trust I and

First Northwest Capital Trust I, respectively, at December

31, 2006.  The interest rate on the Debentures of Wintrust

Capital Trust IX, currently fixed at 6.84%, changes to a vari-

able rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus 1.63% effective

September 15, 2011, and the interest rate on the Deben-

tures of Northview Capital Trust I, currently fixed at 6.35%,

changes to a variable rate equal to three-month LIBOR

plus 3.00% effective February 8, 2008.  At December 31,

2006, the weighted average contractual interest rate on

the Debentures was 7.47%. In August 2006, the Company

entered into $175 million of interest rate swaps, which are

designated in hedge relationships, to hedge the variable

cash flows of certain Debentures.  On a hedge-adjusted

basis, the weighted average interest rate on the Deben-

tures was 7.41%.  Distributions on the Trust Preferred

Securities issued by the Trusts are payable quarterly at a

rate per annum equal to the interest rate being earned by

the Trusts on the Debentures held by the Trusts.  Interest

expense on the Trust Preferred Securities is deductible for

income tax purposes.

On September 1, 2006, the Company issued $51.5 million

of Debentures to Wintrust Capital Trust IX with an initial

fixed rate of 6.84%, and on September 5, 2006, the Com-

pany used proceeds from this issuance to redeem, at par

value, $32.0 million of the Debentures of Wintrust Capital

Trust I with a fixed interest rate of 9.00%.  In connection

with the redemption of the Debentures of Wintrust Capital

Trust I, the Company expensed $304,000 of unamortized

issuance costs. In August 2005, the Company issued

$41.2 million of Debentures to Wintrust Capital Trust VIII,

with a variable rate equal to LIBOR plus 1.45% and used

the proceeds from this issuance to redeem, at par value,

$20.6 million of the 10.5% fixed rate Debentures of 

Wintrust Capital Trust II. 

The Company has guaranteed the payment of distribu-

tions and payments upon liquidation or redemption of the

Trust Preferred Securities, in each case to the extent of

funds held by the Trusts.  The Company and the Trusts

believe that, taken together, the obligations of the Com-

pany under the guarantees, the subordinated debentures,

and other related agreements provide, in the aggregate, a

full, irrevocable and unconditional guarantee, on a subor-

dinated basis, of all of the obligations of the Trusts under

the Trust Preferred Securities.  Subject to certain limita-

tions, the Company has the right to defer payment of inter-

est on the Debentures at any time, or from time to time,

for a period not to exceed 20 consecutive quarters.  The

Trust Preferred Securities are subject to mandatory

redemption, in whole or in part, upon repayment of the

Debentures at maturity or their earlier redemption.  The

Debentures are redeemable in whole or in part prior to

maturity, at the discretion of the Company if certain condi-

tions are met, and only after the Company has obtained

Federal Reserve approval, if then required under applica-

ble guidelines or regulations.  The Debentures held by the

Trusts are first redeemable, in whole or in part, by the

Company as follows:

Wintrust Capital Trust III April 7, 2008
Wintrust Statutory Trust IV December 31, 2008
Wintrust Statutory Trust V June 30, 2009
Wintrust Capital Trust VII March 15, 2010
Wintrust Capital Trust VIII September 30, 2010
Wintrust Capital Trust IX September 15, 2011
Northview Capital Trust I August 8, 2008
Town Bankshares Capital Trust I August 8, 2008
First Northwest Capital Trust I May 31, 2009

The Trust Preferred Securities, subject to certain limita-

tions, qualify as Tier 1 capital of the Company for regula-

tory purposes.  On February 28, 2005, the Federal

Reserve issued a final rule that retains Tier I capital treat-

ment for trust preferred securities but with stricter limits.

Under the rule, which is effective March 31, 2009, and

has a transition period until then, the aggregate amount

of trust preferred securities and certain other capital ele-

ments is limited to 25% of Tier I capital elements (includ-

ing trust preferred securities), net of goodwill less any

associated deferred tax liability.  The amount of trust pre-

ferred securities and certain other capital elements in

excess of the limit could be included in Tier 2 capital, sub-

ject to restrictions.  Applying the final rule at December

31, 2006, the Company would still be considered well-

capitalized under regulatory capital guidelines. 
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(16)  Minimum Lease Commitments

The Company occupies certain facilities under operating

lease agreements. Gross rental expense related to the Com-

pany’s operating leases was $5.8 million in 2006, $5.0 mil-

lion in 2005 and $3.5 million in 2004.  The Company also

leases certain owned premises and receives rental income

from such agreements.  Gross rental income related to the

Company’s buildings totaled $1.6 million, $1.8 million and

$1.5 million, in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Future

minimum gross rental payments for office space and future

minimum gross rental income as of December 31, 2006 for

all noncancelable leases are as follows (in thousands):

Future Future
minimum minimum

gross gross
rental rental

payments income

2007 $    5,009 1,699
2008 3,127 1,352
2009 2,637 1,274
2010 2,390 1,149
2011 2,344 579
2012 and thereafter 18,824 3,312
Total minimum future amounts $  34,331 9,365

(17)  Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended Decem-

ber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is summarized as follows

(in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Current income taxes:
Federal $34,667 33,399 23,108
State    4,288 4,190 3,489
Total current income taxes 38,955 37,589 26,597

Deferred income taxes:
Federal (1,213) 603 2,678
State 6 (258) 278
Total deferred income taxes (1,207) 345 2,956

Total income tax expense $37,748 37,934 29,553

Included in total income tax expense is income tax

expense applicable to net gains on available-for-sale

securities of $6,000 in 2006, $405,000 in 2005 and

$713,000 in 2004. 

The exercise of certain stock options and the vesting and

issuance of stock compensation produced tax benefits of

$5.3 million in 2006, $7.0 million in 2005 and $8.7 million

in 2004 which were recorded directly to shareholders’

equity.

A reconciliation of the differences between taxes com-

puted using the statutory Federal income tax rate of 35%

and actual income tax expense is as follows (in thou-

sands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Income tax expense based 
upon the Federal statutory rate
on income before income taxes $ 36,484 36,733 28,311

Increase (decrease) in tax
resulting from: 
Tax-exempt interest, net of

interest expense disallowance (777) (800) (424)
State taxes, net of 

federal tax benefit 2,791 2,556 2,449
Income earned on life 

insurance policies (968) (807) (668)
Other, net 218 252 (115)

Income tax expense $ 37,748 37,934 29,553

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to

significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabili-

ties at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in

thousands):

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for credit losses $  17,135 15,121
Net unrealized losses on 

securities (SFAS 115) 10,192 11,355
Net unrealized losses on 

derivatives (SFAS 133) 920 -
Federal net operating loss 

carryforward 1,362 2,090
Deferred compensation 4,458 2,774
Stock-based compensation 5,002 1,965
Deferred loss on derivatives - 690
Other 2,441 1,798

Total gross deferred tax assets 41,510 35,793

Deferred tax liabilities:
Premises and equipment 11,767 10,060
Deferred loan fees and costs 2,099 1,474
Capitalized servicing rights 2,120 2,343
Goodwill and intangible assets 11,404 9,227
FHLB stock dividends 2,784 4,291
Deferred gain on termination

of derivatives 2,464 -
Other 520 214

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 33,158 27,609
Net deferred tax assets $  8,352 8,184
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At December 31, 2006, Wintrust had Federal net operat-

ing loss carryforwards of $3.9 million which are available

to offset future taxable income.  These net operating

losses expire in years 2007 through 2020 and are subject

to certain statutory limitations. 

Management believes that it is more likely than not that

the recorded deferred tax assets will be fully realized and

therefore no valuation allowance is necessary.  The con-

clusion that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax

assets will be realized is based on the Company’s histor-

ical earnings trend, its current level of earnings and

prospects for continued growth and profitability. 

(18)  Employee Benefit and Stock Plans

Stock Incentive Plan

The Wintrust Financial Corporation 1997 Stock Incentive

Plan (“the Plan”) permits the grant of incentive stock

options, nonqualified stock options, rights and restricted

stock, as well as the conversion of outstanding options of

acquired companies to Wintrust options.  The Plan cov-

ers substantially all employees of Wintrust.  A total of

5,935,393 shares of Common Stock may be granted

under the Plan and as of December 31, 2006, 8,761

shares were available for future grant. 

In January 2007, the Company’s shareholders approved

the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, which is substantially sim-

ilar to the 1997 Plan. The 2007 Plan, which provides for

the issuance of up to 500,000 shares of common stock,

replaced the 1997 Plan. No shares were issued under the

1997 Plan after December 31, 2006. 

The Company typically awards stock-based compensa-

tion in the form of stock options and restricted share

awards. In general the Plan provided for the grant of

options to purchase shares of Wintrust’s common stock

at the fair market value of the stock on the date the

options are granted. Incentive and nonqualified options

generally vest ratably over a five-year period and expire

at such time as the Compensation Committee determines

at the time of grant, however, in no case are they exer-

cisable later than ten years after the grant. Restricted

Stock Unit Awards (“restricted shares”) entitle the holders

to receive, at no cost, shares of the Company’s common

stock.  Restricted shares generally vest over periods of

one to five years from the date of grant.  Holders of the

restricted shares are not entitled to vote or receive cash

dividends (or cash payments equal to the cash dividends)

on the underlying common shares until the awards are

vested.  Except in limited circumstances, these awards

are canceled upon termination of employment without

any payment of consideration by the Company.  

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted provisions of

FASB Statement No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”

(“SFAS 123R”), using the modified prospective transition

method. Under this transition method, compensation cost

is recognized in the financial statements beginning Janu-

ary 1, 2006, based on the requirements of SFAS 123R for

all share-based payments granted after that date and for

all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet

vested as of December 31, 2005, based on the grant date

fair value estimated in accordance with the original provi-

sions of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compen-

sation.” Compensation cost is recognized over the

required service period, generally defined as the vesting

period. Results for prior periods have not been restated. 

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based

compensation using the intrinsic value method set forth

in APB 25, as permitted by SFAS 123. The intrinsic value

method provided that compensation expense for

employee stock options is generally not recognized if the

exercise price of the option equals or exceeds the fair

value of the stock on the date of grant. As a result, for

periods prior to 2006, compensation expense was gen-

erally not recognized in the Consolidated Statements of

Income for stock options. Compensation expense has

always been recognized for restricted share awards rat-

ably over the period of service, usually the restricted

period, based on the fair value of the stock on the date of

grant. Compensation cost charged against income

related to restricted share awards was $6.2 million ($3.8

million net of tax) in 2006, $4.1 million ($2.5 million net of

tax) in 2005 and $721,000 ($446,000 net of tax) in 2004.

On January 1, 2006, the Company reclassified $5.2 mil-

lion of liabilities related to previously recognized com-

pensation cost for restricted share awards that had not

been vested as of that date to surplus as these awards

represent equity awards as defined in SFAS 123R. 

As a result of adopting SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006,

the Company recorded $5.6 million of compensation

expense related to stock options in 2006, reducing

income before income taxes and net income by $5.6 mil-

lion and $3.5 million, respectively, compared to account-

ing for share-based compensation under APB 25. Basic

and diluted EPS for 2006 are $0.14 and $0.13 lower,

respectively, than if the Company had continued to

account for share-based payments under APB 25.   

SFAS 123R requires the recognition of stock based com-

pensation for the number of awards that are ultimately

expected to vest. As a result, recognized compensation

expense for stock options and restricted share awards

was reduced for estimated forfeitures prior to vesting pri-

marily based on a historical forfeiture rate of approxi-
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A summary of the Plan’s stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

Weighted Remaining Intrinsic
Common Average Contractual Value(2)

Shares Strike Prices Term(1) ($000)

Outstanding at January 1, 2004 3,118,005 $ 18.75
Conversion of options of acquired companies 146,441 23.37
Granted 279,100 53.71    
Exercised (473,999) 10.13  
Forfeited or canceled (22,269) 24.57      
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 3,047,278 $  23.41 5.5 $ 102,070
Exercisable at December 31, 2004 1,831,222 $  16.07 4.2 $   74,748

Outstanding at January 1, 2005 3,047,278 $ 23.41
Conversion of options of acquired companies 5,865 13.35
Granted 488,850 53.91  
Exercised (465,348) 13.02  
Forfeited or canceled (57,163) 39.22  
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 3,019,482 $  29.63 5.7 $  76,744
Exercisable at December 31, 2005 1,762,985 $  19.89 4.3 $  61,845

Outstanding at January 1, 2006 3,019,482 $ 29.63
Conversion of options of acquired companies 2,046 24..42
Granted 221,600 51.03
Exercised (400,874) 15.73
Forfeited or canceled (56,190) 44.71
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 2,786,064 $ 33.02 5.8 $ 47,228
Exercisable at December 31, 2006 1,774,699 $ 24.71 4.6 $ 43,029

Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2006 2,678,821 $ 32.45 5.7 $ 46,782

(1) Represents the weighted average contractual remaining life in years. 
(2) Aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pretax intrinsic value (i.e., the difference between the Company’s average of the high and low

stock price at year end and the option exercise price, multiplied by the number of shares) that would have been received by the option hold-
ers if they had exercised their options on the last day of the year.  Options with exercise prices above the year end stock price are excluded
from the calculation of intrinsic value.  This amount will change based on the fair market value of the Company’s stock. 

mately 9.5% for stock options and 1.0% for restricted

share awards. Estimated forfeitures will be reassessed in

subsequent periods and may change based on new facts

and circumstances.  Prior to January 1, 2006, actual for-

feitures were accounted for as they occurred for purposes

of required pro forma stock compensation disclosures. 

Compensation cost is measured as the fair value of an

award on the date of grant. The Company estimates the

fair value of stock options at the date of grant using a

Black-Scholes option-pricing model that utilizes the

assumptions outlined in the following table.  These

assumptions are consistent with the provisions of SFAS

123R and the Company’s prior period pro forma disclo-

sures of net income and earnings per share, including

stock option expense.  Option-pricing models require the

input of highly subjective assumptions and are sensitive

to changes in the option’s expected life and the price

volatility of the underlying stock, which can materially

affect the fair value estimate.  Expected life is based on

historical exercise and termination behavior, and

expected stock price volatility is based on historical

volatility of the Company’s common stock, which corre-

lates with the expected life of the options.  The risk-free

interest rate is based on comparable term U.S. Treasury

rates. Management reviews and adjusts the assumptions

used to calculate the fair value of an option on a periodic

basis to better reflect expected trends.  The following

assumptions were used to determine the fair value of

options granted in the years ending December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
Expected dividend yield 0.5% 0.5% 0.4%
Expected volatility 24.7% 23.6% 22.9%
Risk-free rate 4.6% 4.2% 4.1%
Expected option life (in years) 7.9 8.5 8.4
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The weighted average per share grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004 was $19.41, $20.09 and $19.63, respectively.  The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during

the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, was $14.4 million, $18.6 million and $20.5 million, respectively.

Cash received from option exercises under the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $6.3

million, $6.1 million and $4.8 million, respectively.  The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option exer-

cises totaled $5.4 million, $6.8 million and $7.7 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

A summary of the Plan’s restricted share award activity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as 

follows:

2006 2005 2004

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average

Common Grant-Date Common Grant-Date Common Grant-Date
Restricted Shares Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 206,157 $ 53.55 25,512 $  40.68 35,738 $  30.10
Granted 207,343 50.63 200,902 53.97 17,126 46.52
Shares issued (73,694) 53.48 (19,068) 40.65 (27,352) 30.51
Forfeited (3,902) 51.87 (1,189) 54.92 ,,,,,- ...-
Outstanding at end of year 335,904 $ 51.78 206,157 $  53.55 25,512 $  40.68

The fair value of restricted shares is determined based on the average of the high and low trading prices on the grant date. 

As of December 31, 2006, there was $26.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share

based arrangements under the Plan.  That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approx-

imately two years.  The total fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was

$9.5 million, $5.2 million and $4.5 million, respectively.

Other Employee Benefits

Wintrust and its subsidiaries also provide 401(k) Retirement Savings Plans (“401(k) Plans”).  The 401(k) Plans cover all

employees meeting certain eligibility requirements. Contributions by employees are made through salary deductions at

their direction, subject to certain Plan and statutory limitations. Employer contributions to the 401(k) Plans are made at

the employer’s discretion. Generally, participants completing 501 hours of service are eligible to share in an allocation of

employer contributions. The Company’s expense for the employer contributions to the 401(k) Plans was approximately

$2.5 million in 2006, $2.4 million in 2005, and $1.7 million in 2004. 

The Wintrust Financial Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“SPP”) is designed to encourage greater stock own-

ership among employees, thereby enhancing employee commitment to the Company.  The SPP gives eligible employ-

ees the right to accumulate funds over an offering period to purchase shares of Common Stock. The Company has

reserved 375,000 shares of its authorized Common Stock for the SPP. All shares offered under the SPP will be either

newly issued shares of the Company or shares issued from treasury, if any. In accordance with the SPP, the purchase

price of the shares of Common Stock may not be lower than the lesser of 85% of the fair market value per share of the

Common Stock on the first day of the offering period or 85% of the fair market value per share of the Common Stock on

the last date for the offering period. The Company’s Board of Directors authorized a purchase price calculation at 90% of

fair market value for each of the offering periods.  During 2006, 2005 and 2004, a total of 36,737 shares, 35,173 shares

and 26,332 shares, respectively, were issued to participant accounts and approximately $284,000, $274,000 and

$323,000, respectively, was recognized as compensation expense. The current offering period concludes on March 31,

2007.  The Company plans to continue to periodically offer Common Stock through this SPP subsequent to March 31,

2007.

The Company does not currently offer other postretirement benefits such as health care or other pension plans.

The Wintrust Financial Corporation Directors Deferred Fee and Stock Plan (“DDFS Plan”) allows directors of the Company

and its subsidiaries to choose to receive payment of directors fees in either cash or common stock of the Company and
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to defer the receipt of the fees.  The DDFS Plan is

designed to encourage stock ownership by directors.

The Company has reserved 225,000 shares of its author-

ized Common Stock for the DDFS Plan.  All shares

offered under the DDFS Plan will be either newly issued

shares of the Company or shares issued from treasury.

The number of shares issued is determined on a quar-

terly basis based on the fees earned during the quarter

and the fair market value per share of the Common Stock

on the last trading day of the preceding quarter.  The

shares are issued annually and the directors are entitled

to dividends and voting rights upon the issuance of the

shares.  During 2006, 2005 and 2004, a total of 12,916

shares, 7,530 shares and 5,276 shares, respectively

were issued to directors. For those directors that elect to

defer the receipt of the Common Stock, the Company

maintains records of stock units representing an obliga-

tion to issue shares of Common Stock.  The number of

stock units equals the number of shares that would have

been issued had the director not elected to defer receipt

of the shares.  Additional stock units are credited at the

time dividends are paid, however no voting rights are

associated with the stock units.  The shares of Common

Stock represented by the stock units are issued in the

year specified by the directors in their participation 

agreements.

(19) Regulatory Matters

Banking laws place restrictions upon the amount of divi-

dends which can be paid to Wintrust by the Banks.

Based on these laws, the Banks could, subject to mini-

mum capital requirements, declare dividends to Wintrust

without obtaining regulatory approval in an amount not

exceeding (a) undivided profits, and (b) the amount of net

income reduced by dividends paid for the current and

prior two years.  During 2006, 2005 and 2004, cash divi-

dends totaling $183.6 million, $45.1 million and $25.5

million, respectively, were paid to Wintrust by the Banks.

As of January 1, 2007, the Banks had approximately

$53.0 million available to be paid as dividends to Wintrust

without prior regulatory approval; however, only $24.7

million was available as dividends from the Banks with-

out reducing their capital below the well-capitalized level.

The Banks are also required by the Federal Reserve Act

to maintain reserves against deposits.  Reserves are held

either in the form of vault cash or balances maintained

with the Federal Reserve Bank and are based on the

average daily deposit balances and statutory reserve

ratios prescribed by the type of deposit account.  At

December 31, 2006 and 2005, reserve balances of

approximately $17.2 million and $14.3 million, respec-

tively, were required to be maintained at the Federal

Reserve Bank.

The Company and the Banks are subject to various reg-

ulatory capital requirements administered by the federal

banking agencies.  Failure to meet minimum capital

requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possi-

bly additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if

undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the

Company’s financial statements.  Under capital adequacy

guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt cor-

rective action, the Company and the Banks must meet

specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative meas-

ures of the Company’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-

balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory

accounting practices.  The Company’s and the Banks’

capital amounts and classification are also subject to

qualitative judgments by the regulators about compo-

nents, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to

ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the

Banks to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total

and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-

weighted assets (as defined) and Tier 1 leverage capital

(as defined) to average quarterly assets (as defined).

The Federal Reserve’s capital guidelines require bank

holding companies to maintain a minimum ratio of quali-

fying total capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.0%, of

which at least 4.0% must be in the form of Tier 1 Capital.

The Federal Reserve also requires a minimum Tier 1

leverage ratio (Tier 1 Capital to total assets) of 3.0% for

strong bank holding companies (those rated a composite

“1” under the Federal Reserve’s rating system).  For all

other banking holding companies, the minimum Tier 1

leverage ratio is 4.0%.  In addition the Federal Reserve

continues to consider the Tier 1 leverage ratio in evaluat-

ing proposals for expansion or new activities.  As

reflected in the following table, the Company met all 

minimum capital requirements at December 31, 2006

and 2005:

2006 2005
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 11.3% 11.9%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 9.8 10.3
Tier 1 Leverage Ratio 8.2 8.3

In 2002, Wintrust became designated as a financial holding

company.  Bank holding companies approved as financial

holding companies may engage in an expanded range of

activities, including the businesses conducted by the

Wayne Hummer Companies.  As a financial holding com-

pany, Wintrust’s Banks are required to maintain their capital

positions at the “well-capitalized” level. As of December 31,

2006, the Banks were categorized as well capitalized under

the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  The

ratios required for the Banks to be “well capitalized” by regula-

tory definition are 10.0%, 6.0%, and 5.0% for Total Capital to
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Risk-Weighted Assets, Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets and Tier 1 Leverage Ratio, respectively.  There are no conditions or

events since the most recent notification that management believes would materially affect the Banks’ regulatory capital categories.

The Banks’ actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are presented in the following table

(dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
To Be Well To Be Well

Capitalized by Capitalized by
Actual Regulatory Definition Actual Regulatory Definition

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Lake Forest Bank $ 150,690 11.5% $ 130,757 10.0% $  152,081 10.7% $  141,877 10.0% 
Hinsdale Bank 126,216 10.7 117,827 10.0 77,300 10.4 74,715 10.0
North Shore Bank 77,896 10.3 75,622 10.0 75,176 11.3 66,448 10.0
Libertyville Bank 82,297 10.4 78,836 10.0 76,124 10.6 71,852 10.0
Barrington Bank 72,063 10.3 70,078 10.0 57,476 10.1 57,012 10.0
Crystal Lake Bank 49,644 100.6 47,028 10.0 39,707 10.7 37,027 10.0
Northbrook Bank 56,788 10.4 54,663 10.0 50,770 10.5 48,333 10.0
Advantage Bank 22,175 10.4 21,262 10.0 20,082 10.9 18,477 10.0
Village Bank 43,574 10.4 42,091 10.0 36,877 10.6 34,909 10.0
Beverly Bank 15,713 13.1 11,9555 10.0 12,308 12.7 9,690 10.0
Town Bank 40,021 10.6 37,719 10.0 30,399 10.3 29,646 10.0
Wheaton Bank 24,677 10.6 23,244 10.0 9,588 10.6 9,018 10.0
State Bank of The Lakes 47,020 12.3 38,285 10.0 46,688 14.1 33,131 10.0
Old Plank Bank 19,127 25.3 7,564 10.0 * * * *
St. Charles Bank 11,272 22.6 4,981 10.0 * * * *

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Lake Forest Bank $ 143,081 10.9% $ 78,454 6.0% $  144,611 10.2% $  85,126 6.0% 
Hinsdale Bank 1117,802 10.0 70,696 6.0 72,145 9.7 44,829 6.0
North Shore Bank 73,751 9.8 45,373 6.0 71,004 10.7 39,869 6.0
Libertyville Bank 77,079 9.8 47,301 6.0 71,751 10.0 43,111 6.0
Barrington Bank 68,117 9.7 42,047 6.0 53,714 9.4 34,207 6.0
Crystal Lake Bank 47,210 10.0 28,2177 6.0 37,398 10.1 22,216 6.0
Northbrook Bank 53,595 9.8 32,798 6.0 47,458 9.8 29,000 6.0
Advantage Bank 20,853 9.8 12,757 6.0 18,679 10.1 11,086 6.0
Village Bank 41,012 9.7 25,254 6.0 34,431 9.9 20,945 6.0
Beverly Bank 15,051 12.6 7,173 6.0 11,728 12.1 5,814 6.0
Town Bank 37,790 10.00 22,631 6.0 27,998 9.4 17,788 6.0
Wheaton Bank 23,395 10.1 13,934 6.0 9,048 10.0 5,411 6.0
State Bank of The Lakes 44,288 11.6 22,971 6.0 43,837 13.2 19,879 6.0
Old Plank Bank 18,634 24.6 4,538 6.0 * * * *
St. Charles Bank 11,006 22.1 2,988 6.0 * * * *

Tier 1 Leverage Ratio:
Lake Forest Bank $ 143,081 9.7% $ 73,518 5.0% $ 144,611 10.4% $  69,613 5.0% 
Hinsdale Bank 117,802 9.8 60,193 5.0 72,145 7.6 47,306 5.0
North Shore Bank 73,751 7.6 48,437 5.0 71,004 7.5 47,356 5.0
Libertyville Bank 77,079 8.4 45,897 5.0 71,751 8.5 42,095 5.0
Barrington Bank 68,117 8.0 42,323 5.0 53,714 7.0 38,454 5.0
Crystal Lake Bank 47,210 8.4 27,988 5.0 37,398 7.4 25,257 5.0
Northbrook Bank 53,595 7.5 35,939 5.00 47,458 7.2 33,118 5.0
Advantage Bank 20,853 7.7 13,477 5.0 18,679 7.0 13,305 5.0
Village Bank 41,012 6.9 29,601 5.0 34,431 6.2 27,572 5.0
Beverly Bank 15,051 9.3 8,105 5.0 11,728 9.2 6,375 5.0
Town Bank 37,790 8.5 22,127 5.0 27,998 7.7 18,105 5.0
Wheaton Bank 23,395 9.3 12,5660 5.0 9,048 6.0 7,523 5.0
State Bank of The Lakes 44,288 8.6 25,622 5.0 43,837 8.9 24,587 5.0
Old Plank Bank 18,634 18.0 5,184 5.0 * * * *
St. Charles Bank 11,006 22.9 2,405 5.0 * * * *

* Opened or acquired in 2006.
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Wintrust’s mortgage banking and broker/dealer sub-

sidiaries are also required to maintain minimum net worth

capital requirements with various governmental agen-

cies.  The mortgage banking subsidiaries’ net worth

requirements are governed by the Department of Hous-

ing and Urban Development and the broker/dealer’s net

worth requirements are governed by the United States

Securities and Exchange Commission.  As of December

31, 2006, these subsidiaries met their minimum net

worth capital requirements.

(20)  Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has outstanding, at any time, a number of

commitments to extend credit.  These commitments

include revolving home equity line and other credit agree-

ments, term loan commitments and standby and com-

mercial letters of credit.  Standby and commercial letters

of credit are conditional commitments issued to guaran-

tee the performance of a customer to a third party.

Standby letters of credit are contingent upon the failure of

the customer to perform according to the terms of the

underlying contract with the third party, while commercial

letters of credit are issued specifically to facilitate com-

merce and typically result in the commitment being

drawn on when the underlying transaction is consum-

mated between the customer and the third party.

These commitments involve, to varying degrees, ele-

ments of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the

amounts recognized in the Consolidated Statements of

Condition.  Since many of the commitments are expected

to expire without being drawn upon, the total commit-

ment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash

requirements.  The Company uses the same credit poli-

cies in making commitments as it does for on-balance

sheet instruments.  As of December 31, 2006 and 2005,

commitments to extend commercial, commercial real

estate and construction loans totaled $1.64 billion and

$1.34 billion, respectively, and unused home equity and

credit card lines totaled $865.1 million and $763.7 mil-

lion, respectively.  Standby and commercial letters of

credit totaled $175.3 million at December 31, 2006 and

$96.5 million at December 31, 2005.

In addition, at December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Com-

pany had approximately $117.8 million and $103.5 mil-

lion, respectively, in commitments to fund residential

mortgage loans to be sold into the secondary market.

These lending commitments are also considered deriva-

tive instruments under the guidelines of SFAS 133.  The

Company also enters into forward contracts for the future

delivery of residential mortgage loans at specified interest

rates to reduce the interest rate risk associated with com-

mitments to fund loans as well as mortgage loans held-

for-sale.  These forward contracts are also considered

derivative instruments under SFAS 133 and had contrac-

tual amounts of approximately $262.7 million at December

31, 2006 and $186.3 million at December 31, 2005.  See

Note 21 for further discussion on derivative instruments.

In connection with the sale of premium finance receiv-

ables, the Company continues to service the receivables

and maintains a recourse obligation to the purchasers

should the underlying borrowers default on their obliga-

tions.  The estimated recourse obligation is taken into

account in recording the sale, effectively reducing the

gain recognized.  As of December 31, 2006 and 2005,

outstanding premium finance receivables sold to and

serviced for third parties for which the Company has a

recourse obligation were $58.3 million and $260.6 mil-

lion, respectively.  Losses charged against the recourse

obligation were $191,000, $269,000 and $177,000 for

2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  At December 31,

2006 and 2005, the recourse obligation related to these

loans was $129,000 and $240,000, respectively.

The Company enters into residential mortgage loan sale

agreements with investors in the normal course of busi-

ness.  These agreements usually require certain repre-

sentations concerning credit information, loan documen-

tation, collateral and insurability.  On occasion, investors

have requested the Company to indemnify them against

losses on certain loans or to repurchase loans which the

investors believe do not comply with applicable repre-

sentations.  Upon completion of its own investigation, the

Company generally repurchases or provides indemnifi-

cation on certain loans.  Indemnification requests are

generally received within two years subsequent to sale.

Management maintains a liability for estimated losses on

loans expected to be repurchased or on which indemni-

fication is expected to be provided and regularly evalu-

ates the adequacy of this recourse liability based on

trends in repurchase and indemnification requests, actual

loss experience, known and inherent risks in the loans,

and current economic conditions.  The Company sold

approximately $1.9 billion and $2.2 billion of mortgage

loans in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Losses charged

against the liability for estimated losses were $395,000

and $359,000 for 2006 and 2005, respectively.  The lia-

bility for estimated losses on repurchase and indemnifi-

cation was $322,000 and $310,000 at December 31,

2006 and 2005, respectively, and was included in other

liabilities on the balance sheet.

The Company utilizes an out-sourced securities clearing

platform and has agreed to indemnify the clearing broker

of WHI for losses that it may sustain from the customer
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accounts introduced by WHI.  At December, 31, 2006, the

total amount of customer balances maintained by the

clearing broker and subject to indemnification was

approximately $24.0 million.  WHI seeks to control the

risks associated with its customers’ activities by requiring

customers to maintain margin collateral in compliance

with various regulatory and internal guidelines.

In the ordinary course of business, there are legal pro-

ceedings pending against the Company and its sub-

sidiaries.  Management believes the aggregate liabilities,

if any, resulting from such actions would not have a

material adverse effect on the financial position of the

Company. 

(21)  Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments

as part of its strategy to manage its exposure to adverse

changes in interest rates.  Derivative instruments repre-

sent contracts between parties that result in one party

delivering cash to the other party based on a notional

amount and an underlying (such as a rate, security price

or price index) as specified in the contract. The amount of

cash delivered from one party to the other is determined

based on the interaction of the notional amount of the

contract with the underlying.  Derivatives are also implicit

in certain contracts and commitments.

Management’s objective in using derivative financial

instruments is to protect against the risk of interest rate

movements on the value of certain assets and liabilities

and on future cash flows.  Derivative instruments that

have been used by the Company include interest rate

caps and interest rate swaps with indices that relate to

the pricing of specific assets or liabilities and covered call

options that relate to specific investment securities.  In

addition, interest rate lock commitments provided to cus-

tomers for the origination of mortgage loans that will be

sold into the secondary market as well as forward agree-

ments the Company enters into to sell such loans to pro-

tect itself against adverse changes in interest rates are

deemed to be derivative instruments.

In accordance with SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities”, the Company recog-

nizes derivative financial instruments at fair value on the

Consolidated Statement of Condition, regardless of the

purpose or intent for holding the instrument.  Derivatives

are included in other assets or other liabilities, as appro-

priate. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial

instruments are either recognized in income or in share-

holders’ equity as a component of comprehensive

income depending on whether the derivative financial

instrument qualifies for hedge accounting, and if so,

whether it qualifies as a fair value hedge or cash flow

hedge.  Generally, changes in fair values of derivatives

accounted for as fair value hedges are recorded in

income in the same period and in the same income state-

ment line as the changes in the fair values of the hedged

items that relate to the hedged risk(s).  Changes in fair val-

ues of derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges, to

the extent they are effective hedges, are recorded as a

component of comprehensive income, net of deferred

taxes, and reclassified to earnings when the hedged

transaction affects earnings.  Changes in fair values of

derivatives not qualifying as hedges, including changes

in fair values related to the ineffective portion of cash flow

hedges, are reported in non-interest income during the

period of the change.  Derivative financial instruments are

valued by a third party and are periodically validated by

comparison with valuations provided by the respective

counterparties.

Derivative instruments have inherent risks, primarily mar-

ket risk and credit risk.  Market risk is associated with

changes in interest rates.  Credit risk relates to the risk

that the counterparty will fail to perform according to the

terms of the agreement.  The amounts potentially subject

to market and credit risks are the streams of interest pay-

ments under the contracts and the market value of the

derivative instrument which is determined based on the

interaction of the notional amount of the contract with the

underlying, and not the notional principal amounts used

to express the volume of the transactions.  Management

monitors the market risk and credit risk associated with

derivative financial instruments as part of its overall

Asset/Liability management process. The Company does

not enter into derivatives for purely speculative purposes. 
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Interest Rate Swaps

The table below summarizes the Company's interest rate swaps at December 31, 2006 and 2005 that were entered into

to economically hedge certain interest-bearing liabilities (in thousands):

December 31, 2006
Maturity Date (Call Option Date) Notional Fair Value Receive Pay Type of Hedging

Amount Gain (Loss) Rate Rate Relationship
Pay fixed, receive variable:

October 2011 $ 25,000 (276) 5.37% 5.26% Cash Fllow
September 2011 20,000 (218) 5.36% 5.25% Cash Flow
September 2011 40,000 (440) 5.36% 5.25% Cash Flow
September 2013 50,000 (813) 5.36% 5.30% Cash Floow
September 2013 40,000 (643) 5.36% 5.30% Cash Flow

Total $ 175,000 (2,390)

December 31, 2005
Pay fixed, receive variable:

April 2033 (April 2008) $   25,000 (75) 7.40% 6.71% Not designated
December 2033 (December 2008) 20,000 (362) 7.33% 6.40% Not designated
May 2034 (June 2009) 40,000 (264) 7.13% 6.27% Not designated
March 2035 (March 2010) 50,000 (671) 6.44% 5.68% Not designated
September 2035 (September 2010) 40,000 (664) 5.98% 5.27% Not designated
October 2012 (None) 25,000 598 4.41% 4.23% Not designated

Total 200,000 (1,438)

Receive fixed, pay variable:
September 2028 (September 2003) 31,050 (371) 9.00% 6.35% Not designated

Total $ 231,050 (1,809)

The interest rate swaps outstanding at December 31, 2006 as reflected in the above table, were designated as cash flow

hedges pursuant to SFAS 133.  The unrealized loss of $2.4 million is included in other liabilities.  These hedges were

considered highly effective for the year ending December 31, 2006; none of the change in fair value of these derivatives

was attributed to hedge ineffectiveness.  The change in fair value, a net unrealized loss of $2.4 million (net of a $911,000

tax benefit), is separately disclosed in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity as a component of comprehen-

sive income.  During 2007, the Company estimates that $74,000 of unrealized losses will be reclassified from accumu-

lated other comprehensive income to interest expense. 

The interest rate swaps outstanding at December 31, 2005 as reflected in the above table, were documented as being

in hedging relationships at their inception dates, but subsequently, management determined that the hedge documenta-

tion did not meet the standards of SFAS 133.  Changes in market value related to these interest rate swaps, a loss of $1.8

million in 2005 and a gain of $7.5 million in 2006, were recognized in non-interest income.  In addition, since these swaps

were not considered hedges pursant to SFAS 133, the quarterly net settlements of $1.2 million in 2006 and $440,000 in

2005, were included in non-interest income.  All of these swaps were terminated in the third quarter of 2006. 

The Company’s banking subsidiaries offer certain derivative products directly to qualified commercial borrowers.  The

Company economically hedges customer derivative transactions by entering into offsetting derivatives executed with a

third party.  Derivative transactions executed as part of this program are not designated in SFAS 133 hedge relationships

and are, therefore, marked-to-market through earnings each period.  In most cases, the derivatives have mirror-image

terms, which results in the positions’ changes in fair value offsetting completely through earnings each period.  However,

to the extent that the derivatives are not a mirror-image, changes in fair value will not completely offset, resulting in some

earnings impact each period.  At December 31, 2006, the aggregate notional value of interest rate swaps with various

commercial borrowers totaled $21 million and the aggregate notional value interest rate swaps with third parties also
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totaled $21 million.  These interest rate swaps mature

between August 2010 and May 2016.  These swaps

were reported on the Company’s balance sheet by a

derivative asset of $506,000 and a derivative liability of

$506,000.  At December 31, 2005, the aggregate

notional value of such interest rate swaps totaled $6.4

million and had a fair value of $7,000.  These interest rate

swaps are not reflected in the above table.

Mortgage Banking Derivatives

Commitments to fund certain mortgage loans (interest

rate locks) to be sold into the secondary market and for-

ward commitments for the future delivery of mortgage

loans to third party investors are considered derivatives.

It is the Company’s practice to enter into forward com-

mitments for the future delivery of residential mortgage

loans when interest rate lock commitments are entered

into in order to economically hedge the effect of changes

in interest rates resulting from its commitments to fund

the loans.  These mortgage banking derivatives are not

designated in hedge relationships pursuant to SFAS 133.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had approximately

$118 million of interest rate lock commitments and $263

million of forward commitments for the future delivery of

residential mortgage loans.  The fair value of these mort-

gage banking derivatives was reflected by a derivative

asset of $360,000 and a derivative liability of $342,000.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had approximately

$104 million of interest rate lock commitments and $186

million of forward commitments for the future delivery of

residential mortgage loans.  The fair value of these mort-

gage banking derivatives was reflected by a derivative

asset of $388,000 and a derivative liability of $396,000.

Fair values were estimated based on changes in mort-

gage rates from the date of the commitments.  Changes

in the fair values of these mortgage-banking derivatives

are included in mortgage banking revenue.

Other Derivatives

The Company has also used interest rate caps to hedge

cash flow variability of certain deposit products.  How-

ever, no interest rate cap contracts were entered into in

2006 or 2005, and the Company had no interest rate cap

contracts outstanding at December 31, 2006 or Decem-

ber 31, 2005.

Periodically, the Company will sell options to a bank or

dealer for the right to purchase certain securities held

within the Banks’ investment portfolios (covered call

options).  These option transactions are designed prima-

rily to increase the total return associated with the invest-

ment securities portfolio.  These options do not qualify as

hedges pursuant to SFAS 133, and accordingly, changes

in the fair value of these contracts are recognized as

other non-interest income.  There were no covered call

options outstanding as of December 31, 2006 or 2005.
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(22)  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” defines the fair value of a financial instrument as

the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.  The following

table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31,

2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

At December 31, 2006 At December 31, 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 305,292 305,292 341,365  341,365
Interest bearing deposits with banks 19,259 19,259 12,240 12,240
Available-for-sale securities 1,839,716 1,839,716 1,799,384 1,799,384
Trading account securities 2,324 2,324 1,610 1,610
Brokerage customer receivables 24,040 24,040 27,900 27,900
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 148,331 148,331 85,985 85,985
Loans, net of unearned income 6,496,480 6,616,989 5,213,871 5,196,065
Accrued interest receivable and other 121,346 121,346 99,180 99,180
Total financial assets $ 8,956,788 9,077,297 7,581,535 7,563,729

Financial Liabilities:
Non-maturity deposits $ 3,069,108 3,069,108 2,664,909 2,664,909
Deposits with stated maturities 4,800,132 4,786,022 4,064,525 4,035,534
Notes payable 12,750 12,,750 1,000 1,000
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 325,531 323,962 349,317 346,601
Subordinated notes 75,000 75,000 50,000 50,000
Other borrowings 162,072 162,072 95,796 95,796
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities 249,828 249,431 230,458 230,056
Accrued interest payable 22,861 22,861 16,651 16,651
Total financial liabilities $ 8,717,282 8,701,206 7,472,656  7,440,547

Derivative contracts:
Mortgage banking derivatives $ 18 18 (8) (8)
Interest rate swap contracts (2,390) (2,390) (1,816) (1,816)

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents

include cash and demand balances from banks, Federal

funds sold and securities purchased under resale agree-

ments.  The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents

approximates fair value due to the short maturity of those

instruments.

Interest bearing deposits with banks: The carrying value

of interest bearing deposits with banks approximates fair

value due to the short maturity of those instruments.

Available-for-sale Securities: The fair values of available-

for-sale securities are based on quoted market prices,

when available.  If quoted market prices are not available,

fair values are based quoted market prices of compara-

ble assets.

Trading account securities: The fair values of trading

account securities are based on quoted market prices,

when available.  If quoted market prices are not available,

fair values are based on quoted market prices of compa-

rable assets.

Brokerage customer receivables: The carrying value of

brokerage customer receivables approximates fair value

due to the relatively short period of time to repricing of

variable interest rates. 

Mortgage loans held-for-sale: Fair value is estimated

using the prices of existing commitments to sell such

loans and /or the quoted market prices for commitments

to sell similar loans. 

Loans: Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans

with similar financial characteristics.  Loans are analyzed

by type such as commercial, residential real estate, etc.

Each category is further segmented by interest rate type

(fixed and variable) and term.
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For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently, estimated

fair values are based on carrying values.  The fair value

of residential loans is based on secondary market

sources for securities backed by similar loans, adjusted

for differences in loan characteristics.  The fair value for

other fixed rate loans is estimated by discounting sched-

uled cash flows through the estimated maturity using esti-

mated market discount rates that reflect credit and inter-

est rate risks inherent in the loan.

Accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable:

The carrying values of accrued interest receivable and

accrued interest payable approximate market values

due to the relatively short period of time to expected

realization.

Deposit liabilities: The fair value of deposits with no stated

maturity, such as non-interest bearing deposits, savings,

NOW accounts and money market accounts, is equal to

the amount payable on demand as of year-end (i.e. the

carrying value).  The fair value of certificates of deposit is

based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.

The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently in

effect for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Notes payable: The carrying value of notes payable

approximates fair value due to the relatively short period

of time to repricing of variable interest rates.

Federal Home Loan Bank advances: The fair value of Fed-

eral Home Loan Bank advances is obtained from the Fed-

eral Home Loan Bank which uses a discounted cash flow

analysis based on current market rates of similar maturity

debt securities to discount cash flows.

Subordinated notes: The carrying value of the subordi-

nated notes payable approximates fair value due to the

relatively short period of time to repricing of variable inter-

est rates.

Other borrowings: Carrying value of other borrowings

approximates fair value due to the relatively short period

of time to maturity or repricing.

Long-term debt - trust preferred securities: The fair value of

the fixed long-term debt - trust preferred securities is

based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.

The fair value of the variable rate long-term debt - trust

preferred securities approximate carrying values.

Interest rate swap agreements: The fair value is based on

quoted market prices as of the last business day of the

year.

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of

credit: The fair value of commitments to extend credit is

based on fees currently charged to enter into similar

arrangements, the remaining term of the agreement, the

present creditworthiness of the counterparty, and the dif-

ference between current interest rates and committed

interest rates on the commitments.  The majority of the

Company’s commitments contain variable interest rates;

thus the carrying value approximates fair value.

The fair value of letters of credit is based on fees cur-

rently charged for similar arrangements.  The fair value of

such commitments is not material and is not shown here.

Mortgage banking derivatives consist of commitments to

fund mortgages for sale into the secondary market (inter-

est rate locks) and forward commitments to end investors

for the sale of such loans.  Fair value is determined based

on changes in mortgage rates from the date of the com-

mitments.

The above fair value estimates were made at a point in

time based on relevant market information and other

assumptions about the financial instruments.  As no

active market exists for a significant portion of the Com-

pany’s financial instruments, fair value estimates were

based on judgments regarding current economic condi-

tions, future expected cash flows and loss experience,

risk characteristics and other factors.  These estimates are

subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and there-

fore cannot be calculated with precision.  Changes in

these assumptions could significantly affect these esti-

mates.  In addition, the fair value estimates only reflect

existing on and off-balance sheet financial instruments

and do not attempt to assess the value of anticipated

future business and the value of assets and liabilities that

are not considered financial instruments.  For example,

the value of depositor relationships, premises and equip-

ment, intangible assets and the Company’s trust and asset

management businesses have not been considered.
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(23)  Shareholders' Equity

A summary of the Company’s common and preferred

stock at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2006 2005
Common Stock:

Shares authorized 60,000,000 60,000,000
Shares issued 25,802,024 23,940,744
Shares outstanding 25,457,935 23,940,744
Cash dividend per share $0.28 $0.24

Preferred Stock:
Shares authorized 20,000,000 20,000,000
Shares issued - -
Shares outstanding - -

The Company reserves shares of its authorized common

stock specifically for its Stock Incentive Plan, its

Employee Stock Purchase Plan and its Directors Deferred

Fee and Stock Plan.   The reserved shares, and these

plans, are detailed in Note 18 – Employee Benefit and

Stock Plans.

The Company has issued warrants to acquire common

stock.  The warrants entitle the holders to purchase one

share of the Company’s common stock at a purchase price

of $30.50 per share.  Warrants outstanding at December 31,

2006 and 2005 were 33,000 and 47,000, respectively.

Expiration date on the remaining outstanding warrants at

December 31, 2006 is February 2013.

On March 30, 2005, Wintrust consummated the partial

settlement of the forward sale agreement the Company

entered into on December 14, 2004 with Royal Bank of

Canada, an affiliate of RBC Capital Markets Corporation,

relating to the forward sale by Wintrust of 1.2 million

shares of Wintrust's common stock. Pursuant to and in

partial settlement of the forward sale agreement, Wintrust

issued 1.0 million shares of its common stock, and

received net proceeds of $55.8 million from Royal Bank

of Canada. Additionally, on December 14, 2005, Wintrust

amended certain terms of the forward sale agreement for

the purpose of extending the maturity date for the remain-

ing 200,000 shares from December 17, 2005 to Decem-

ber 17, 2006. In conjunction with the completion of the

acquisition of HBI in May 2006, the forward sale agree-

ment was fully settled with Wintrust issuing 200,000

shares of its common stock and receiving net proceeds

of $11.6 million.

The Company issued 180,438 shares of common stock in

May 2004, 475,148 shares of common stock in September

2004, 372,535 shares of common stock in October 2004,

595,123 shares of common stock in March 2005 and

1,120,033 shares of common stock in May 2006 in con-

nection with the acquisitions of WestAmerica and

Guardian, Northview Bank, Town Bank, First Northwest

Bank and Hinsbrook Bank, respectively.  

In July 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved

the repurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of its outstand-

ing common stock over the next 18 months.  This repur-

chase plan replaces the previous share repurchase plan

that was announced in January 2000.  During 2006, the

Company repurchased 344,089 shares of its comon stock

for approximately $16.3 million, representing an average

price per share of $47.50.

At the January 2007 Board of Directors meeting, a semi-

annual cash dividend of $0.16 per share ($0.32 on an

annualized basis) was declared.  It was paid on February

22, 2007 to shareholders of record as of February 8, 2007. 

The following table summarizes the components of other

comprehensive income (loss), including the related

income tax effects, for the years ending December 31,

2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands): 

2006 2005 2004
Unrealized net gains (losses) on 

available-for-sale securities $ 3,222 (16,824) 651
Related tax (expense) benefit (1,160) 6,399 145
Net after tax unrealized gains (losses)

on available-for-sale securities 2,062 (10,425) 796

Less:  reclassification adjustment for
net gains realized in net income 
during the year 17 1,063 1,863

Related tax expense (6) (407) (714)
Net after tax reclassification adjustment 11 656 1,149

Unrealized net gains (losses) on 
available-for-sale securities, net
of reclassification adjustment 2,051 (11,081) (353)

Net unrealized gains (losses)
on derivatives used as cash 
flow hedges (2,390) 173 242

Related tax benefit (expense) 911 (67) (79)
Net unrealized gains (losses)

on derivatives used as cash 
flow hedges (1,479) 106 163

Total other comprehensive 
income (loss) $ 572 (10,975) (190)
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A roll-forward of the change in accumulated other com-

prehensive loss for the years ending December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004 is as follows (in thousands): 

2006 2005 2004
Accumulated other comprehensive 

loss at beginning of year $ (18,333) (7,358) (7,168)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 572 (10,975) (190)
Accumulated other comprehensive 

loss at end of year $ (17,761) (18,333) (7,358)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31,

2006, 2005 and 2004 is comprised of the following com-

ponents (in thousands): 

2006 2005 2004
Accumulated unrealized losses 

on securities available-for-sale $ (16,282) (18,333) (7,252)
Accumulated unrealized losses on 

derivatives used as cash flow hedges   (1,479) - (106)
Total accumulated other comprehensive 

loss at end of year $ (17,761) (18,333) (7,358)
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(24) Segment Information

The Company’s operations consist of four primary seg-

ments: banking, premium finance, Tricom and wealth

management.  Through its fifteen bank subsidiaries

located in suburban Chicago and Southern Wisconsin

communities, the Company provides traditional commu-

nity banking products and services to individuals and

businesses such as accepting deposits, advancing

loans, administering ATMs, maintaining safe deposit

boxes, and providing other related services.  The Pre-

mium Finance operations consist of financing the pay-

ment of commercial insurance premiums, on a national

basis, through FIFC.  Significant portions of the loans orig-

inated by FIFC are sold to the Banks and are retained in

each of their loan portfolios.  The Tricom segment

encompasses the operations of the Company’s non-bank

subsidiary that provides short-term accounts receivable

financing and value-added out-sourced administrative

services, such as data processing of payrolls, billing and

cash management services, to temporary staffing service

clients throughout the United States.  The Wealth Man-

agement segment includes WHTC, WHAMCO and WHI.

WHTC offers trust services to existing customers of the

Banks and targets affluent individuals and small to mid-

size businesses whose needs command personalized

attention by experienced trust and asset management

professionals.  WHI, a broker/dealer, provides a full-range

of investment products and services tailored to meet the

specific needs of individual investors, primarily in the Mid-

west.  WHI also provides a full range of investment serv-

ices to clients through a network of community-based

financial institutions primarily in Illinois.  WHAMCO is a

registered investment advisor and the investment advi-

sory affiliate of WHI. 

The four reportable segments are strategic business units

that are separately managed as they offer different prod-

ucts and services and have different marketing strategies.

In addition, each segment’s customer base has varying

characteristics.  The Banking segment has a different reg-

ulatory environment than the Premium Finance, Tricom

and Wealth Management segments.  While the Com-

pany’s management monitors each of the fifteen bank

subsidiaries’ operations and profitability separately, these

subsidiaries have been aggregated into one reportable

operating segment due to the similarities in products and

services, customer base, operations, profitability meas-

ures, and economic characteristics.

The segment financial information provided in the follow-

ing tables has been derived from the internal profitability

reporting system used by management to monitor and

manage the financial performance of the Company.  The

accounting policies of the segments are generally the

same as those described in the Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies in Note 1 to the Consolidated Finan-

cial Statements.  The Company evaluates segment per-

formance based on after-tax profit or loss and other

appropriate profitability measures common to each seg-

ment.  Certain indirect expenses have been allocated

based on actual volume measurements and other crite-

ria, as appropriate.  Intersegment revenue and transfers

are generally accounted for at current market prices.  The

Parent and Intersegment Eliminations reflect parent com-

pany information and intersegment eliminations. 
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The following is a summary of certain operating information for reportable segments (in thousands): 

Parent &
Premium Wealth Intersegment

Banking Finance Tricom Management Eliminations Consolidated
2006
Net interest income (expense) $ 235,166 42,3376 3,914 6,347 (38,917) 248,886
Provision for credit losses 6,342 2,196 120 - (1,601) 7,057
Noninterest incomee 40,625 2,883 4,598 38,021 5,105 91,232
Noninterest expense 175,088 10,593 5,370 39,177 (1,408) 228,820
Income tax expense (benefit) 33,274 12,882 1,207 1,933 (11,548) 37,748
Net income (loss) $ 61,087 19,588 1,815 3,258 (19,255) 66,493

Total assets at end of period $ 9,447,666 1,222,197 57,570 58,378 (1,213,959) 9,571,852

2005
Net interest income (expense) $ 211,705 40,533 4,101 1,419 (40,999) 216,759
Provision for credit losses 6,501 1,386 15 - (1,226) 6,676
Noninterest income 50,995 6,499 4,539 36,619 (5,095) 93,557
Noninterest expense 147,512 10,034 5,599 39,017 (3,472) 198,690
Income tax expense (benefit) 39,240 13,884 1,212 (390) (16,012) 37,934
Net income (loss) $ 69,447 21,728 1,814 (589) (25,384) 67,016

Total assets at end of period $ 8,065,671 859,536 63,858 61,828 (873,851) 8,177,042

2004
Net interest income (expense) $ 142,511 48,922 3,775 5,252 (42,636) 157,824
Provision for credit losses 6,211 1,095 5 - (1,013) 6,298
Noninterest income 41,418 7,347 3,984 35,396 (2,693) 85,452
Noninterest expense 103,245 13,604 5,195 38,953 (4,906) 156,091
Income tax expense (benefit) 27,099 16,503 1,027 573 (15,649) 29,553
Net income (loss) $ 47,374 25,067 1,532 1,122 (23,761) 51,334

Total assets at end of period $ 6,425,880 774,114 44,614 75,184 (900,744) 6,419,048

The Premium Finance segment information shown in the above tables was derived from their internal profitability reports,

which assumes that all loans originated and sold to the banking segment are retained within the segment that originated

the loans.  All related loan interest income, allocations for interest expense, provisions for credit losses and allocations

for other expenses are included in the Premium Finance segment. The Banking segment information also includes all

amounts related to these loans, as these loans are retained within the Banks’ loan portfolios.  Similarly, for purposes of

analyzing the contribution from the wealth management segment, management allocates the net interest income earned

by the Banking segment on deposit balances of customers of the wealth management segment to the wealth manage-

ment segment. Accordingly, the Intersegment Eliminations include adjustments necessary for each category to agree

with the related consolidated financial statements. 

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company changed the measurement methodology for the net interest income com-

ponent of the wealth management segment.  In conjunction with the change in the executive management team for this

segment in the third quarter of 2006, the contribution attributable to the wealth management deposits was redefined to

measure the full net interest income contribution.  In previous periods, the contribution from these deposits to the wealth

management segment was limited to the value as an alternative source of funding for each bank.  As such, the contri-

bution in previous periods did not capture the total net interest income contribution of this funding source.  Executive

management of this segment currently uses this measured contribution to determine the overall profitability of the wealth

management segment.
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(25)  Condensed Parent Company Financial Statements

Condensed parent company only financial statements of Wintrust follow. 

Balance Sheets
(in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005

Assets
Cash $ 648 46,696
Other investments 64,453 14,811
Loans to subsidiaries 2,300 900
Investment in subsidiaries 1,064,294 834,574
Goodwill 8,347 8,347
Other assets 26,046 25,791
Total assets $ 1,166,088 931,119

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Other liabilities $ 8,836 19,796
Notes payable 12,750 1,000
Subordinated notes 75,000 50,000
Other borrowings 46,328 1,954
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities 249,828 230,458
Shareholders' equity 773,346 627,911
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1,166,088 931,119

Statements of Income
(in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Income
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 183,550 45,125 25,500
Trading gains (losses) 8,738 (1,370) -
Other income 2,244 921 779
Total income 194,532 44,676 26,279

Expenses
Interest expense 23,609 18,435 10,685
Salaries and employee benefits 7,071 3,581 2,704
Other expenses 5,445 4,795 3,217
Total expenses 36,125 26,811 16,606
Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed net income (loss) of subsidiaries 158,407 17,865 9,673
Income tax benefit (9,270) (10,163) (6,091)
Income before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 167,677 28,028 15,764
Equity in undistributed net income (loss) of subsidiaries (101,184) 38,988 35,570
Net income $ 66,493 67,016 51,334
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Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Operating activities:
Net income      $ 66,493 67,016 51,334
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

(used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 288 103 211
Shared-based compensation expense 4,117 2,251 254
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 2,386 (1,189) (76)
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation arrangements 5,281 7,038 8,671
Fair market value change of interest rate swaps (1,809) 1,809 -
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements (4,565) - -
Increase in other assets (199,106) (9,401) (11,461)
Increase in other liabilities 8,363 8,842 8,132
Equity in undistributed net loss (income) of subsidiaries 101,184 (38,988) (35,570)

Net cash provided by operating activities 162,632 37,481 21,495

Investing activities:
Capital contributions to subsidiaries (196,050) (13,650) (49,955)
Cash paid for business combinations, net (56,821) (108,145) (37,245)
Other investing activity, net (49,233) (5,021) 149 
Net cash used for investing activities (302,104) (126,816) (87,051)

Financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in notes payable, net 56,165 (7,221) (28,870)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated note 25,000 - -
Repayment of subordinated note (8,000) - -
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - trust preferred securities 550,000 40,000 90,000
Redemption of long-term debt - trust preferred securities, net (31,050) (20,000) -
Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 11,584 55,845 -
Common stock issued upon exercise of stock options 6,373 6,115 4,807
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements 4,565 - -
Common stock issued through employee stock purchase plan 1,664 1,714 1,330
Proceeds from conversion of common stock warrants 427 940 1,146
Dividends paid (6,961) (5,449) (4,069)
Treasury stock purchases (16,343) - -
Net cash provided by financing activities 93,424 71,944 64,344
Net decrease in cash (46,048) (17,391) (1,212)
Cash at beginning of year 46,696 64,087 65,299
Cash at end of year $ 648 46,696 64,087
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(26)  Earnings Per Share 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share for 2006, 2005 and 2004

(in thousands, except per share data):

2006 2005 2004
Net income (A) $ 66,493 67,016 51,334
Average common shares outstanding (B) 25,011 23,198 20,646
Effect of dilutive common shares 916 1,139 1,326
Weighted average common shares and

effect of dilutive common shares (C) 25,927 24,337 21,972
Net income per common share - Basic (A/B) $ 2.66 2.89 2.49
Net income per common share - Diluted (A/C) $ 2.56 2.75 2.34

The effect of dilutive common shares outstanding results from stock options, restricted stock unit awards, stock warrants,

shares to be issued under the SPP and the DDFS Plan all being treated as if they had been either exercised or issued,

and are computed by application of the treasury stock method. 

(27)  Quarterly Financial Summary (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thou-

sands, except per share data):

2006 Quarters 2005 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

Interest income           $ 120,297 135,116 148,893 153,640 87,322  98,676 106,472 114,565
Interest expense 63,133 73,874 83,778 88,274 37,409 44,794 50,503 57,572
Net interest income 57,164 61,242 65,115 65,366 49,913 53,882 55,969 56,993
Provision for credit losses 1,536 1,743 1,885 1,893 1,231 1,294 3,077 1,073
Net interest income after provision

for credit losses 55,628 59,499 63,230 63,473 48,682 52,588 52,892 55,920
Non-interest income, excluding

net securities gains 28,645 24,388 18,833 19,350 24,380 15,563 28,403 24,148
Net securities gains (losses) 80 (95) (57) 89 - 978 89 (4)
Non-interest expense        54,460 55,907 58,989 59,465 48,304 49,016 50,326 51,044
Income before income taxes 29,893 27,885 23,017 23,447 24,758 20,113 31,058 29,020
Income tax expense 10,880 10,274 8,158 8,437 9,085 7,134 11,350 10,364
Net income       $ 19,013 17,611 14,859 15,010 15,673   12,979 19,708 18,656
Net income per common share:

Basic $ 0.79 0.71 0.58 0.59 0.72    0.55 0.83 0.78
Diluted $ 0.76 0.69 0.56 0.57 0.68    0.53 0.80 0.75

Cash dividends declared per common share $ 0.14 - 0.14 - 0.12    - 0.12 -
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The Board of Directors and Shareholders of 

Wintrust Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of condition of Wintrust Financial Corporation and sub-

sidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in share-

holders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006.  These financial state-

ments are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United

States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence support-

ing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial

position of Wintrust Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results

of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conform-

ity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of accounting for stock

options.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United

States), the effectiveness of Wintrust Financial Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,

2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 28, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon.

Chicago, Illinois

February 28, 2007

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on 
Consolidated Financial Statements
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion highlights the significant factors

affecting the operations and financial condition of Win-

trust for the three years ended December 31, 2006.  This

discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction

with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements

and Notes thereto, and Selected Financial Highlights

appearing elsewhere within this report.  This discussion

contains forward-looking statements concerning the

Company’s business that are based on estimates and

involve risks and uncertainties.  Therefore, future results

could differ significantly from management’s current

expectations and the related forward-looking statements.

See the last section of this discussion for further informa-

tion regarding forward-looking statements.

OPERATING SUMMARY

Wintrust’s key measures of profitability and balance sheet

growth are shown in the following table (dollars in thou-

sands, except per share data): 

Years Ended % or
December 31, basis point

2006 2005 (bp)change

Net income $ 66,493   $ 67,016 (1)%
Net income per common

share - Diluted $ 2.56      $ 2.75 (7)%
Net revenue (1) $   340,118    $ 310,316 10%1
Net interest income $   248,886    $ 216,759 15%1
Net interest margin (5) 3.10% 3.16% 1(6) bp
Core net interest margin (2)(5) 3.31% 3.37% 1(6) bp
Net overhead ratio (3) 1.54% 1.39% 15 bp
Efficiency ratio (4)(5) 66.96% 63.97% 299 bp
Return on average assets 0.74% 0.88% (14) bp
Return on average equity 9.47% 11.00% (153) bp

At end of period:
Total assets $ 9,571,852  $ 8,177,042 17%1
Total loans $ 6,496,480 $ 5,213,871 25%1
Total deposits $ 7,869,240   $ 6,729,434 17%1
Total equity $    773,346  $ 627,911 23%1
Book value per 

common share $ 30.38 $ 26.23 16%1
Market price per 

common share $ 48.02    $ 54.90 (13)%1
Common shares 

outstanding 25,457,935 23,940,744 6%

(1) Net revenue is net interest income plus non-interest income.
(2) Core net interest margin excludes the effect of the net interest expense

associated with Wintrust’s Long-term Debt - Trust Preferred Securities.
(3) The net overhead ratio is calculated by netting total non-interest ex-

pense and total non-interest income and dividing by that period’s total
average assets.  A lower ratio indicates a higher degree of efficiency.

(4) The efficiency ratio is calculated by dividing total non-interest expense
by tax-equivalent net revenue (excluding securities gains or losses).  A
lower ratio indicates more efficient revenue generation. 

(5) See “Non-GAAP Financial Measures/Ratios” for additional information
on this performance measure/ratio.

Please refer to the Consolidated Results of Operations

section later in this discussion for an analysis of the Com-

pany’s operations for the past three years. 

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES/RATIOS

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company

conform to generally accepted accounting principles

(“GAAP”) in the United States and prevailing practices in

the banking industry.  However, certain non-GAAP per-

formance measures and ratios are used by management

to evaluate and measure the Company’s performance.

These include taxable-equivalent net interest income

(including its individual components), net interest margin

(including its individual components), core net interest

margin and the efficiency ratio.  Management believes

that these measures and ratios provide users of the Com-

pany’s financial information a more meaningful view of

the performance of the interest-earning assets and inter-

est-bearing liabilities and of the Company’s operating effi-

ciency.  Other financial holding companies may define or

calculate these measures and ratios differently.

Management reviews yields on certain asset categories

and the net interest margin of the Company and its bank-

ing subsidiaries on a fully taxable-equivalent (“FTE”) basis.

In this non-GAAP presentation, net interest income is

adjusted to reflect tax-exempt interest income on an

equivalent before-tax basis.  This measure assists in the

comparability of net interest income arising from both tax-

able and tax-exempt sources.  Net interest income on a

FTE basis is also used in the calculation of the Com-

pany’s efficiency ratio.  The efficiency ratio, which is cal-

culated by dividing non-interest expense by total taxable-

equivalent net revenue (less securities gains or losses),

measures how much it costs to produce one dollar of

revenue.  Securities gains or losses are excluded from

this calculation to better match revenue from daily oper-

ations to operational expenses.

Management also evaluates the net interest margin

excluding the interest expense associated with the Com-

pany’s Long-term debt - trust preferred securities (“Core

Net Interest Margin”).  Because these instruments are uti-

lized by the Company primarily as capital instruments,

management finds it useful to view the net interest mar-

gin excluding this expense and deems it to be a more

meaningful view of the operational net interest margin of

the Company.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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The following table presents a reconciliation of certain

non-GAAP performance measures and ratios used by the

Company to evaluate and measure the Company’s per-

formance to the most directly comparable GAAP financial

measures for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005

and 2004 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(A) Interest income (GAAP) $ 557,945 $407,036 $ 261,746

Taxable-equivalent adjustment 
- Loans 409 531 450
- Liquidity management assets 1,195 777 285
- Other earning assets 17 19 50

Interest income - FTE $ 559,566 $ 408,363 $ 262,531
(B) Interest expense (GAAP) 309,059 190,277 103,922

Net interest income - FTE $ 250,507 $ 218,086 $ 158,609

(C) Net interest income (GAAP)
(A minus B) $ 248,886 $ 216,759 $ 157,824

Net interest income - FTE $ 250,507 $ 218,086 $ 158,609
Add: Interest expense on long-term 

debt - trust preferred securities(1) 17,611 14,672 7,213
Core net interest income - FTE (2) $ 268,118 $ 232,758 $ 165,822

(D) Net interest margin (GAAP) 3.07% 3.14% 3.15%
Net interest margin - FTE 3.10% 3.16% 3.17%
Core net interest margin - FTE (2) 3.31% 3.37% 3.31%

(E) Efficiency ratio (GAAP) 67.28% 64.25% 64.66%
Efficiency ratio - FTE 66.96% 63.97% 64.45%

(1) Interest expense from the long-term debt – trust preferred securities
is net of the interest income on the Common Securities owned
by the Trusts and included in interest income.

(2) Core net interest income and core net interest margin are by 
definition a non-GAAP measure/ratio. The GAAP equivalents are
the net interest income and net interest margin determined in
accordance with GAAP (lines C and D in the table).

OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

Wintrust is a financial holding company, providing tradi-

tional community banking services as well as a full array

of wealth management services.  The Company has

grown rapidly during the past few years and its Banks

have been among the fastest growing community-ori-

ented de novo banking operations in Illinois and the

country. As of December 31, 2006, the Company oper-

ated 15 community-oriented bank subsidiaries (the

“Banks”) with 73 banking locations.  During 2006, the

Company acquired one bank with five locations, opened

its ninth de novo bank and opened five new branches.

During 2005, the Company acquired two banks with

seven locations, opened six new branches and closed a

convenience facility.  The historical financial perform-

ance of the Company has been affected by costs asso-

ciated with growing market share in deposits and loans,

establishing new banks and opening new branch facili-

ties, and building an experienced management team.

The Company’s financial performance over the past sev-

eral years generally reflects improving profitability of its

operating subsidiaries, as they mature, offset by the

costs of opening new banks and branch facilities.  The

Company’s experience has been that it generally takes

13-24 months for new banking offices to first achieve

operational profitability. 

While committed to a continuing growth strategy, man-

agement’s ongoing focus is also to balance further asset

growth with earnings growth by seeking to more fully

leverage the existing capacity within each of the Banks

and non-bank subsidiaries.  One aspect of this strategy is

to continue to pursue specialized lending or earning

asset niches in order to maintain the mix of earning

assets in higher-yielding loans as well as diversify the

loan portfolio.  Another aspect of this strategy is a con-

tinued focus on less aggressive deposit pricing at the

Banks with significant market share and more estab-

lished customer bases. 

Specifically, given the current inverted yield curve and the

competitive pricing pressures on both the loan and

deposit sides of the balance sheet, our growth at the

banking subsidiaries during 2007 will focus more on the

younger facilities that are still growing into their infra-

structure.  At our more mature locations, we expect that

growth in 2007 will be somewhat slower than we have

historically achieved until market conditions, such as

higher interest rate spreads and better credit terms, pro-

vide for more profitable growth.  In this interest rate envi-

ronment, management believes this strategy will result in

more favorable net interest margins than if the Company

were to grow at a more rapid pace.  During 2007, given

the potential slower growth environment, management is



70 WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION

committed to working on changing the deposit mix struc-

ture to be less reliant on certificates of deposits, working

on rigorous expense control and promoting our commer-

cial lending and treasury management services to assist

in aiding our future profitability.

Wintrust also provides a full range of wealth management

services through its trust, asset management and broker-

dealer subsidiaries.

De Novo Bank Formations, Branch Openings and
Acquisitions

The Company developed its community banking fran-

chise through the formation of nine de novo banks, the

opening of branch offices of the Banks and acquisitions.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had 15 bank

subsidiaries with 73 banking facilities.  Construction of

several other banking offices is currently underway.

Following is a summary of the expansion of the Com-

pany’s banking franchise through newly chartered

banks, new branching locations and acquisitions over

the last three years.

2006 Banking Expansion Activity

Opened the Company’s ninth de novo bank

• Old Plank Trail Bank in Frankfort, Illinois

Opened the following branch locations

• St. Charles, Illinois, a branch of St. Charles Bank

• Algonquin Bank & Trust, a branch of Crystal Lake Bank

• Mokena, Illinois, a branch of Old Plank Trail Bank

• Elm Grove, Wisconsin, a branch of Town Bank

• New Lenox, Illinois, a branch of Old Plank Trail Bank

Acquired the following banks

• Hinsbrook Bank with locations in Willowbrook, Down-

ers Grove, Glen Ellyn, Darien and Geneva

2005 Banking Expansion Activity

Opened the following branch locations

• Wales, Wisconsin, a branch of Town Bank

• Glen Ellyn Bank, a branch of Wheaton Bank

• West Northbrook, a branch of Northbrook Bank

• Lake Bluff – drive through facility added to existing

banking office; a branch of Lake Forest Bank

• Northwest Highway in Barrington, a branch of Barring-

ton Bank

• Palatine Bank & Trust, a branch of Barrington Bank

Acquired the following banks

• State Bank of The Lakes with locations in Antioch, Lin-

denhurst, Grayslake, Spring Grove and McHenry

• First Northwest Bank with two locations in Arlington

Heights

Closed the following branch location

• Wayne Hummer Bank, a branch of North Shore Bank

2004 Banking Expansion Activity

Opened the Company’s eighth de novo bank

• Beverly Bank

Opened the following branch locations

• Community Bank of Downers Grove, a branch of Hins-

dale Bank

• Buffalo Grove Bank, a branch of Northbrook Bank

• Highland Park Bank – Ravinia, a branch of Lake Forest Bank

• Gurnee Community Bank, a branch of Libertyville Bank

• Lake Villa Community Bank, a branch of Libertyville Bank

• Sauganash, a branch of North Shore Bank

Acquired the following banks

• Northview Bank with two locations in Northfield, one in

Wheaton and one in Mundelein

• Town Bank, with locations in Delafield and Madison,

Wisconsin

Earning Asset, Wealth Management 
and Other Business Niches

As previously mentioned, the Company continues to pur-

sue specialized earning asset and business niches in

order to maximize the Company’s revenue stream as well

as diversify its loan portfolio.  A summary of the Com-

pany’s more significant earning asset niches and non-

bank operating subsidiaries follows.

In February 2002, the Company acquired the Wayne

Hummer Companies, comprising Wayne Hummer Invest-

ments LLC (“WHI”), Wayne Hummer Management Com-

pany, subsequently renamed Wayne Hummer Asset Man-

agement Company (“WHAMC”), and Focused Investments

LLC (“Focused”), each based in the Chicago area.

Focused was merged into WHI in 2006. In February

2003, the Company acquired Lake Forest Capital Man-

agement (“LFCM”), a registered investment advisor, which

was merged into WHAMC.

WHI, a registered broker-dealer, provides a full-range of

investment products and services tailored to meet the

specific needs of individual investors throughout the

country, primarily in the Midwest.  In addition WHI pro-

vides a full range of investment services to clients
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through a network of relationships with community-

based financial institutions located primarily in Illinois.

Although headquartered in Chicago, WHI also operates

an office in Appleton, Wisconsin that opened in 1936 and

serves the greater Appleton area.  As of December 31,

2006, WHI had branch locations in a majority of the Com-

pany’s banks.  WHI had approximately $5.4 billion in

client assets at December 31, 2006. 

WHAMC, a registered investment advisor, is the invest-

ment advisory affiliate of WHI. WHAMC provides money

management, financial planning and investment advisory

services to individuals and institutional municipal and tax-

exempt organizations. WHAMC also provides portfolio

management and financial supervision for a wide-range

of pension and profit sharing plans. At December 31,

2006, assets under management totaled approximately

$561 million.   

In September 1998, the Company formed a trust sub-

sidiary to expand the trust and investment management

services that were previously provided through the trust

department of Lake Forest Bank. With a separately char-

tered trust subsidiary, the Company is better able to offer

trust and investment management services to all com-

munities served by the Banks. The trust subsidiary was

originally named Wintrust Asset Management Company,

and was renamed in May 2002 to Wayne Hummer Trust

Company (“WHTC”) to align its name with the Company’s

other wealth management companies. In addition to

offering trust services to existing bank customers at each

of the Banks, the Company believes WHTC can success-

fully compete for trust business by targeting small to mid-

size businesses and affluent individuals whose needs

command the personalized attention offered by WHTC’s

experienced trust professionals. Services offered by

WHTC typically include traditional trust products and

services, as well as investment management services.

Assets under administration by WHTC as of December

31, 2006 were approximately $824 million. 

First Insurance Funding Corp. (“FIFC”) is the Company’s

most significant specialized earning asset niche, originat-

ing approximately $3.0 billion in loan (premium finance

receivables) volume during 2006. FIFC makes loans to

businesses to finance the insurance premiums they pay

on their commercial insurance policies.  The loans are

originated by FIFC working through independent medium

and large insurance agents and brokers located through-

out the United States.  The insurance premiums financed

are primarily for commercial customers’ purchases of lia-

bility, property and casualty and other commercial insur-

ance.  This lending involves relatively rapid turnover of

the loan portfolio and high volume of loan originations.

Because of the indirect nature of this lending and

because the borrowers are located nationwide, this seg-

ment may be more susceptible to third party fraud.  The

majority of these loans are purchased by the Banks in

order to more fully utilize their lending capacity.  These

loans generally provide the Banks with higher yields than

alternative investments. FIFC sold approximately $303

million, or 10%, of the receivables generated during 2006

to an unrelated third party with servicing retained.  The

Company began selling the excess of FIFC’s originations

over the capacity to retain such loans within the Banks’

loan portfolios during 1999.  The Company suspended

the sale of premium finance receivables to a third party in

the second half of 2006 as the Banks had sufficient

capacity to retain all of the originations during this period.

In addition to recognizing gains on the sale of these

receivables, the proceeds from sales provide the Com-

pany with additional liquidity. Consistent with the Com-

pany’s strategy to be asset-driven, similar sales of these

receivables may occur in the future; however, future

sales of these receivables depend on the level of new

volume growth in relation to the capacity to retain such

loans within the Banks’ loan portfolios.  See Consolidated

Results of Operations for further information on these

loan sales. 

As part of its continuing strategy to enhance and diversify

its earning asset base and revenue stream, in May 2004,

the Company acquired SGB Corporation d/b/a West-

America Mortgage Company (“WestAmerica”) and West-

America’s affiliate Guardian Real Estate Services, Inc.

(“Guardian”).  WestAmerica engages primarily in the origi-

nation and purchase of residential mortgages for sale into

the secondary market, and Guardian provides the docu-

ment preparation and other loan closing services to West

America and its network of mortgage brokers. West

America sells its loans with servicing released and does

not currently engage in servicing loans for others. West-

America maintains principal origination offices in nine

states, including Illinois, and originates loans in other

states through wholesale and correspondent offices.

WestAmerica provides the Banks with the ability to use

an enhanced loan origination and documentation system

which allows WestAmerica and each Bank to better uti-

lize existing operational capacity and expand the mort-

gage products offered to the Banks’ customers.  West-

America’s production of adjustable rate mortgage loans

may be retained by the Banks in their loan portfolios,

resulting in additional earning assets to the combined

organization, thus adding further desired diversification to

the Company’s earning asset base.
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In October 1999, the Company acquired Tricom, Inc. (“Tri-

com”) as part of its continuing strategy to pursue special-

ized earning asset niches.  Tricom is a Milwaukee-based

company that has been in business since 1989 and spe-

cializes in providing high-yielding, short-term accounts

receivable financing and value-added out-sourced admin-

istrative services, such as data processing of payrolls,

billing and cash management services to clients in the

temporary staffing industry. Tricom’s clients, located

throughout the United States, provide staffing services to

businesses in diversified industries. These receivables

may involve greater credit risks than generally associated

with the loan portfolios of more traditional community

banks depending on the marketability of the collateral.

The principal sources of repayments on the receivables

are payments received by the borrowers from their cus-

tomers who are located throughout the United States.  Tri-

com mitigates this risk by employing lockboxes and other

cash management techniques to protect its interests.  By

virtue of the Company’s funding resources, this acquisi-

tion has provided Tricom with additional capital neces-

sary to expand its financing services in a national market.

Tricom’s revenue principally consists of interest income

from financing activities and fee-based revenues from

administrative services.  Tricom processed payrolls with

associated client billings of approximately $531 million in

2006 and $462 million in 2005. 

In addition to the earning asset niches provided by the

Company’s non-bank subsidiaries, several earning asset

niches operate within the Banks, including indirect auto

lending which is conducted through Hinsdale Bank and

Barrington Bank’s Community Advantage program that

provides lending, deposit and cash management serv-

ices to condominium, homeowner and community asso-

ciations.  In addition, Hinsdale Bank operates a mortgage

warehouse lending program that provides loan and

deposit services to mortgage brokerage companies

located predominantly in the Chicago metropolitan area,

and Crystal Lake Bank has a specialty in small aircraft

lending.  The Company continues to pursue the devel-

opment or acquisition of other specialty lending busi-

nesses that generate assets suitable for bank investment

and/or secondary market sales.

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements are pre-

pared in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles in the United States and prevailing practices of

the banking industry.  Application of these principles

requires management to make estimates, assumptions,

and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the

financial statements and accompanying notes.  These esti-

mates, assumptions and judgments are based on informa-

tion available as of the date of the financial statements;

accordingly, as this information changes, the financial

statements could reflect different estimates, assumptions,

and judgments.  Certain policies and accounting principles

inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates,

assumptions and judgments and as such have a greater

possibility of producing results that could be materially dif-

ferent than originally reported.  Estimates, assumptions

and judgments are necessary when assets and liabilities

are required to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in

the value of an asset not carried on the financial state-

ments at fair value warrants an impairment write-down or

valuation reserve to be established, or when an asset or

liability needs to be recorded contingent upon a future

event.  Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value inherently

results in more financial statement volatility.  The fair val-

ues and the information used to record valuation adjust-

ments for certain assets and liabilities are based either on

quoted market prices or are provided by other third-party

sources, when available.  When third party information is

not available, valuation adjustments are estimated in good

faith by management primarily through the use of internal

cash flow modeling techniques. 

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting poli-

cies is presented in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.  These policies, along with the disclosures

presented in the other financial statement notes and in this

Management’s Discussion and Analysis section, provide

information on how significant assets and liabilities are val-

ued in the financial statements and how those values are

determined.  Management views critical accounting poli-

cies to be those which are highly dependent on subjective

or complex judgments, estimates and assumptions, and

where changes in those estimates and assumptions could
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have a significant impact on the financial statements.  Man-

agement currently views the determination of the

allowance for loan losses and the allowance for losses on

lending-related commitments, the valuations required for

impairment testing of goodwill, the valuation and account-

ing for derivative instruments and income taxes as the

accounting areas that require the most subjective and

complex judgments, and as such could be the most sub-

ject to revision as new information becomes available.  

Allowance for Loan Losses and Allowance for
Losses on Lending-Related Commitments

The allowance for loan losses represents management’s

estimate of probable credit losses inherent in the loan

portfolio. Determining the amount of the allowance for

loan losses is considered a critical accounting estimate

because it requires significant judgment and the use of

estimates related to the amount and timing of expected

future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on

pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss

experience, and consideration of current economic

trends and conditions, all of which are susceptible to 

significant change.  The loan portfolio also represents 

the largest asset type on the consolidated balance 

sheet.  The Company also maintains an allowance for

lending-related commitments, specifically unfunded loan

commitments and letters of credit, which relates to cer-

tain amounts the Company is committed to lend but for

which funds have not yet been disbursed.  Management

has established credit committees at each of the Banks

that evaluate the credit quality of the loan portfolio and

the level of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

and the allowance for lending-related commitments.  See

Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the

section titled “Credit Risk and Asset Quality” later in this

report for a description of the methodology used to deter-

mine the allowance for loan losses and the allowance for

lending-related commitments. 

Impairment Testing of Goodwill

As required by Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-

dards (“SFAS”) 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets,” the Company performs impairment testing of

goodwill on an annual basis or more frequently when

events warrant.  Valuations are estimated in good faith by

management primarily through the use of publicly avail-

able valuations of comparable entities for the Company’s

bank subsidiaries and internal cash flow models using

financial projections in the reporting unit’s business plan,

if public valuations are not available for the Company’s

non-bank entities.

Valuation and Accounting for Derivative Instruments

The Company utilizes derivative instruments to manage

risks such as interest rate risk or market risk.  The Com-

pany’s policy prohibits using derivatives for speculative

purposes.

Accounting for derivatives depends on whether a 

derivative qualifies as a hedge.  In order to qualify as a

hedge, a derivative must be designated as such by 

management, who must also continue to evaluate whether

the instrument effectively reduces the risk associated with

that item.  To determine if a derivative instrument 

continues to be an effective hedge, the Company must

make assumptions and judgments about the continued

effectiveness of the hedging strategies and the nature

and timing of forecasted transactions.  If the Company’s

hedging strategy were to become ineffective, hedge

accounting would no longer apply and the reported

results of operations or financial condition could be

materially affected.

Income Taxes

The Company is subject to the income tax laws of the

U.S., its states and other jurisdictions where it conducts

business.  These laws are complex and subject to differ-

ent interpretations by the taxpayer and the various taxing

authorities.  In determining the provision for income

taxes, management must make judgments and estimates

about the application of these inherently complex laws,

related regulations and case law.  In the process of

preparing the Company’s tax returns, management

attempts to make reasonable interpretations of the tax

laws.  These interpretations are subject to challenge by

the tax authorities upon audit or to reinterpretation based

on management’s ongoing assessment of facts and

evolving case law.

On a quarterly basis, management assesses the reason-

ableness of its effective tax rate based upon its current

best estimate of net income and the applicable taxes

expected for the full year.  Deferred tax assets and liabili-

ties are reassessed on a quarterly basis, if business

events or circumstances warrant.  Reserves for contin-

gent tax liabilities are reviewed quarterly for adequacy

based upon developments in tax law and the status of

examinations or audits.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of Wintrust’s results of opera-

tions requires an understanding that a majority of the

Company’s bank subsidiaries have been started as new

banks since December 1991. The Company’s premium

finance company, FIFC, began limited operations in 1991

as a start-up company. The Company’s trust subsidiary,

WHTC, began operations in September 1998. Previously,

the Company’s Lake Forest Bank operated a trust depart-

ment on a much smaller scale than WHTC. Tricom started

operations as a new company in 1989 and was acquired

by the Company in 1999. In February 2002, Wintrust

acquired the Wayne Hummer Companies, expanding and

diversifying its revenue streams with asset management

and brokerage fees. In February 2003, the Company aug-

mented its asset management business with the acquisi-

tion of Lake Forest Capital Management. In May 2004, the

Company acquired WestAmerica and Guardian to

enhance and diversify its earning asset base and revenue

stream. Wintrust started nine of its bank subsidiaries as

de novo institutions and made its first bank acquisition in

2003. The Company acquired Advantage Bank and Vil-

lage Bank in the fourth quarter of 2003, Northview Bank

(which has been renamed Wheaton Bank) and Town

Bank in September and October of 2004, respectively,

State Bank of The Lakes and First Northwest Bank (which

was merged into Village Bank) in the first quarter of 2005

and Hinsbrook Bank (which has been renamed St.

Charles Bank) in May 2006. Accordingly, Wintrust is still a

young company that has a strategy of continuing to build

its customer base and securing broad product penetra-

tion in each marketplace that it serves. The Company has

expanded its banking franchise from three banks with

five offices in 1994 to 15 banks with 73 offices at the end

of 2006.  FIFC has matured from its limited operations in

1991 to a company that generated, on a national basis,

$3.0 billion in premium finance receivables in 2006. In

addition, the wealth management companies have been

building a team of experienced professionals who are

located within a majority of the Banks. These expansion

activities have understandably suppressed faster, oppor-

tunistic earnings. However, as the Company matures

and our existing Banks become more profitable, the

start-up costs associated with future bank and branch

openings and other new financial services ventures will

not have as significant an impact on earnings. Addition-

ally, the Company’s more mature banks have several

operating ratios that are either comparable to or better

than peer group data, suggesting that as the Banks

become more established, the overall earnings level will

continue to increase.

Earnings Summary

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2006,

totaled $66.5 million, or $2.56 per diluted common share,

compared to $67.0 million, or $2.75 per diluted common

share, in 2005, and $51.3 million, or $2.34 per diluted

common share, in 2004.  During 2006, net income

remained essentially the same decreasing 1% while earn-

ings per diluted common share decreased 7%, and during

2005, net income increased 31% while earnings per

diluted common share increased 18%.  Financial results

in 2006 were negatively impacted by the adoption of

SFAS 123R (stock option expense), compressed interest

spreads, a decrease in fees from covered call options,

lower levels of mortgage banking revenue and lower

sales of premium finance receivables, and was positively

impacted by the fair value adjustments related to certain

derivatives.  Financial results in 2005 compared to 2004

were positively impacted by a higher level of earning

assets and mortgage banking revenue as a result of

growth at existing branch locations coupled with acquisi-

tions.  Return on average equity was 9.47% in 2006,

11.00% in 2005 and 13.12% in 2004.

Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Company’s revenue is net

interest income. Net interest income is the difference

between interest income and fees on earning assets,

such as loans and securities, and interest expense on the

liabilities to fund those assets, including interest bearing

deposits and other borrowings. The amount of net inter-

est income is affected by both changes in the level of

interest rates and the amount and composition of earning

assets and interest bearing liabilities. In order to compare

the tax-exempt asset yields to taxable yields, interest

income in the following discussion and tables is adjusted

to tax-equivalent yields based on the marginal corporate

Federal tax rate of 35%.

Tax-equivalent net interest income in 2006 totaled

$250.5 million, up from $218.1 million in 2005 and

$158.6 million in 2004, representing increases of $32.4

million, or 15%, in 2006 and $59.5 million, or 38%, in

2005. These improved levels of net interest income

were primarily attributable to increases in average earn-

ing assets. The table presented later in this section, titled

“Changes in Interest Income and Expense,” presents the

dollar amount of changes in interest income and

expense, by major category, attributable to changes in

the volume of the balance sheet category and changes

in the rate earned or paid with respect to that category of

assets or liabilities for 2006 and 2005. Average earning

assets increased $1.2 billion, or 17%, in 2006 and $1.9

billion, or 38%, in 2005. Loans are the most significant
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component of the earning asset base as they earn inter-

est at a higher rate than the other earning assets. Aver-

age loans increased $875.4 million, or 17%, in 2006 and

$1.3 billion, or 33%, in 2005. Total average loans as a

percentage of total average earning assets were 74.3%,

74.5% and 77.1% in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

The average yield on loans was 7.60% in 2006, 6.54% in

2005 and 5.66% in 2004, reflecting an increase of 106

basis points in 2006 and an increase of 88 basis points

in 2005. The higher loan yield in 2006 compared to 2005

and in 2005 compared to 2004 are reflective of the inter-

est rate increases effected by the Federal Reserve Bank

offset by continued competitive loan pricing pressures.

Similarly, the average rate paid on interest bearing

deposits, the largest component of the Company’s inter-

est bearing liabilities, was 3.97% in 2006, 2.80% in 2005

and 2.08% in 2004, representing an increase of 117

basis points in 2006 and an increase of 72 basis points

in 2005.  The interest bearing deposits yield increased in

2006 due to higher costs of retail deposits as rates have

generally risen in 2006, continued competitive pricing

pressures on fixed-maturity time deposits in most mar-

kets and promotional pricing activities associated with

opening additional de novo branches and branches

acquired through acquisition.

Net interest margin, which reflects net interest income as

a percent of average earning assets, was 3.10% in 2006,

3.16% in 2005 and 3.17% in 2004.  The continued lower

level of average loans to average earning assets was a

large contributing factor in the net interest margin

decrease in 2006 as excess funds were invested in lower

yielding liquidity management assets.  Additionally, com-

petitive loan and deposit pricing pressures have resulted

in narrower spreads.

The core net interest margin, which excludes the impact

of the Company’s Trust Preferred Securities, was 3.31% in

2006, 3.37% in 2005 and 3.31% in 2004. Management

evaluates the net interest margin excluding the interest

expense associated with the Company’s long-term debt -

trust preferred securities. Because these instruments are

utilized by the Company primarily as capital instruments,

management finds it useful to view the net interest mar-

gin excluding this expense and deems it to be a more

accurate view of the operational net interest margin of the

Company. See Non-GAAP Financial Measures/Ratios sec-

tion of this report.

Net interest income and net interest margin were also

affected by amortization of valuation adjustments to earn-

ing assets and interest-bearing liabilities of acquired busi-

nesses.  Under the purchase method of accounting,

assets and liabilities of acquired businesses are required

to be recognized at their estimated fair value at the date

of acquisition.  These valuation adjustments represent

the difference between the estimated fair value and the

carrying value of assets and liabilities acquired.  These

adjustments are amortized into interest income and inter-

est expense based upon the estimated remaining lives of

the assets and liabilities acquired.  See Note 7 of the Con-

solidated Financial Statements for further discussion of

the Company’s business combinations.
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Average Balance Sheets, Interest Income and Expense, and Interest Rate Yields and Costs

The following table sets forth the average balances, the interest earned or paid thereon, and the effective interest rate,

yield or cost for each major category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities for the years ended Decem-

ber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The yields and costs include loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs that

are considered adjustments to yields. Interest income on non-accruing loans is reflected in the year that it is collected, to

the extent it is not applied to principal. Such amounts are not material to net interest income or the net change in net inter-

est income in any year. Non-accrual loans are included in the average balances and do not have a material effect on the

average yield. Net interest income and the related net interest margin have been adjusted to reflect tax-exempt income,

such as interest on municipal securities and loans, on a tax-equivalent basis. This table should be referred to in con-

junction with this analysis and discussion of the financial condition and results of operations (dollars in thousands).

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/

Balance(1) Interest Rate Balance(1) Interest Rate Balance(1) Interest Rate
Assets
Interest bearing deposits with banks $ 13,361 $ 651 4.87% $       9,003 $         278      3.10% $ 5,447 $ 80 1.47%
Securities 1,930,662 94,593 4.90 1,627,523 67,333 4.14 1,031,574 41,176 3.99
Federal funds sold and securities 

purchased under resale agreements 110,775 5,393 4.87 102,199 3,485 3.41 71,870 934 1.30
Total liquidity management assets (2) (8) 2,054,798 100,637 4.90 1,738,725 71,096 4.09 1,108,891 42,190 3.80
Other earning assets (2) (3) 29,675 2,136 7.20 23,644 1,345 5.69 38,901 1,593 4.10
Loans, net of unearned income (2) (4) (8) 6,013,344 456,793 7.60 5,137,912 335,922 6.54 3,861,683 218,748 5.66

Total earning assets (8) 8,097,817 559,566 6.91 6,900,281 408,363 5.92 5,009,475 262,531 5.24
Allowance for loan losses (44,648) (40,566) (30,014)
Cash and due from banks 125,253 138,253 92,299
Other assets 747,135 589,634 379,767
Total assets $ 8,925,557 $ 7,587,602 $ 5,451,527

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Deposits - interest bearing:

NOW accounts $ 811,727 $ 19,548 2.41% $ 699,323 $    11,973     1.71% $    481,759 $      4,805 1.00%
Wealth management deposits 464,438 20,456 4.40 407,816 10,181 2.50 360,047 2,513 0.70
Money market accounts 6339,590 17,497 2.74 657,788 11,071 1.68 528,831 5,248 0.99
Savings accounts 307,142 4,275 1.39 298,468 2,629 0.88 197,132 1,033 0.52
Time deposits 4,472,242 203,953 4.56 3,507,771 120,398 3.43 2,433,036 69,536 2.86

Total interest bearing deposits 6,695,139 265,729 3.97 5,571,166 156,252 2.80 4,000,805 83,135 2.08

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 364,149 14,675 4.03 333,108 11,912 3.58 222,278 8,070 3.63
Notes payable and other borrowings 149,764 5,638 3.76 167,930 4,178 2.49 154,577 2,358 1.53
Subordinated notes 66,742 4,695 6.94 50,000 2,829 5.66 50,000 2,891 5.78
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities 237,249 18,322 7.62 217,983 15,106 6.93 130,830 7,468 5.71

Total interest bearing liabilities 7,513,043 309,059 4.11 6,340,187 190,277 3.00 4,558,490 103,922 2.28

Non-interest bearing deposits 623,542 592,879 400,333
Other liabilities 87,178 45,369 101,369
Equity 701,794 609,167 391,335
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 8,925,557 $ 7,587,602 $ 5,451,527

Interest rate spread (5) (8) 2.80% 2.92% 2.96%
Net free funds/contribution (6) $ 584,774 0.30% $ 560,094 0.24% $ 450,985 0.21%
Net interest income/Net interest margin (8) $ 250,507 3.10% $ 218,086 3.16% $ 158,609 3.17%
Core net interest margin (7) (8) 3.31% 3.37% 3.31%

(1) Average balances were generally computed using daily balances.
(2) Interest income on tax-advantaged loans, trading account securities and securities reflects a tax-equivalent adjustment based on a marginal federal corpo-

rate tax rate of 35%.  The total adjustments reflected in the above table are $1.621 million, $1.327 million and $785,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004 
respectively.

(3) Other earning assets include brokerage customer receivables and trading account securities.
(4) Loans, net of unearned income, include mortgages held-for-sale and non-accrual loans.
(5) Interest rate spread is the difference between the yield earned on earning assets and the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities.
(6) Net free funds are the difference between total average earning assets and total average interest-bearing liabilities.  The estimated contribution

to net interest margin from net free funds is calculated using the rate paid for total interest-bearing liabilities.
(7) The core net interest margin excludes the effect of the net interest expense associated with Wintrust’s Long-term Debt – Trust Preferred Securities.
(8) See “Non-GAAP Financial Measures/Ratios” for additional information on this performance measure/ratio.
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Changes in Interest Income and Expense

The following table shows the dollar amount of changes in interest income (on a tax-equivalent basis) and expense by

major categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities attributable to changes in volume or rate for the

periods indicated (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 Compared to 2005 2005 Compared to 2004

Change Change Change Change
Due to Due to Total Due to Due to Total
Rate Volume Change Rate Volume Change

Interest income:
Interest bearing deposits with banks $ 202 171 373 $       125 73 198
Securities 13,536 13,724 27,260 1,604 24,553 26,157
Federal funds sold and securities purchased 

under resale agreement 1,595 313 1,908 2,027 524 2,551 
Total liquidity management assets 15,333 14,208 29,541 3,756 25,150 28,906
Other earning assets 404 387 791 499 (747) (248)
Loans 58,934 61,937 120,871 37,659 79,515 117,174

Total interest income 74,671 76,532 151,203 41,914 103,918 145,832

Interest expense:
Deposits - interest bearing:
NOW accounts 5,437 2,138 7,575 4,394 2,774 7,168
Wealth management deposits 8,690 1,585 10,275 7,298 370 7,668
Money market accounts 6,742 (316) 6,426 4,321 1,502 5,823
Savings accounts 1,5567 79 1,646 915 681 1,596
Time deposits 51,354 32,201 83,555 15,881 34,981 50,862

Total interest expense  - deposits 73,790 35,687 109,477 32,809 40,308 73,117
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,587 1,176 2,763 (111) 3,953 3,842
Notes payable and other borrowings 2,849 (1,389) 1,460 1,694 126 1,820
Subordinated notes 786 1,080 1,866 (54) (8) (62)
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities 1,822 1,394 3,216 2,037 5,601 7,638

Total interest expense 80,834 37,948 118,782 36,375 49,980 86,355
Net interest income $ (6,163) 38,584 32,421 $ 5,539 53,938 59,477

The changes in net interest income are created by changes in both interest rates and volumes. The change in the Com-

pany’s net interest income for the periods under review was predominantly impacted by the growth in the volume of the

overall interest-earning assets (specifically loans) and interest-bearing deposit liabilities. In the table above, volume vari-

ances are computed using the change in volume multiplied by the previous year’s rate. Rate variances are computed

using the change in rate multiplied by the previous year’s volume. The change in interest due to both rate and volume

has been allocated between factors in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

The change in interest due to an additional day resulting from the 2004 leap year has been allocated entirely to the

change due to volume.

Provision for Credit Losses  

The provision for credit losses totaled $7.1 million in 2006, $6.7 million in 2005, and $6.3 million in 2004.  Net charge-

offs totaled $5.2 million in 2006, $4.9 million in 2005 and $2.7 million in 2004.  The allowance for loan losses as a per-

centage of loans at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was 0.71%, 0.77% and 0.79%, respectively.  Non-performing loans

were $36.9 million and $26.2 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  In 2006, the Company reclassified

$92,000 from a separate liability account which represents the portion of the allowance for loan losses that was associ-

ated with lending-related commitments, specifically unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit. In 2005, the Com-

pany reclassified $491,000 from its allowance for loan losses to the allowance for lending-related commitments. In future

periods, the provision for credit losses may contain both a component related to funded loans (provision for loan losses)
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and a component related to lending-related commitments (provision for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit).

While management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate to provide for losses inherent in the portfolio, there

can be no assurances that losses will not exceed the amounts provided for, thereby affecting future results of operations.

The amount of future additions to the allowance for loan losses and the allowance for lending-related commitments will

be dependent upon the economy, changes in real estate values, interest rates, the regulatory environment, the level of

past-due and non-performing loans, and other factors.  Please refer to the “Credit Risk and Asset Quality” section of this

report for further discussion of the Company’s loan loss experience and non-performing assets.  

Non-interest Income

Non-interest income totaled $91.2 million in 2006, $93.6 million in 2005 and $85.5 million in 2004, reflecting a decrease

of 2.5% in 2006 compared to 2005, and an increase of 10% in 2005 compared to 2004.  Non-interest income as a per-

centage of net revenue declined to 27% in 2006 compared to 30% in 2005 and 35% in 2004.  The six community bank

acquisitions in 2003, 2004 and 2005 contributed to this decline as their predominant source of revenue is net interest

income. The following table presents non-interest income by category for 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands).  

YYeeaarrss  eennddeedd  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22000066  ccoommppaarreedd  ttoo  22000055  2005 compared to 2004

22000066 2005 2004 $$  CChhaannggee  %%  CChhaannggee  $ Change % Change 

Brokerage $$      1199,,661155 20,154 22,892 $$              ((553399)) ((22..77))%% $ (2,738) (12.0)%

Trust and asset management 1122,,110055 9,854        8,764 22,,225511 2222..99 1,090 12.4

Total wealth management fees   3311,,772200 30,008      31,656 11,,771122 55..77 (1,648) (5.2)

Mortgage banking 2222,,334411 25,913     18,250 ((33,,557722)) ((1133..88)) 7,663 42.0

Service charges on deposit accounts 77,,114466 5,983       4,100 11,,116633 1199..44 1,883 45.9

Gain on sales of premium 

finance receivables 22,,888833 6,499       7,347 ((33,,661166)) ((5555..66)) (848) (11.5)

Administrative services 44,,559988 4,539       3,984 5599 11..33 555 13.9

Gains on available-for-sale securities, net 1177 1,063 1,863 ((11,,004466)) ((9988..44)) (800) (42.9)

Other:

Fees from covered call options 33,,115577 11,434       11,121 ((88,,227777)) ((7722..44)) 313 2.8

Trading income - net cash settlement 

of swaps 11,,223377 440 - 779977 118811..11 440 NM

Trading income (loss) - change in fair

market value 77,,551144 (1,339) - 88,,885533 666611..22 (1,339) NM

Bank Owned Life Insurance 22,,994488 2,431        1,997 551177 2211..33 434 21.7

Miscellaneous 77,,667711 6,586       5,134 11,,008855 1166..55 1,452 28.3

Total other 2222,,552277 19,552 18,252 22,,997755 1155..22 1,300 7.1

Total non-interest income $$        9911,,223322 93,557 85,452 $$          ((22,,332255))    ((22..55))%% $ 8,105 9.5%

NM - Not Meaningful

Wealth management fees are comprised of the trust and asset management revenue of WHTC and the asset manage-

ment fees, brokerage commissions, trading commissions and insurance product commissions generated by the Wayne

Hummer Companies.  In December 2006, Focused Investments was merged into its parent WHI and is now being mar-

keted as part of the Wayne Hummer Wealth Management family of products.  Trust and asset management fees repre-

sent WHTC’s trust fees which include fees earned on assets under management, custody fees and other trust related fees

and WHAMC’s fees for advisory services to individuals and institutions, municipal and tax-exempt organizations, includ-

ing the management of the Wayne Hummer proprietary mutual funds.  The brokerage income is generated by WHI, the

Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary.

Brokerage revenue is directly impacted by trading volumes. In 2006, brokerage revenue totaled $19.6 million, reflecting

a decrease of $539,000, or 2.7%, compared to 2005. The Company anticipates continued recognition of revenue

enhancement capabilities and cost saving opportunities as a result of the conversion to an out-sourced securities clear-

ing platform completed by WHI in the third quarter of 2005 and continued growth of the wealth management platform

throughout its banking locations.  In 2005, brokerage revenue totaled $20.2 million reflecting a decrease of $2.7 million,

or 12.0%, compared to 2004.  
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Trust and asset management fees totaled $12.1 million in

2006, an increase of $2.3 million, or 22.9%, compared to

2005.  The 2006 trust and asset management fees

include a $2.4 million gain on the sale of the Wayne

Hummer Growth Fund. In 2005, trust and asset man-

agement fees totaled $9.9 million and increased $1.1

million, or 12.4%, compared to 2004. These fees are

based primarily on the market value of the assets under

management or administration. Trust assets and assets

under management totaled $1.4 billion at December 31,

2006, $1.6 billion at December 31, 2005 and $1.7 billion

at December 31, 2004.  The Wayne Hummer Growth

Fund, which was managed by WHAMC and sold during

the first quarter of 2006 had total assets of $162 million

at December 31, 2005.    

Mortgage banking revenue includes revenue from activi-

ties related to originating and selling residential real

estate loans into the secondary market.  With the addition

of WestAmerica and Guardian in May 2004, this revenue

line now includes gains on the sales of mortgage loans to

the secondary market, origination fees, rate lock commit-

ment fees, document preparation fees, the impact of cap-

italizing servicing rights on loans sold and serviced by

certain Wintrust Banks and the impact of amortizing and

valuing the capitalized servicing right asset.  Mortgage

banking revenue totaled $22.3 million in 2006, $25.9 mil-

lion in 2005, and $18.3 million in 2004, reflecting a

decrease of $3.6 million, or 13.8%, in 2006, and an

increase $7.7 million, or 42.0%, in 2005.  Mortgage bank-

ing revenue continues to be negatively impacted by the cur-

rent interest rate environment and will be dependent upon

the relative level of long-term interest rates in future periods.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provi-

sions of SFAS 156 and elected the fair value measurement

method for mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”).  Prior to Jan-

uary 1, 2006, MSRs were accounted for at the lower of their

initial carrying value, net of accumulated amortization, or

fair value.  Included in the 2006 mortgage banking revenue

decrease is $514,000 of MSR valuation adjustment/amorti-

zation (additional expense) compared to 2005.

Service charges on deposit accounts totaled $7.1 million

in 2006, $6.0 million in 2005 and $4.1 million in 2004.

These increases of 19.4% in 2006 and 45.9% in 2005,

were due mainly to the fees generated by the community

banks acquired since the fourth quarter of 2003.  The

majority of deposit service charges relates to customary

fees on overdrawn accounts and returned items.     

Gain on sales of premium finance receivables results

from the Company’s sales of premium finance receiv-

ables to an unrelated third party.  The majority of the

receivables originated by FIFC are purchased by the

Banks to more fully utilize their lending capacity.  How-

ever, the Company has historically sold premium

finance receivables to an unrelated third party, with

servicing retained.  Having a program in place to sell

premium finance receivables to a third party allows the

Company to execute its strategy to be asset-driven

while providing the benefits of additional sources of liq-

uidity and revenue.  The level of premium finance

receivables sold to an unrelated third party depends in

large part on the capacity of the Banks to retain such

loans in their portfolio.

As a result of capacity within the Banks to retain the pre-

mium finance receivables originated by FIFC, in the third

and fourth quarters of 2006, the Company did not sell

premium finance receivables to an unrelated third party.

Consistent with the Company’s strategy to be asset-

driven, it is possible that sales of these receivables may

occur in the future.  The Company did recognize gains

totaling $2.9 million in 2006 related to the sale of pre-

mium finance receivables to an unrelated third party in

the first half of 2006, $6.5 million in 2005 and $7.3 million

in 2004.  Loans sold totaled $303 million in 2006, $562

million in 2005 and $496 million in 2004, representing

10%, 21% and 19% of FIFC’s total originations in 2006,

2005 and 2004, respectively. 

As FIFC continues to service the loans sold, it recognizes

a retained interest in the loans sold which consists of a

servicing asset, interest only strip and a recourse obliga-

tion, upon each sale.  Recognized gains, recorded in

accordance with SFAS 140, as well as the Company’s

retained interests in these loans are based on the Com-

pany’s projection of cash flows that will be generated

from the loans. The cash flow model incorporates the

amounts FIFC is contractually entitled to receive from the

customer, including an estimate of late fees, the amounts

due to the purchaser of the loans, fees paid to insurance

agents as well as estimates of the term of the loans and

credit losses. Significant differences in actual cash

flows and the projected cash flows can cause impair-

ment to the servicing asset and interest only strip as

well as the recourse obligation. The Company monitors

the performance of these loans on a “static pool” basis

and adjusts the assumptions in its cash flow model

when warranted.  These loans have relatively short

maturities (less than 12 months) and prepayments are

not highly correlated to movements in interest rates.

Due to the short-term nature of these loans, the Com-

pany believes that the book value of the servicing asset

approximates fair value.

The Company capitalized $2.8 million and amortized

$4.7 million in servicing assets related to the sale of these
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loans in 2006, and capitalized $5.0 million and amortized

$4.5 million in servicing assets related to sale of these

loans in 2005.  As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s

retained interest in the loans sold included a servicing

asset of $522,000, an interest only strip of $878,000 and

a liability for its recourse obligation of $129,000. 

Gains are significantly dependent on the spread between

the net yield on the loans sold and the rate passed on to

the purchaser. The net yield on the loans sold and the

rates passed on to the purchaser typically do not react in

a parallel fashion, therefore causing the spreads to vary

from period to period. This spread ranged from 2.62% to

3.24% in 2006, compared to 2.71% to 3.74% in 2005 and

4.02% to 4.84% in 2004.  The spreads narrowed as yields

on the premium finance receivables have not risen com-

mensurately with increases in short term rates.    

The Company typically makes a clean up call by repur-

chasing the remaining loans in the pools sold after approx-

imately ten months from the sale date.  Upon repurchase,

the loans are recorded in the Company’s premium finance

receivables portfolio and any remaining balance of the

Company’s retained interest is recorded as an adjustment

to the gain on sale of premium finance receivables.  During

2006 and 2005,  clean-up calls resulted in increased gains

(primarily from reversing the remaining balance of recourse

obligations on repurchased loans) of $761,000 and

$248,000, respectively, while clean-up calls during 2004

resulted in charges of approximately $272,000.  The Com-

pany continuously monitors the performance of the loan

pools to the projections and adjusts the assumptions in its

cash flow model when warranted.  Credit losses on loans

sold were estimated at  0.15% of the estimated average bal-

ances in 2006, at a range of 0.15% to 0.25% for 2005 and

at 0.25% in  2004. The decreases in estimated credit losses

since 2004 were a result of a lower levels of charge-offs in

FIFC’s overall premium finance receivables portfolio.  The

gains are also influenced by the number of months these

loans are estimated to be outstanding. The estimated aver-

age terms of the loans were 9 months in 2006 and eight to

nine months in 2005 and eight months in 2004.  The appli-

cable discount rate used in determining gains related to

this activity was the same in 2006, 2005 and 2004.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, premium finance loans

sold and serviced for others for which the Company

retains a recourse obligation related to credit losses totaled

approximately $58.3 million and $260.6 million, respec-

tively.  The remaining estimated recourse obligation car-

ried in other liabilities was approximately $129,000 and

$240,000, at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Credit losses incurred on loans sold are applied against

the recourse obligation liability that is established at the

date of sale.  Credit losses, net of recoveries, for premium

finance receivables sold and serviced for others totaled

$191,000 in 2006, $269,000 in 2005 and $177,000 in

2004.  At December 31, 2006, non-performing loans

related to this sold portfolio were approximately $3.5 mil-

lion, or 6.02% of the sold loans, compared to $3.2 million,

or 1.23%, of the sold loans at December 31, 2005.  The

premium finance portfolio owned by the Company had a

ratio of non-performing loans to total loans of 1.07% at

December 31, 2006 and 1.40% at December 31, 2005. Ulti-

mate losses on premium finance loans are substantially

less than non-performing loans for the reasons noted in the

“Non-performing Premium Finance Receivables” portion of

the “Credit Risk and Asset Quality” section of this report. 

Administrative services revenue generated by Tricom was

$4.6 million in 2006, $4.5 million in 2005 and $4.0 million

in 2004.  This revenue comprises income from adminis-

trative services, such as data processing of payrolls,

billing and cash management services, to temporary

staffing service clients located throughout the United

States.  During 2005, Tricom increased sales volumes

with its current client base, however continued to experi-

ence competitive rate pressures.  

Premium income from covered call option and put option

transactions totaled $3.2 million in 2006, $11.4 million in

2005 and $11.1 million in 2004.  The increases in the fees

from covered call and put options in 2005 and 2004 are

due to the mix in the types of underlying securities and the

volatility in the marketplace that resulted in higher premi-

ums for the options. During 2006, call option contracts

were written against $1.6 billion of underlying securities,

compared to $3.3 billion in 2005 and $2.0 billion in 2004.

The same security may be included in this total more than

once to the extent that multiple call option contracts were

written against it if the initial call option contracts were not

exercised.  The Company routinely writes call options

with terms of less than three months against certain U.S.

Treasury and agency securities held in its portfolio for liq-

uidity and other purposes. Management enters into these

transactions with the goal of enhancing its overall return

on its investment portfolio by using the fees generated

from these options to compensate for net interest margin

compression.  These option transactions are designed to

increase the total return associated with holding certain

investment securities and do not qualify as hedges pur-

suant to SFAS 133.  There were no outstanding call option

contracts at December 31, 2006 or December 31, 2005.

The Company recognized trading income related to

interest rate swaps not designated in hedge rela-

tionships and the trading account assets of its bro-

ker-dealers. Trading income recognized for the net

cash settlement of swaps is income that would have

been recognized regardless of whether the swaps
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were designated in hedging relationships. However, in the absence of hedge accounting, the net cash settlement of the

swaps is included in trading income rather than net interest income.  Trading income totaled $7.5 million in 2006, com-

pared to a loss of $1.3 million in 2005. The trading income is almost entirely related to the appreciation in the interest

rate swaps as the fair market value of the rate swaps increased as rates have risen since 2005. In July 2006, the Com-

pany settled its position in these interest rate swap contracts by selling them to third parties.  The Company realized

approximately $5.8 million from the settlement of these swaps and eliminated any further earnings volatility due to the

changes in fair values. These interest rate swaps were initially entered into to hedge the Company’s variable rate trust-

preferred securities and subordinated notes and were determined to not qualify for hedge accounting. 

Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI”) generated non-interest income of $2.9 million in 2006, $2.4 million in 2005 and $2.0

million in 2004.  The Company initially purchased BOLI to consolidate existing term life insurance contracts of executive

officers and to mitigate the mortality risk associated with death benefits provided for in executive employment contracts

and in connection with certain deferred compensation arrangements.  The Company has purchased additional BOLI

since then, including $8.9 million of BOLI that was owned by State Bank of the Lakes and $8.4 million owned by Hins-

brook Bank when Wintrust acquired these banks.  BOLI totaled $82.1 million at December 31, 2006 and $70.3 million at

December 31, 2005, and is included in other assets.  

Miscellaneous other non-interest income includes loan servicing fees, service charges, rental income from equipment

leases and miscellaneous other income and has increased in 2006 as a result of growth in the Company’s balance sheet.

In 2005, miscellaneous income includes a gain of approximately $700,000 on the sale by WHI of its New York Stock

Exchange seat.

Non-interest Expense

Non-interest expense totaled $228.8 million in 2006, and increased $30.1 million, or 15%, compared to 2005.  In 2005,

non-interest expense totaled $198.7 million, and increased $42.6 million, or 27%, compared to 2004.  All categories of

non-interest expense increased as a result of bank acquisitions in 2005 and 2006, the new branch locations opened and

the new de novo bank opened at the end of the first quarter of 2006.  Including the locations of Hinsbrook Bank (effec-

tive acquisition date of May 31, 2006), Wintrust added or expanded 12 locations in the past 12 months that added to all

categories of non-interest expense.  In 2006, the Company increased its average loans by 17% and its average deposits

by 19%.  Similarly, in 2005, average loans increased 33% and average deposits increased 40%.  These increases in loans

and deposits require higher levels of staffing and other operating costs. 

The following table presents non-interest expense by category for 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands).

YYeeaarrss  eennddeedd  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22000066  ccoommppaarreedd  ttoo  22000055 2005 compared to 2004 

22000066 2005 2004 $$  CChhaannggee  %%  CChhaannggee  $ Change % Change 

Salaries and employee benefits $$      113377,,000088    118,071   94,049 $$      1188,,993377    1166..00%% $ 24,022 25.5%

Equipment 1133,,552299 11,779 9,074 11,,775500  1144..99 2,705 29.8

Occupancy, net 1199,,880077 16,176 10,083 33,,663311  2222..44 6,093 60.4

Data processing 88,,449933 7,129 5,560 11,,336644  1199..11 1,569 28.2

Advertising and marketing 55,,007744 4,970 3,403 110044  22..11 1,567 46.0

Professional fees 66,,117722 5,609 5,376 556633  1100..00 233 4.3

Amortization of other intangible assets 33,,993388 3,394 1,110 554444  1166..11 2,284 205.8

Other:

Commissions - 3rd party brokers 33,,884422 3,823 4,125 1199  00..55 (302)   (7.3)

Postage 33,,994400 3,665 3,064 227755  77..55  601 19.6

Stationery and supplies 33,,223333 3,262 2,569 ((2299))  ((00..99)) 693 27.0

Miscellaneous 2233,,778844 20,812 17,678 22,,997722 1144..33 3,134 17.7

Total other 3344,,779999 31,562 27,436 33,,223377  1100..33 4,126 15.0

Total non-interest expense $$      222288,,882200    198,690 156,091 $$      3300,,113300    1155..22%% $ 42,599 27.3%
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Wintrust’s net overhead ratio, which is non-interest

expense less non-interest income as a percent of total

average assets, was 1.54% in 2006, 1.39% in 2005 and

1.30% in 2004.  This ratio is a key indicator of operating

efficiency and the Company continues to compare favor-

ably with regard to this ratio to its peer group based on

the most recent peer group data.

Salaries and employee benefits is the largest component

of non-interest expense, accounting for 60% of the total in

2006, 59% of the total in 2005 and 60% in 2004.  For the

year ended December 31, 2006, salaries and employee

benefits totaled $137.0 million and increased $18.9 mil-

lion, or 16% compared to 2005.  The increase is com-

prised of fixed and variable compensation components

increasing $10.9 million, the adoption of SFAS 123(R)

increasing costs by $5.6 million and total benefits

increasing $2.4 million.  See Note 18 of the Consolidated

Financial Statements for further information on SFAS

123(R).  For the year ended December 31, 2005, salaries

and employee benefits totaled $118.1 million, and

increased $24.0 million, or 26%, compared to 2004.  The

increase for 2005 is primarily due to the four bank acqui-

sitions that occured from September 30, 2004 to March

31, 2005, and the opening of new bank facilities in 2005.

Equipment expense, which includes furniture, equipment

and computer software depreciation and repairs and

maintenance costs, totaled $13.5 million in 2006, $11.8

million in 2005 and $9.1 million in 2004, reflecting

increases of 15% in 2006 and 30% in 2005.  These

increases were caused by higher levels of expense

related to the furniture, equipment and computer soft-

ware required at new facilities and at existing facilities

due to increased staffing.

Occupancy expense for the years 2006, 2005 and 2004

was $19.8 million, $16.2 million and $10.1 million,

respectively, reflecting increases of 22% in 2006 and 60%

in 2005.  Occupancy expense includes depreciation on

premises, real estate taxes, utilities and maintenance of

premises, as well as net rent expense for leased prem-

ises.  Increases in 2006 and 2005 reflect the increases in

the number of facilities operated as well as market

increases in operating costs of such facilities.

Data processing expenses totaled $8.5 million in 2006,

$7.1 million in 2005 and $5.6 million in 2004, represent-

ing increases of 19% in 2006 and 28% in 2005.  The

increases are primarily due to the additional costs of the

newly acquired banks and the overall growth of loan and

deposit accounts.

Advertising and marketing expenses totaled $5.1 million

for 2006, $5.0 million for 2005 and $3.4 million for 2004.

Marketing costs are necessary to attract loans and

deposits at the newly chartered banks, to announce new

branch openings as well as the expansion of the wealth

management business, and to continue to promote com-

munity-based products at the more established locations.

The level of marketing expenditures depends on the type

of marketing programs utilized which are determined

based on the market area, targeted audience, competi-

tion and various other factors.  Management continues to

utilize targeted marketing programs in the more mature

market areas. 

Professional fees include legal, audit and tax fees, exter-

nal loan review costs and normal regulatory exam

assessments. These fees totaled $6.2 million in 2006,

$5.6 million in 2005 and $5.4 million in 2004.  The

increase for 2006 is attributable to the general growth in

the Company’s total assets, the expansion of the banking

franchise and the acquisition of Hinsbrook Bank.  The

2005 increase is attributable to the general growth in the

Company’s total assets and fee-based businesses.

Amortization of other intangible assets relates to the

amortization of core deposit premiums and customer list

intangibles established in connection with the application

of SFAS 142 to business combinations.  See Note 8 of the

Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

on these intangible assets.

Commissions paid to 3rd party brokers represent the

commissions paid by WHI to a network of unaffiliated

banks for brokerage revenue generated through those

banks.  The decrease in 2005 corresponds with a

lower level of related fees generated in 2005 as com-

pared to 2004.

Postage expense for 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $3.9

million, $3.7 million and $3.1 million, reflecting increases

of 8% in 2006 and 20% in 2005.  These increases reflect

the increased mailings associated with the higher volume

of loans and deposits.

Stationery and supplies totaled $3.2 million in 2006, $3.3

million in 2005 and $2.6 million in 2004, reflecting an

decrease of $29,000, or 1%, in 2006 and an increase of

$693,000, or 27%, in 2005.  The increased level in 2005

was attributable to acquisitions and the opening of new

banking facilities.

Miscellaneous non-interest expense includes correspon-

dent bank service charges, insurance, telephone, direc-

tors’ fees, loan expenses and other sundry expenses.
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This category increased $3.0 million, or 14%, in 2006 and

$3.1 million, or 18%, in 2005.  These increases are in line

with increases in the other non-interest expense cate-

gories and reflect the growth in the Company’s 

balance sheet. 

Income Taxes

The Company recorded income tax expense of $37.7

million in 2006, $37.9 million in 2005 and $29.6 million in

2004.  The effective tax rates were 36.2%, 36.1% and

36.5% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Please refer

to Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

further discussion and analysis of the Company’s tax

position, including a reconciliation of the tax expense

computed at the statutory tax rate to the Company’s

actual tax expense.

Operating Segment Results

As described in Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements, the Company’s operations consist of four pri-

mary segments: banking, premium finance, Tricom and

wealth management.  The Company’s profitability is pri-

marily dependent on the net interest income, provision

for credit losses, non-interest income and operating

expenses of its banking segment. The net interest

income of the banking segment includes income and

related interest costs from portfolio loans that were pur-

chased from the premium finance segment.  For pur-

poses of internal segment profitability analysis, manage-

ment reviews the results of its premium finance segment

as if all loans originated and sold to the banking segment

were retained within that segment’s operations.  Similarly,

for purposes of analyzing the contribution from the

wealth management segment, management allocates

the net interest income earned by the banking segment

on deposit balances of customers of the wealth manage-

ment segment to the wealth management segment.

The banking segment’s net interest income for the year

ended December 31, 2006 totaled $235.2 million as

compared to $211.7 million for the same period in 2005,

an increase of $23.5 million, or 11%.  The increase in net

interest income for 2005 when compared to the total of

$142.5 million in 2004 was $69.2 million, or 49%.  These

increases were primarily the result of continued growth in

the loan portfolio partially offset by the effect of a

decrease in net interest margin.  Total loans increased

22% in 2006 and 20% in 2005.   Provision for credit losses

decreased to $6.3 million in 2006 compared to $6.5 mil-

lion in 2005.   The provision for credit losses was $6.2

million in 2004.  The banking segment’s non-interest

income totaled $40.6 million in 2006, a decrease of $10.4

million, or 20%, when compared to the 2005 total of $51.0

million.  The decrease in non-interest income in 2006 is

primarily a result of a lower level of fees from covered call

options, lower gains on sales of premium finance receiv-

ables and lower mortgage banking revenues.  In 2005,

non-interest income for the banking segment increased

$9.6 million, or 23% when compared to the 2004 total of

$41.4 million.  This improvement resulted from a $7.7

million increase in revenue from mortgage banking activ-

ities primarily due to the May 2004 acquisitions of West-

America and Guardian coupled with a $1.9 million

increase in service charges on deposits primarily due to

the acquisitions of Northview Bank, Town Bank, State

Bank of The Lakes and First Northwest Bank.  The bank-

ing segment’s net income for the year ended December

31, 2006 totaled $61.1 million, a decrease of $8.3 million,

or 12%, as compared to the 2005 total of $69.4 million.

The total segment profit in 2005 increased $22.0 million,

or 46%, over the $47.4 million that was recorded in 2004.

The premium finance segment’s net interest income

totaled $42.4 million for the year ended December 31,

2006 and increased $1.9 million, or 5%, over the $40.5

million in 2005.  This increase was primarily the result of

$141.7 million of higher average levels of premium

finance receivables compared to 2005.  Wintrust did not

sell any premium finance receivables to an unrelated

third party financial institution in the third and fourth quar-

ters of 2006.  In 2005, net interest income for the pre-

mium finance segment decreased $8.4 million, or 17%,

over the 2004 total of $48.9 million.  During 2005, this

segment was negatively impacted by both competitive

asset pricing pressures and higher variable funding

costs, which were partially offset by $49 million of higher

average levels of premium finance receivables compared

to 2004.  During 2004, this segment benefited from

higher average levels of premium finance receivables,

increasing $165 million over 2003, which helped offset

competitive pricing pressures in this segment.  The pre-

mium finance segment’s non-interest income totaled $2.9

million, $6.5 million and $7.3 million for the years ended

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Non-

interest income for this segment reflects the gains from

the sale of premium finance receivables to an unrelated

third party, as more fully discussed in the Consolidated

Results of Operations section.  Net after-tax profit of the

premium finance segment totaled $19.6 million, $21.7

million and $25.1 million for the years ended December

31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  New receivable

originations totaled $3.0 billion in 2006, $2.7 billion in

2005 and $2.6 billion in 2004.  The increases in new vol-

umes each year are indicative of this segment’s ability to

increase market penetration in existing markets and

establish a presence in new markets.  However, compet-
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itive asset pricing pressures and higher variable funding

costs offset production gains in 2006.

The Tricom segment data reflects the business associ-

ated with short-term accounts receivable financing and

value-added out-sourced administrative services, such as

data processing of payrolls, billing and cash manage-

ment services that Tricom provides to its clients in the

temporary staffing industry.  The segment’s net interest

income was $3.9 million in 2006, decreasing $187,000,

or 5%, compared to the $4.1 million reported for 2005.

Net interest income increased $326,000, or 9%, in 2005

compared to 2004.  The increase in net interest income

in 2006 resulted from higher average receivable balances

from both existing and new clients as compared to 2005.

The decrease in net interest income in 2006 is attributa-

ble to the lower fee yields charged on the short-term

accounts receivable financing due to competitive pres-

sures in the industry.  Non-interest income for 2006 was

$4.6 million, increasing $60,000, or 1%, from the $4.5 mil-

lion reported in 2005.  This followed an increase of

$555,000, or 14%, in 2005 compared to the $4.0 million

in 2004.  Revenue trends at Tricom reflect the general

staffing trends of the economy and the entrance of new

competitors in most market places served by Tricom.  In

2006, Tricom had steady sales volumes with its current

client base.  The segment’s net income was $1.8 million

in 2006, $1.8 million in 2005 and $1.5 million 2004.  The

stable levels of net income produced by this segment

over the past three years reflect Tricom’s ability to con-

tract and expand its business model to address both eco-

nomic and competitive challenges.

The wealth management segment reported net interest

income of $6.3 million for 2006 compared to $1.4 million

for 2005 and $5.3 million for 2004.  Net interest income

is comprised of the net interest earned on brokerage cus-

tomer receivables at WHI and an allocation of the net

interest income earned by the banking segment on non-

interest bearing and interest-bearing wealth management

customer account balances on deposit at the Banks.  The

allocated net interest income included in this segment’s

profitability was $5.2 million ($3.2 million after tax) in

2006 and $391,000 ($241,000 after tax) in 2005.  During

the third quarter of 2006, the Company changed the

measurement methodology for the net interest income

component of the wealth management segment.  In con-

junction with the change in the executive management

team for this segment in the third quarter of 2006, the

contribution attributable to the wealth management

deposits was redefined to measure the full net interest

income contribution.  In previous periods, the contribu-

tion from these deposits was limited to the value as an

alternative source of funding for each bank.  As such, the

contribution in previous periods did not capture the total

net interest income contribution of this funding source.

Current executive management of this segment uses this

measured contribution to determine overall profitability.

Insured wealth management customer account balances

on deposit at the Banks were $465.4 million, $407.8 mil-

lion and $390.1 million at December 31, 2006, 2005 and

2004, respectively.  Additional funds deposited at the

Banks in future periods in the insured bank deposits

would be generated through internal growth of the exist-

ing balances on deposit.  This segment recorded non-

interest income of $38.0 million for 2006 as compared to

$36.6 million for 2005 and $35.4 million in 2004.  Distrib-

ution of wealth management services through each bank

subsidiary continues to be a focus of the Company as the

number of brokers in its Banks continues to increase.

Wealth Management revenue growth generated in the

banking locations is significantly outpacing the growth

derived from the traditional Wayne Hummer Investment

downtown Chicago sources.  At the end of December

2006, Focused Investments was merged into its parent

Wayne Hummer Investments and is now being marketed

as part of the Wealth Management family of products.

Wintrust is committed to growing the wealth manage-

ment segment in order to better service its customers

and create a more diversified revenue stream and con-

tinues to focus on reducing the fixed cost structure of this

segment to a variable cost structure.  As a result of the

higher level of allocated net interest income to the

wealth management segment in 2006, this segment

reported a net gain of $3.3 million for 2006 compared to

net loss of $589,000 for 2005 and net income of $1.1

million for 2004. 
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Company’s total assets were $9.57 billion at December 31, 2006, an increase of $1.39 billion, or 17%, when com-

pared to the $8.18 billion at December 31, 2005.  Total assets increased $1.76 billion, or 27%, in 2005 over the $6.42 bil-

lion at December 31, 2004.  Loans increased $1.28 billion in 2006, and $866 million in 2005, representing the most sig-

nificant component of the total asset growth in these years.

Interest-Earning Assets

The following table sets forth, by category, the composition of average earning assets and the relative percentage of each

category to total average earning assets for the periods presented (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Average Percent Average Percent Average Percent 
Balance of Total Balance of Total Balance of Total 

Loans:
Commercial and 

commercial real estate $ 3,647,982 45% $  2,931,230 42% $  1,967,119 39%
Home equity 641,494 8 621,160 9 509,840 10
Residential real estate (1) 365,159 5 401,473 6 305,050 6
Premium finance receivables 989,689 12 847,970 12 798,970 16
Indirect consumer loans 229,757 3 195,697 3 177,352 4
Tricom finance receivables 41,703 1 36,599 1 26,501 -
Consumer and other loans 97,560 1 103,783 2 76,851 2

Total loans, net of 
unearned income (2) 6,013,344 75 5,137,912 75 3,861,683 77

Liquidity management assets (3) 2,054,798 25 1,738,725 25 1,108,891 22
Other earnings assets (4) 29,675 - 23,644 - 38,901 1
Total average earning assets $ 8,097,817 100% $  6,900,281 100% $  5,009,475 100%
Total average assets $ 8,925,557 $  7,587,602 $  5,451,527
Total average earning assets to

total average assets 91% 91%  92%
(1) Includes mortgage loans held-for-sale
(2) Includes non-accrual loans
(3) Includes available-for-sale securities, interest earning deposits with banks and federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements
(4) Includes brokerage customer receivables and trading account securities

Average earning assets increased $1.2 billion, or 17%, in

2006 and $1.9 billion, or 38%, in 2005.  The ratio of aver-

age earning assets as a percent of total average assets in

2006 remained unchanged at 91% from 2005 and

decreased slightly as compared to 92% in 2004.

Total average loans increased $875.4 million, or 17%, in

2006, and $1.3 billion, or 33%, in 2005.  The increase in

average loans was primarily funded by increases in

deposits.  The average loans to average deposits ratio

decreased to 82.2% in 2006 from 83.4% in 2005 and

87.7% in 2004.  The loan-to-deposit ratio in 2006 fell short

of managment’s target range of 85% - 90% as deposit

growth at recently opened de novo branches was very

strong and loan originations were slower than expected

as the Company has chosen not to compromise on

underwriting and pricing standards when competing for

loan balances.

Loans. Total loans at December 31, 2006 were $6.5 bil-

lion, increasing $1.3 billion, or 25%, over the December

31, 2005 total of $5.2 billion.  Average total loans, net of

unearned income, totaled $6.0 billion in 2006, $5.1 billion

in 2005 and $3.9 billion in 2004.      

Average commercial and commercial real estate loans,

the largest loan category, totaled $3.6 billion in 2006, and

increased $716.8 million, or 24%, over the average bal-

ance in 2005.  The average balance in 2005 increased

$964.1 million, or 49%, over the average balance in 2004.

This category comprised 61% of the average loan 

portfolio in 2006 and 57% in 2005. The solid growth real-

ized in this category is attributable to acquisitions,

increased business development efforts, a relatively low,

but rising, interest rate environment and a continued

healthy local economy.  
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In order to minimize the time lag typically experienced by

de novo banks in redeploying deposits into higher yield-

ing earning assets, the Company has developed lending

programs focused on specialized earning asset niches

that generally have large volumes of homogeneous

assets that can be acquired for the Banks’ portfolios and

possibly sold in the secondary market to generate fee

income.  These specialty niches also diversify the Banks’

loan portfolios and add higher yielding earning assets

that help to improve the net interest margin.  However,

these loans may involve greater credit risk than generally

associated with loan portfolios of more traditional com-

munity banks due to marketability of the collateral, or

because of the indirect relationship the Company has

with the underlying borrowers.  Specialty loan programs

include premium finance, indirect auto, Tricom finance

receivables, mortgage broker warehouse lending through

Hinsdale Bank, the Community Advantage program at

Barrington Bank, which provides lending, deposit and

cash management services to condominium, home-

owner and community associations and the small aircraft

lending program at Crystal Lake Bank.  Other than the

premium finance receivables, Tricom finance receivables

and indirect auto, all of the loans generated by these spe-

cialty loan programs are included in commercial and

commercial real estate loans in the preceding table.  Man-

agement continues to evaluate other specialized types of

earning assets to assist with the deployment of deposit

funds and to diversify the earning asset portfolio.

Home equity loans averaged $641.5 million in 2006, and

increased $20.3 million, or 3%, when compared to the

average balance in 2005. Unused commitments on

home equity lines of credit totaled $846.8 million at

December 31, 2006, and $745.7 million at December 31,

2005.

Residential real estate loans averaged $365.2 million in

2006, and decreased $36.3 million, or 9%, over the aver-

age balance in 2005. This category includes mortgage

loans held-for- sale.  By selling residential mortgage loans

into the secondary market, the Company eliminates the

interest-rate risk associated with these loans, as they are

predominantly long-term fixed rate loans, and provides a

source of non-interest revenue.  The remaining loans in

this category are maintained within the Banks’ loan port-

folios and represent mostly adjustable rate mortgage

loans and shorter-term fixed rate mortgage loans.   

Premium finance receivables are originated through FIFC.

These receivables represent loans to businesses to

finance the insurance premiums they pay on their com-

mercial insurance policies.  All premium finance receiv-

ables originated by FIFC are subject to the Company’s

credit standards, and substantially all such loans are

made to commercial customers.  The Company rarely

finances consumer insurance premiums.  Average pre-

mium finance receivables totaled $989.7 million in 2006,

and accounted for 16% of the Company’s average total

loans.  Average premium finance receivables increased

$141.7 million, or 17%, from the average balance of

$848.0 million in 2005. The majority of the receivables

originated by FIFC are sold to the Banks and retained in

their loan portfolios.  However, premium finance receiv-

ables are also sold to an unrelated third party with serv-

icing retained.  Having a program in place to sell premium

finance receivables to a third party allows the Company

to excute its strategy to be asset-driven while providing

the benefits of additional sources of liquidity and rev-

enue.  During the third quarter of 2006, the Company’s

average loan-to-deposit ratio remained below the target

range and, accordingly, the sale of these receivables was

suspended.  Consistent with the Company’s strategy to

be asset-driven, it is possible that sales of these receiv-

ables may occur in the future.  See Consolidated Results

of Operations for further information on these loan sales.

Total premium finance loan originations were $3.0 billion,

$2.7 billion and $2.6 billion in 2006, 2005 and 2004,

respectively.

Indirect consumer loans are comprised primarily of auto-

mobile loans (93% of indirect portfolio) and to a lesser

extent, boat loans, as a result of the acquisition of State

Bank of The Lakes in 2005.  These loans are financed

from networks of unaffiliated automobile and boat dealers

located throughout the Chicago and southern Wisconsin

metropolitan areas with which the Company has estab-

lished relationships.  Indirect auto loans are secured by

new and used automobiles and generally have an original

maturity of 36 to 72 months with the average actual matu-

rity estimated to be approximately 35 to 40 months.  The

risk associated with the Company’s portfolios are diversi-

fied among many individual borrowers.  Like other con-

sumer loans, the indirect consumer loans are subject to

the Banks’ established credit standards.  Management

regards substantially all of these loans as prime quality

loans.  Management continually monitors the dealer rela-

tionships to ensure the Banks are not dependent on any

one dealer as a source of such loans.  During 2006, 2005

and 2004 average indirect consumer loans totaled $229.8

million, $195.7 million and $177.4 million, respectively. 

Tricom finance receivables represent high-yielding short-

term accounts receivable financing to Tricom’s clients in

the temporary staffing industry located throughout the

United States.  These receivables may involve greater

credit risks than generally associated with the loan port-

folios of more traditional community banks depending on
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the marketability of the collateral.  The principal sources

of repayments on the receivables are payments due to

the borrowers from their customers who are located

throughout the United States.  The Company mitigates

this risk by employing lockboxes and other cash man-

agement techniques to protect their interests.  Typically,

Tricom also provides value-added out-sourced adminis-

trative services to many of these clients, such as data

processing of payrolls, billing and cash management

services, which generate additional fee income.  Average

Tricom finance receivables were $41.7 million in 2006,

$36.6 million in 2005 and $26.5 million in 2004.  Higher

sales volumes with Tricom’s current client base coupled

with new client business has lead to the higher level of

Tricom finance receivables in 2006, compared with 2005

and 2004. 

Liquidity Management Assets. Funds that are not utilized

for loan originations are used to purchase investment

securities and short-term money market investments, to

sell as federal funds and to maintain in interest-bearing

deposits with banks.  The balances of these assets fluc-

tuate frequently based on deposit inflows, the level of

other funding services and loan demand.  Average liq-

uidity management assets accounted for 25% of total

average earning assets in 2006 and 2005 and 22% in

2004.  Average liquidity management assets increased

$316.1 million in 2006 compared to 2005, and $629.8

million in 2005 compared to 2004, as a result of

increases in average deposits and other funding sources

exceeding increases in average loans during these years.

Other earning assets. Average other earning assets

includes trading account securities and brokerage cus-

tomer receivables at WHI. These other earning assets

averaged $29.7 million in 2006, an increase of $6.0 mil-

lion, or 26%, compared to the average 2005 balance of

$23.6 million.  Average other earning assets decreased

$15.3 million, or 39%, in 2005 compared to 2004.  The

decrease in 2005 was attributable to a short period of

time in 2005 when these assets were funded by a third

party.  In the normal course of business, WHI activities

involve the execution, settlement, and financing of vari-

ous securities transactions. These activities may expose

WHI to risk in the event the customer is unable to fulfill its

contractual obligations. WHI maintains cash and margin

accounts for its customers, who are generally located in

the Chicago, Illinois and Appleton, Wisconsin metropoli-

tan areas of the Midwest.

WHI’s customer securities activities are transacted on

either a cash or margin basis.  In margin transactions,

WHI, under an agreement with the out-sourced securities

firm, extends credit to its customers, subject to various

regulatory and internal margin requirements, collateral-

ized by cash and securities in customer accounts.  In

connection with these activities, WHI executes and the

out-souced securities firm clears customer transactions

relating to the sale of securities not yet purchased, sub-

stantially all of which are transacted on a margin basis

subject to individual exchange regulations.  Such trans-

actions may expose WHI to off-balance-sheet risk, partic-

ularly in volatile trading markets, in the event margin

requirements are not sufficient to fully cover losses that

customers may incur. In the event the customer fails to

satisfy its obligations, WHI, under an agreement with the

out-sourced securities firm, may be required to purchase

or sell financial instruments at prevailing market prices to

fulfill the customer’s obligations.  WHI seeks to control the

risks associated with its customers’ activities by requiring

customers to maintain margin collateral in compliance

with various regulatory and internal guidelines.  WHI mon-

itors required margin levels daily and, pursuant to such

guidelines, requires the customer to deposit additional

collateral or to reduce positions when necessary. 

Deposits and Other Funding Sources

The dynamics of community bank balance sheets are

generally dependent upon the ability of management to

attract additional deposit accounts to fund the growth of

the institution.  As the Banks and branch offices are still

relatively young, the generation of new deposit relation-

ships to gain market share and establish themselves in

the community as the bank of choice is particularly

important.  When determining a community to establish a

de novo bank, the Company generally will enter a com-

munity where it believes the new bank can gain the num-

ber one or two position in deposit market share.  This is

usually accomplished by initially paying competitively

high deposit rates to gain the relationship and then by

introducing the customer to the Company’s unique way

of providing local banking services.

Deposits. During 2006 and 2005, the Company experi-

enced significant growth in both the number of accounts

and the balance of deposits primarily as a result of new

branch openings, strong marketing efforts and the acqui-

sition of Hinsbrook Bank  in the second quarter of 2006.

Total deposits at December 31, 2006, were $7.9 billion,

increasing $1.2 billion, or 17%, over the $6.7 billion at

December 31, 2005.

Average deposit balances in 2006 were $7.3 billion,

reflecting an increase of $1.2 billion, or 19%, compared to

the average balances in 2005.  During 2005, average

deposits increased $1.8 billion, or 40%, compared to the

prior year. The composition of the deposit base has
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remained relatively consistent over the last three years as evidenced by the average deposit balances and relative com-

position of each deposit category to total deposits as presented in the following table (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Average Percent Average Percent Average Percent
Balance of Total Balance of Total Balance of Total

Non-interest bearing deposits $ 623,542 9% $ 592,879   9% $ 400,333 9%
NOW accounts 774,481 10 699,323 11 481,759 11
Wealth management deposits 464,438 6 407,816 7 360,047 8
Money market accounts 639,590 9 657,788 11 528,831 12
Savings accounts 307,142 4 298,468 5 197,132 5
Time certificates of deposit 4,509,488 62 3,507,771 57 2,433,036 55

Total deposits $ 7,318,681 100% $  6,164,045 100% $  4,401,138 100%

Wealth management deposits are funds from the brokerage customers of WHI, and the trust and asset management cus-

tomers managed by Wayne Hummer Trust Company which have been placed into deposit accounts of the Banks (“Wealth

management deposits” in the table above). Consistent with reasonable interest rate risk parameters, the funds have gen-

erally been invested in loan production of the Banks as well as other investments suitable for banks. 

Growth in the deposit base continues to be generated by each of the Banks.  The following table presents average

deposit balances for each Bank and the relative percentage of total average deposits held by each Bank during each of

the past three years (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Average Percent Average Percent Average Percent
Balance of Total Balance of Total Balance of Total

Lake Forest Bank $ 1,048,493 14% $     947,014 15% $ 827,063 19%
Hinsdale Bank (4) 888,430 12 740,092 12 658,407 15
North Shore Bank 819,010 11 767,464 12 718,299 16
Libertyville Bank 741,231 10 662,330 11 527,179 12
Barrington Bank 707,620 10 653,509 11 543,401 12
Crystal Lake Bank 457,486 6 410,168 7 392,095 9
Northbrook Bank 632,337 9 554,717 9 280,514 6
Advantage Bank 219,689 3 209,136 3 177,243 4
Village Bank (1) 504,021 7 359,224 6 128,730 3
Beverly Bank (2) 138,800 2 83,285 1 25,151 1
Wheaton Bank (3)(5) 157,440 2 94,194 2 64,324 2
Town Bank (3) 358,295 5 283,548 5 58,732 1
State Bank of The Lakes 418,805 6 399,364 6 - -
Old Plank Trail Bank(4) 44,569 1 - - - -
St. Charles Bank(5) 182,455 2 - - - -

Total deposits $ 7,318,681 100% $  6,164,045 100% $  4,401,138 100%

Percentage increase from 
prior year 19% 40% 28%

(1) For 2005, represents effect on consolidated average deposits from effective acquisition date of March 31, 2005 for First Northwest Bank, which
was merged with Village Bank.  At December 31, 2005, Village Bank had total deposits of $498.0 million.

(2) For 2004, represents effect on consolidated average deposits from effective organization date of April 1, 2004 for Beverly Bank. 
At December 31, 2004, Beverly Bank had total deposits of $58.1 million.

(3) For 2004, represents effect on consolidated average deposits from effective acquisition dates of September 30, 2004 for Wheaton Bank and
October 1, 2004 for Town Bank.  At December 31, 2004, Wheaton Bank had total deposits of $64.6 million and Town Bank had total deposits
of $242.8 million.

(4)  For 2006, represents effect on consolidated average deposits from effective organization date of March 23, 2006 for Old Plank Trail Bank.  At
December 31, 2006, Old Plank Trail Bank had total deposits of $92.0 million. 

(5) For 2006, represents effect on consolidated average deposits from effective acquisition date of May 31, 2006 for Hinsbrook Bank.  Branches
(and related deposits) from Hinsbrook Bank were sold to Hinsdale Bank and Wheaton Bank in the fourth quarter of 2006.  Hinsbrook’s Geneva
branch was renamed St. Charles Bank.
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Other Funding Sources. Although deposits are the Company’s primary source of funding its interest-earning assets, the

Company’s ability to manage the types and terms of deposits is somewhat limited by customer preferences and market

competition.  As a result, in addition to deposits and the issuance of equity securities, as well as the retention of earn-

ings, the Company uses several other funding sources to support its growth.  These other sources include short-term

borrowings, notes payable, FHLB advances, subordinated debt and trust preferred securities.  The Company evaluates

the terms and unique characteristics of each source, as well as its asset-liability management position, in determining the

use of such funding sources. 

The composition of average other funding sources in 2006, 2005 and 2004 is presented in the following table 

(dollars in thousands): 

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Average Percent Average Percent Average Percent
Balance of Total Balance of Total Balance of Total

Notes payable $ 6,913 1% $     12,100 2% $       5,004 1%
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 364,149 45 333,108 43 222,278 40
Subordinated notes 66,742 8 50,000 7 50,000 9
Short-term borrowings 140,968 17 152,575 20 114,831 21
Wayne Hummer Companies funding - - - - 10,016 2
Long-term debt - trust preferred

securities 237,249 29 217,983 28 130,830 23
Other 1,883 - 3,255 - 24,726 4
Total other funding sources $ 817,904 100% $   769,021 100% $   557,685 100%

Notes payable balances represent the balances on a

credit agreement with an unaffiliated bank.  This credit

facility is available for corporate purposes such as to pro-

vide capital to fund continued growth at existing bank

subsidiaries, possible future acquisitions and for other

general corporate matters.  At December 31, 2006 and

2005, the Company had $11.8 million and $1.0 million,

respectively, of notes payable outstanding.  See Note 11

to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further dis-

cussion of the terms of this credit facility. 

FHLB advances provide the Banks with access to fixed

rate funds which are useful in mitigating interest rate risk

and achieving an acceptable interest rate spread on fixed

rate loans or securities.  FHLB advances to the Banks

totaled $325.5 million at December 31, 2006, and $349.3

million at December 31, 2005.  See Note 12 to the Con-

solidated Financial Statements for further discussion of

the terms of these advances. 

The Company borrowed $75.0 million under three sepa-

rate $25 million subordinated note agreements.  Each

subordinated note requires annual principal payments of

$5.0 million beginning in the sixth year of the note and

has terms of ten years with final maturity dates in 2012,

2013 and 2015.  These notes qualify as Tier II regulatory

capital.  See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial State-

ments for further discussion of the terms of the notes.

Short-term borrowings include securities sold under

repurchase agreements and federal funds purchased.

These borrowings totaled $159.9 million and $93.5 mil-

lion at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Secu-

rities sold under repurchase agreements primarily repre-

sent sweep accounts for certain customers in connection

with master repurchase agreements at the Banks.  This

funding category fluctuates based on customer prefer-

ences and daily liquidity needs of the Banks, their cus-

tomers and the Banks’ operating subsidiaries.   

Wayne Hummer Companies’ funding consists of collater-

alized demand obligations to third party banks that were

used to finance securities purchased by customers on

margin and securities owned by WHI, and demand obli-

gations to brokers and clearing organizations.  During the

third quarter of 2004, WHI entered into a lending relation-

ship with an affiliate bank to satisfy its funding needs. 

The Company has $249.8 million of long-term debt – trust

preferred securities outstanding as of December 31,

2006.  This balance is comprised of issuances of these

securities through nine separate trusts.  The amounts

reflected on the balance sheet represent the debentures

issued to the trusts by the Company and equal the

amount of the preferred and common securities issued

by the trusts. The increases in the average balances in

2006 and 2005 compared to the respective prior year’s

average balances were due to additional issuances of
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these debentures in the last three years.  In 2004, the

Company assumed $6.2 million of debentures in con-

nection with the acquisition of Northview Financial Cor-

poration, and in October 2004, assumed an additional

$6.2 million in connection with the acquisition of Town

Bancshares, Ltd.  In May and December 2004, the Com-

pany issued $41.2 million and $51.6 million, respectively,

of these debentures.  In March 2005, the Company

assumed $5.2 million of debentures in connection with

the acquisition of First Northwest Bancorp, Inc.  In August

2005, the Company issued $41.2 million of floating rate

debentures in connection with a private placement of the

related trust-preferred securities to an institutional

investor.  The proceeds from this issuance were used in

part to redeem at par $20.6 million of 10.5% fixed rate

debentures that were originally issued in 2000. On Sep-

tember 1, 2006, the Company issued $51.4 million of

6.84% fixed rate debenture in connection with a private

placement of the related trust-preferred securities and on

September 5, 2006, the Company used the proceeds

from this issuance to redeem at par $32.0 million of 9.0%

fixed rate debentures originally issued in 1998.

See Note 15 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for

further discussion of the Company’s long-term debt – trust

preferred securities.

Trust-preferred securities, subject to certain limitations,

currently qualify as Tier 1 regulatory capital.  Interest

expense on the securities is deducible for tax purposes,

resulting in a cost-efficient form of regulatory capital.

Shareholders’ Equity. Total shareholders’ equity was

$773.3 million at December 31, 2006 reflecting an

increase of $145.4 million over the December 31, 2005

total of $627.9 million.  In 2005, shareholders’ equity

increased $154.0 million over the December 31, 2004

balance. During 2006, shareholders’ equity increased

$59.5 million as a result of earnings retention ($66.5 mil-

lion of net income less dividends of $7.0 million), $57.1

million due to stock issued in business combinations,

$11.6 million from the issuance of 200,000 new shares in

final settlement of a forward sale agreement of the Com-

pany’s common stock, $17.3 million due to stock-based

compensation costs pursuant to the adoption of SFAS

123R, $14.2 million from the issuance of shares (includ-

ing related tax benefits) pursuant to various stock-based

compensation plans and $1.1 million from the cumulative

effect adjustment of a change in accounting for MSRs pur-

suant to the adoption of SFAS 156. Shareholders’ equity

decreased $16.3 million in 2006 as a result of the pur-

chase of 344,089 shares of treasury stock, at an average

price of $47.50 per share. The shares were repurchased

pursuant to a 2,000,000 share repurchase plan author-

ized by the Board of Directors in July 2006. At December

31, 2006, 1,655,911 shares were still available for repur-

chase under the plan. The $154.0 million increase in

shareholders’ equity in 2005 was primarily due to the

retention of earnings (net of dividends) of $61.6 million,

proceeds of $55.8 million from the issuance of 1.0 million

new shares at $59.50 per share (before issuance costs)

in partial settlement of a forward sale agreement entered

into in December 2004, $30.6 million from stock

issuance in business combinations and $16.0 million

from the issuance of stock pursuant to various stock-

based compensation arrangements (including related tax

benefits), offset by $11.0 million of unrealized loss in

other comprehensive income.   

Asset-Liability Management

As an ongoing part of its financial strategy, the Company

attempts to manage the impact of fluctuations in market

interest rates on net interest income.  This effort entails

providing a reasonable balance between interest rate

risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and maintenance of yield.

Asset-liability management policies are established and

monitored by management in conjunction with the

boards of directors of the Banks, subject to general over-

sight by the Risk Management Committee of the Com-

pany’s Board of Directors.  The policies establish guide-

lines for acceptable limits on the sensitivity of the market

value of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises when the maturity or repricing

periods and interest rate indices of the interest earning

assets, interest bearing liabilities, and derivative financial

instruments are different.  It is the risk that changes in the

level of market interest rates will result in disproportion-

ate changes in the value of, and the net earnings gener-

ated from, the Company’s interest earning assets, interest

bearing liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

The Company continuously monitors not only the orga-

nization’s current net interest margin, but also the histori-

cal trends of these margins.  In addition, management

attempts to identify potential adverse changes in net

interest income in future years as a result of interest rate

fluctuations by performing simulation analysis of various

interest rate environments.  If a potential adverse change

in net interest margin and/or net income is identified,

management would take appropriate actions with its

asset-liability structure to mitigate the effects of these

potentially adverse situations.  Please refer to earlier sec-

tions of this discussion and analysis for further discus-

sion of the net interest margin.
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Since the Company’s primary source of interest bearing

liabilities is customer deposits, the Company’s ability to

manage the types and terms of such deposits may be

somewhat limited by customer preferences and local

competition in the market areas in which the Banks oper-

ate.  The rates, terms and interest rate indices of the

Company’s interest earning assets result primarily from

the Company’s strategy of investing in loans and securi-

ties that permit the Company to limit its exposure to inter-

est rate risk, together with credit risk, while at the same

time achieving an acceptable interest rate spread.

One method utilized by financial institutions to manage

interest rate risk is to enter into derivative financial instru-

ments.  Derivative financial instruments include interest

rate swaps, interest rate caps and floors, futures, for-

wards, option contracts and other financial instruments

with similar characteristics.  As of December 31, 2006,

the Company had $175 million of interest rate swaps out-

standing as hedges against certain variable rate liabilities.

See Note 21 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for

further information. 

Additionally, the Company enters into commitments to

fund certain mortgage loans (interest rate locks) to be

sold into the secondary market and forward commit-

ments for the future delivery of mortgage loans to third

party investors.  These transactions are considered deriv-

atives and at December 31, 2006 the Company had

approximately $118 million of interest rate lock commit-

ments and $263 million of forward commitments for the

future delivery of residential mortgage loans.

During 2006 and 2005, the Company also entered into

certain covered call option transactions related to certain

securities held by the Company.  The Company uses

these option transactions (rather than entering into other

derivative interest rate contracts, such as interest rate

floors) to increase the total return associated with the

related securities. Although the revenue received from

these options is recorded as non-interest income rather

than interest income, the increased return attributable to

the related securities from these options contributes to

the Company’s overall profitability  The Company’s expo-

sure to interest rate risk may be affected by these trans-

actions.  To mitigate this risk, the Company may acquire

fixed-rate term debt or use financial derivative instru-

ments.  There were no covered call options outstanding as

of December 31, 2006 or December 31, 2005.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is reviewed

on a regular basis by management and the Risk Manage-

ment Committees of the Boards of Directors of the Banks

and the Company.  The objective is to measure the effect

on net income and to adjust the balance sheet and deriv-

ative financial instruments to minimize the inherent risk

while at the same time maximizing net interest income.

Tools used by management include a standard gap

analysis and a rate simulation model whereby changes in

net interest income are measured in the event of various

changes in interest rate indices.  An institution with more

assets than liabilities re-pricing over a given time frame is

considered asset sensitive and will generally benefit from

rising rates, and conversely, a higher level of re-pricing lia-

bilities versus assets would be beneficial in a declining

rate environment.
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Standard gap analysis reflects contractual re-pricing information for assets, liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

The following table illustrates the Company’s estimated interest rate sensitivity and periodic and cumulative gap positions

as of December 31, 2006:

Time to Maturity or Repricing
0-90 91-365 1-5 Over 5

(Dollars in thousands) Days Days Years Years Total
Assets:
Federal funds sold and securities purchased

under resale agreements $ 136,221 - - - 136,221
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 19,259 - - - 19,259
Available-for-sale securities 383,078 226,416 373,282 856,940 1,839,716
Total liquidity management assets 538,558 226,416 373,282 856,940 1,995,196
Loans, net of unearned income (1) 3,844,436 1,391,481 1,307,590 101,304 6,644,811
Other earning assets 26,364 - - - 26,364

Total earning assets 4,409,358 1,617,897 1,680,872 958,244 8,666,371
Other non-earning assets - - - 905,481 905,481

Total assets (RSA) $ 4,409,358 1,617,897  1,680,872 1,863,725 9,571,852

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Interest-bearing deposits (2) $ 3,800,351 2,311,763  1,024,835 33,088 7,170,037
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 27,505 12,018 101,008 185,000 325,531
Notes payable and other borrowings 172,910 - 1,912 - 174,822
Subordinated notes 75,000 - - - 75,000
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities 192,002 - 57,826 - 249,828

Total interest-bearing liabilities 4,267,768 2,323,781 1,185,581 218,088 7,995,218
Demand deposits - - - 699,203 699,203
Other liabilities - - - 104,085 104,085
Shareholders' equity - - - 773,346 773,346

Effect of derivative financial instruments (3):
Interest rate swaps (Company pays fixed, receives floating) (175,000) - 85,000 90,000 -

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity including effect 
of derivative financial instruments (RSL) $ 4,092,768 2,323,781  1,270,581 1,884,722 9,571,852

Repricing gap (RSA - RSL) $ 316,590   (705,884) 410,291 (20,997)
Cumulative repricing gap $ 316,590   (389,294)  20,997 -

Cumulative RSA/Cumulative RSL 108% 94% 101%
Cumulative RSA/Total assets 46% 63% 81%
Cumulative RSL/Total assets 43% 67% 80%

Cumulative GAP/Total assets 3% (4)% 0%
Cumulative GAP/Cumulative RSA 7% (6)% 0%

(1) Loans, net of unearned income, include mortgages held-for-sale and nonaccrual loans.
(2) Non-contractual interest-bearing deposits are subject to immediate withdrawal and, therefore, are included in 0-90 days.
(3) Excludes interest rate swaps to qualified commercial customers as they are offset with interest rate swaps entered into with a third party and

have no effect on asset-liability management. See Note 21 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of these interest rate
swaps.

While the gap position and related ratios illustrated in the table are useful tools that management can use to assess the

general positioning of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ balance sheets, it is only as of a point in time.  

As a result of the static position and inherent limitations of gap analysis, management uses an additional measurement tool

to evaluate its asset-liability sensitivity that determines exposure to changes in interest rates by measuring the percentage

change in net interest income due to changes in interest rates over a two-year time horizon.  Management measures its

exposure to changes in interest rates using many different interest rate scenarios.   One interest rate scenario utilized is to
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measure the percentage change in net interest income

assuming an instantaneous permanent parallel shift in the

yield curve of 100 and 200 basis points, both upward and

downward.  Utilizing this measurement concept, the inter-

est rate risk of the Company, expressed as a percentage

change in net interest income over a two-year time horizon

due to changes in interest rates, at December 31, 2006

and December 31, 2005, is as follows:

+ 200 + 100 - 100 - 200
Basis Basis Basis Basis
Points Points Points Points

Percentage change in net interest 
income due to an immediate 200 
basis point shift in the yield curve:

December 31, 2006 4.6% 1.7% (2.0)% (7.2)%
December 31, 2005 1.4% 1.1% (3.9)% (8.7)%

These results are based solely on an instantaneous per-

manent parallel shift in the yield curve and do not reflect

the net interest income sensitivity that may arise from

other factors, such as changes in the shape of the yield

curve or the change in spread between key market rates.

The above results are conservative estimates due to the

fact that no management actions to mitigate potential

changes in net interest income are included in this simu-

lation process.  These management actions could

include, but would not be limited to, delaying a change in

deposit rates, extending the maturities of liabilities, the

use of derivative financial instruments, changing the pric-

ing characteristics of loans or modifying the growth rate

of certain types of assets or liabilities.

The Company’s business strategy provides a solid base

on which to grow the deposit and loan portfolios. This

growth in the balance sheet has helped fuel earnings

growth despite low net interest margins.  The Company

also mitigates the net interest margin pressure by realiz-

ing mortgage banking fees and by engaging in covered

call option transactions which in effect compensate for

reduced levels of net interest income.  Management

actively monitors the relationships between growth, net

interest income and other income to provide for earnings

growth in a challenging interest rate environment.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company and the Banks are subject to various reg-

ulatory capital requirements established by the federal

banking agencies that take into account risk attributable

to balance sheet and off-balance sheet activities.  Failure

to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain

mandatory - and possibly discretionary - actions by regu-

lators, that if undertaken could have a direct material

effect on the Company’s financial statements. Under cap-

ital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework

for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Banks

must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quanti-

tative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities, and

certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regu-

latory accounting practices.  The Federal Reserve’s capi-

tal guidelines require bank holding companies to main-

tain a minimum ratio of qualifying total capital to

risk-weighted assets of 8.0%, of which at least 4.0% must

be in the form of Tier 1 Capital.  The Federal Reserve also

requires a minimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 Capital to

total assets of 3.0% for strong bank holding companies

(those rated a composite “1” under the Federal Reserve’s

rating system).  For all other bank holding companies, the

minimum ratio of Tier 1 Capital to total assets is 4.0%.  In

addition the Federal Reserve continues to consider the

Tier 1 leverage ratio in evaluating proposals for expan-

sion or new activities.  The following table summarizes

the capital guidelines for bank holding companies, as

well as the Company’s capital ratios as of December 31,

2006 and December 31, 2005.

Wintrust’s Wintrust’s
Well Ratios at Ratios at

Minimum Capitalized Year-end Year-end
Ratios Ratios 2006 2005

Tier 1 Leverage Ratio 4.0% 5.0% 8.2% 8.3%
Tier 1 Capital 

to Risk-Weighted Assets 4.0% 6.0% 9.8% 10.3%
Total Capital 

to Risk-Weighted Assets 8.0% 10.0% 11.3% 11.9%
Total average equity to total 

average assets N/A N/A 7.9% 8.0%

As reflected in the table, each of the Company’s capital

ratios at December 31, 2006 exceeded the Well-Capital-

ized ratios established by the Federal Reserve.  Refer to

Note 19 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for fur-

ther information on the capital positions of the Banks.

The Company’s principal sources of funds at the holding

company level are dividends from its subsidiaries, bor-

rowings on its revolving credit line with an unaffiliated

bank, proceeds from the issuance of subordinated debt

and trust preferred securities offerings and additional

equity offerings.  Refer to Notes 11, 13, 15 and 23 of the

Consolidated Financial Statements for further informa-

tion on the Company’s notes payable, subordinated

note, Trust Preferred Securities offerings and sharehold-

ers’ equity, respectively.  The Company increased its

regulatory capital by $120.2 million in 2006 and $113.0

million in 2005.  Management is committed to maintain-

ing the Company’s capital levels above the “Well-Capi-

talized” levels established by the Federal Reserve for

bank holding companies. 
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In December 2004, the Company completed an under-

written public offering of 1.2 million shares of its common

stock at $59.50 per share.  In connection with the public

offering, the Company entered into a forward sale agree-

ment with RBC relating to 1.2 million shares of our com-

mon stock.  The Company’s objective with the use of the

forward sale agreement was to efficiently provide funding

for the acquisitions of Antioch and First Northwest and for

general corporate purposes.  The forward sale agree-

ment allowed the Company to deliver common stock and

receive cash at the Company’s election, to the extent pro-

vided by the forward sale agreement.  Management

believes this flexibility allowed a more timely and efficient

use of capital resources.  In March 2005, the Company

issued 1.0 million shares of common stock in partial set-

tlement of the forward sale agreement and received net

proceeds of approximately $55.8 million.  In May 2006, in

conjunction with the completion of the acquisition of

Hinsbrook Bancshares, Inc., the forward sale agreement

was fully settled with the Company issuing 200,000

shares of common stock and receiving net proceeds of

$11.6 million.  See Note 23 of the Consolidated Financial

Statements for further information.

Banking laws impose restrictions upon the amount of div-

idends that can be paid to the holding company by the

Banks.  Based on these laws, the Banks could, subject to

minimum capital requirements, declare dividends to the

Company without obtaining regulatory approval in an

amount not exceeding (a) undivided profits, and (b) the

amount of net income reduced by dividends paid for the

current and prior two years.  In addition, the payment of

dividends may be restricted under certain financial

covenants in the Company’s revolving credit line agree-

ment.  At January 1, 2007, subject to minimum capital

requirements at the Banks, approximately $53.0 million

was available for dividends from the Banks without prior

regulatory approval.  However, since the Banks are

required to maintain their capital at the well-capitalized

level (due to the Company being approved as a financial

holding company), funds otherwise available as divi-

dends from the Banks are limited to the amount that

would not reduce any of the Banks’ capital ratios below

the well-capitalized level.  At January 1, 2007, approxi-

mately $24.7 million was available as dividends from the

Banks without compromising the Banks’ well-capitalized

positions.  During 2006, 2005 and 2004 the subsidiaries

paid dividends to Wintrust totaling $183.6 million, $45.1

million and $25.5 million, respectively.  

The Company declared its first semi-annual cash dividend

on its common stock in 2000.  A summary of the Com-

pany’s cash dividends on common stock is as follows:

Record Payable Cash Dividend
Date Date per share

February 10, 2000 February 24, 2000 $0.0333
August 10, 2000 August 24, 2000 0.0333
February 8, 2001 February 22, 2001 0.0467
August 9, 2001 August 23, 2001 0.0467
February 5, 2002 February 19, 2002 0.0600
August 6, 2002 August 20, 2002 0.0600
February 6, 2003 February 20, 2003 0.0800
August 6, 2003 August 20, 2003 0.0800
February 5, 2004 February 19, 2004 0.1000
August 10, 2004 August 24, 2004 0.1000
February 8, 2005 February 22, 2005 0.1200
August 9, 2005 August 23, 2005 0.1200
February 9, 2006 February 23, 2006 0.1400
August 10, 2006 August 24, 2006 0.1400
February 8, 2007 February 22, 2007 0.1600

The dividend payout ratio was 10.9% in 2006, 8.7% in

2005 and 8.5% in 2004.  The Company continues to tar-

get an earnings retention ratio of approximately 90% to

support continued growth.  The dividends paid in 2006

represented a 17% increase over the dividends paid in

2005.  Along those same lines, the semi-annual dividend

declared in January 2007 represents (on an annualized

basis) a 14% increase over 2006. 

In July 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved

the repurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of its outstand-

ing common stock over the next 18 months.  This repur-

chase plan replaces the previous share repurchase plan

that was announced in January 2000.  During 2006, the

Company repurchased 344,089 shares of its common

stock under this new plan for approximately $16.3 mil-

lion, representing an average price per share of $47.50. 

Liquidity management at the Banks involves planning to

meet anticipated funding needs at a reasonable cost.

Liquidity management is guided by policies, formulated

and monitored by the Company’s senior management

and each Bank’s asset/liability committee, which take into

account the marketability of assets, the sources and sta-

bility of funding and the level of unfunded commitments.

The Banks’ principal sources of funds are deposits, short-

term borrowings and capital contributions from the hold-
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ing company.  In addition, the Banks are eligible to bor-

row under Federal Home Loan Bank advances, another

source of liquidity.

Core deposits are the most stable source of liquidity for

community banks due to the nature of long-term relation-

ships generally established with depositors and the secu-

rity of deposit insurance provided by the FDIC.  Core

deposits are generally defined in the industry as total

deposits less time deposits with balances greater than

$100,000.  Approximately 55% of the Company’s total

assets were funded by core deposits at the end of 2006

compared to 56% at the end of 2005.  The remaining

assets were funded by other funding sources such as

time deposits with balances in excess of $100,000, bor-

rowed funds and equity capital.  Due to the affluent

nature of many of the communities that the Company

serves, management believes that many of its time

deposits with balances in excess of $100,000 are also a

stable source of funds. 

Liquid assets refer to money market assets such as Fed-

eral funds sold and interest bearing deposits with banks,

as well as available-for-sale debt securities.  Net liquid

assets represent the sum of the liquid asset categories

less the amount of assets pledged to secure public

funds.  At December 31, 2006, net liquid assets totaled

approximately $346.7 million, compared to approxi-

mately $418.1 million at December 31, 2005.

The Banks routinely accept deposits from a variety of

municipal entities.  Typically, these municipal entities

require that banks pledge marketable securities to col-

lateralize these public deposits.  At December 31, 2006

and 2005, the Banks had approximately $910.1 million

and $774.5 million, respectively, of securities collateral-

izing such public deposits and other short-term borrow-

ings. Deposits requiring pledged assets are not consid-

ered to be core deposits, and the assets that are

pledged as collateral for these deposits are not deemed

to be liquid assets.

The Company is not aware of any known trends, com-

mitments, events, regulatory recommendations or uncer-

tainties that would have any adverse effect on the Com-

pany’s capital resources, operations or liquidity.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has various financial obligations, including contractual obligations and commitments, that may require

future cash payments.

Contractual Obligations. The following table presents, as of December 31, 2006, significant fixed and determinable con-

tractual obligations to third parties by payment date.  Further discussion of the nature of each obligation is included in

the referenced note to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Payments Due In 
Note One Year 1 - 3 3 - 5 Over 

Reference or Less Years Years 5 Years Total 
(in thousands)

Deposits (1) 10 $ 7,010,782  829,055  263,894 2,676 8,106,407
Notes payable 11 11,750  - - 1,000 12,750 
FHLB advances (1) (2) 12 28,000   17,000  70,500   210,000 325,500 
Subordinated notes 13 -    -   -  75,000 75,000  
Other borrowings 14 160,072 - 2,000    -    162,072  
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities (1) 15 -   -   -    249,493 249,493  
Operating leases 16 5,009  5,764 4,734  18,824  34,331 
Purchase obligations(3) 37,347 17,014 21,165 233 75,759

(1) Excludes basis adjustment for purchase accounting valuations.
(2)    Certain advances provide the FHLB with one-time call dates which are not reflected in the above table.
(3)  Purchase obligations presented above primarily relate to certain contractual obligations for services related to the construction of facilities,

data processing and the outsourcing of certain operational activities.   

The Company also enters into derivative contracts under which the Company is required to either receive cash from or

pay cash to counterparties depending on changes in interest rates.  Derivative contracts are carried at fair value repre-

senting the net present value of expected future cash receipts or payments based on market rates as of the balance sheet

date.  Because the derivative liabilities recorded on the balance sheet at December 31, 2006 do not represent the

amounts that may ultimately be paid under these contracts, these liabilities are not included in the table of contractual

obligations presented above.

Commitments. The following table presents a summary of the amounts and expected maturities of significant commit-

ments as of December 31, 2006.  Further information on these commitments is included in Note 20 of the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

One Year 1 - 3 3 - 5 Over 
or Less Years Years 5 Years Total 

(in thousands)
Commitment type:

Commercial, commercial real estate and construction $ 1,220,274   378,949 52,819 10,618 1,662,660
Residential real estate 117,795 - - - 117,795
Revolving home equity lines of credit 846,821  -    -    - 846,821
Letters of credit 96,246  59,030  19,810  175 175,261
Commitments to sell mortgage loans 262,712 - - - 262,712
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Contingent Liabilities. In connection with the sale of premium finance receivables, the Company continues to service the

receivables and maintains a recourse obligation to the purchasers should the underlying borrowers default on their obli-

gations.  The estimated recourse obligation is taken into account in recording the sale, effectively reducing the gain rec-

ognized.  As of December 31, 2006, outstanding premium finance receivables sold to and serviced for third parties for

which the Company has a recourse obligation were $58.3 million and the recourse obligation was $129,000 and included

in other liabilities on the balance sheet. The Company has historically sold premium finance receivables to an unrelated

third party, however in the third and fourth quarters of 2006, the Company did not sell premium finance receivables to

an unrelated third party.  Please refer to the Consolidated Results of Operations section of this report for further 

discussion of these loan sales.     

The Company enters into residential mortgage loan sale agreements with investors in the normal course of business.

These agreements usually require certain representations concerning credit information, loan documentation, collateral

and insurability.  On occasion, investors have requested the Company to indemnify them against losses on certain loans

or to repurchase loans which the investors believe do not comply with applicable representations.  Upon completion of

its own investigation, the Company generally repurchases or provides indemnification on certain loans.  Indemnification

requests are generally received within two years subsequent to sale. Management maintains a liability for estimated

losses on loans expected to be repurchased or on which indemnification is expected to be provided and regularly eval-

uates the adequacy of this recourse liability based on trends in repurchase and indemnification requests, actual loss

experience, known and inherent risks in the loans, and current economic conditions.  At December 31, 2006 the liability

for estimated losses on repurchase and indemnification was $322,000 and was included in other liabilities on the 

balance sheet.
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CREDIT RISK AND ASSET QUALITY

Allowance for Credit Losses

The following table summarizes the activity in the allowance for credit losses during the last five years (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of year $ 40,283 34,227     25,541 18,390 13,686
Provision for credit losses 7,057 6,676 6,298 10,999 10,321
Alllowance acquired in business combinations 3,852 4,792 5,110 1,602 -
Reclassification to allowance for lending-related

commmitments 92 (491) - - -

Charge-offs:
Commercial and commercial real estate loans 4,534 3,252 2,356 2,382 1,677
Home equity loans 97 88 - 358 -
Residential real estate loans 81 198 - - 3
Consumer and other loans 371 363 204 222 294
Premium finance receivables 2,760 2,067 1,852 2,558 3,680
Indirect consumer loans 584 555 425 937 925
Tricom finance receivables 50 - 33 - 10

Total charge-offs 8,477 6,523 4,870 6,457 6,589

Recoveries:
Commercial and commercial real estate loans 2,299 527 1,148 339 314
Home equity loans 31 - 6 39 -
Residential real estate loans 2 - - 13 -
Consumer and other loans 148 243 104 40 26
Premium finance receivables 567 677 738 399 456
Indirect consumer loans 191 155 152 173 150
Tricom finance receivables 10 - - 4 26

Total recoveries 3,248 1,602 2,148 1,007 972
Net charge-offs (5,229) (4,921) (2,722) (5,450) (5,617)
Allowance for loan losses at end of year $ 46,055 40,283 34,227 25,541 18,390
Allowance for lending-related commitments

at end of year 457 491 - - -
Allowance for credit losses at end of year $ 46,512 40,774 34,227 25,541 18,390

Net charge-offs (recoveries) by category
as a peercentage of its own respective category’s average:

Commercial and commercial real estate loans 0.06% 0.09% 0.06% 0.14% 0.12%
Home equity loans 0.01 0.01 - 0.08 -
Residential real estate loans 0.02 0.05 - (0.01) -
Consumer and other loans 0.23 0.12 0.13 0.34 0.44
Premium finance receivables 0.22 0.16 0.14 0.34 0.70
Indirect consumer loans 0.17 0.20 0.15 0.45 0.42
Tricom finance receivables 0.10 - 0.12 (0.02) (0.08)

Total loans, net of unearned income 0.09% 0.10% 0.07% 0.18% 0.24%

Net charge-offs as a percentage of the provision
for credit losses 74.10% 73.71% 43.22% 49.55% 54.42%

Year-end total looans $ 6,496,480 5,213,871 4,348,346 3,297,794 2,556,086
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage

of loans at end of year 0.71% 0.77% 0.79% 0.77% 0.72%
Allowancce for credit losses as a percentage

of loans at end of year 0.72% 0.78% 0.79% 0.77% 0.72%
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Management believes that the loan portfolio is well diver-

sified and well secured, without undue concentration in

any specific risk area.  Loan quality is continually moni-

tored by management and is reviewed by the Banks’

Boards of Directors and their Credit Committees on a

monthly basis.  Independent external reviews of the loan

portfolio are provided by the examinations conducted by

regulatory authorities and an independent loan review

performed by an entity engaged by the Board of Direc-

tors.  The amount of additions to the allowance for loan

losses, which is charged to earnings through the provi-

sion for credit losses, is determined based on manage-

ment’s assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for

loan losses.  Management evaluates on a monthly basis

a variety of factors, including actual charge-offs during the

year, historical loss experience, delinquent and other

potential problem loans, and economic conditions and

trends in the market area in assessing the adequacy of

the allowance for loan losses.

The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total

loans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 0.71% and

0.77%, respectively.  As a percent of average total loans,

total net charge-offs for 2006 and 2005 were 0.09% and

0.10%, respectively.  While management believes that the

allowance for loan losses is adequate to provide for

losses inherent in the portfolio, there can be no assur-

ances that future losses will not exceed the amounts pro-

vided for, thereby affecting future earnings.  In 2006, the

Company reclassified $92,000 to the allowance for loan

losses from a separate liability account which represents

the portion of the allowance for credit losses that was

associated with lending-related commitments, specifi-

cally unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit.  In

2005, the Company reclassifed $491,000 from its

allowance for loan losses to the allowance for lending-

related commitments.  The allowance for loan losses is a

reserve against loan amounts that are actually funded

and outstanding while the allowance for lending-related

commitments relates to certain amounts that the Com-

pany is committed to lend but for which funds have not

yet been disbursed.  The allowance for credit losses is

comprised of the allowance for loan losses and the

allowance for lending-related commitments.  In future

periods, the provision for credit losses may contain both

a component related to funded loans (provision for loan

losses) and a component related to lending-related com-

mitments (provision for unfunded loan commitments and

letters of credit).    

The Company allocates allowance to specific loan port-

folio groups and maintains its allowance for loan losses

at a level believed adequate by management to absorb

probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio and is

based on the size and current risk characteristics of the

loan portfolio, an assessment of internal problem loan

identification system (“Problem Loan Report”) loans and

actual loss experience, changes in the composition of the

loan portfolio, historical loss experience, changes in lend-

ing policies and procedures, including underwriting stan-

dards and collections, charge-off, and recovery practices,

changes in the experience, ability and depth of lending

management and staff, changes in national and local eco-

nomic and business conditions and developments,

including the condition of various market segments and

changes in the volume and severity of past due and clas-

sified loans and trends in the volume of non-accrual

loans, troubled debt restructurings and other loan modifi-

cations.  The allowance for loan losses also includes an

element for estimated probable but undetected losses

and for imprecision in the credit risk models used to cal-

culate the allowance.  The Company reviews Problem

Loan Report loans on a case-by-case basis to allocate a

specific dollar amount of reserves, whereas all other

loans are reserved for based on assigned reserve per-

centages evaluated by loan groupings.  The loan group-

ings utilized by the Company are commercial and com-

mercial real estate, residential real estate, home equity,

premium finance receivables, indirect consumer, Tricom

finance receivables and consumer.  Determination of the

allowance is inherently subjective as it requires signifi-

cant estimates, including the amounts and timing of

expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated

losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on histor-

ical loss experience, and consideration of current envi-

ronmental factors and economic trends, all of which may

be susceptible to significant change.  The allowance for

lending-related commitments is computed using a

methodology similar to that used to determine the

allowance for loan losses.  Loan losses are charged off

against the allowance, while recoveries are credited to

the allowance.  A provision for credit losses is charged to

operations based on management’s periodic evaluation

of the factors previously mentioned, as well as other per-

tinent factors.  Evaluations are conducted at least quar-

terly and more frequently if deemed necessary.    

The allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2006,

increased $5.8 million to $46.1 million from December

31, 2005, primarily due to $3.9 from an acquired institu-

tion coupled with  internal growth, primarily in the com-

mercial and commercial real estate portfolio.  The com-

mercial and commercial real estate portfolios and the

premium finance portfolio have traditionally experienced

the highest level of charge-offs by the Company, along

with the losses related to the indirect consumer portfolio.
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Commercial and commercial real estate loans represent the largest loan category in the Company’s loan portfolio,

accounting for 63% of total loans at December 31, 2006.  Net charge-offs in this category totaled $2.2 million, or 0.06% of

average loans in this category in 2006, and $2.7 million, or 0.09% of average loans in this category in 2005.

Premium finance receivable net charge-offs for the year ended December 31, 2006 totaled $2.2 million as compared to

$1.4 million in 2005.  Net charge-offs were 0.22% of average premium finance receivables in 2006 versus 0.16% in 2005.

As noted in the next section of this report, non-performing premium finance receivables as a percent of total premium

finance receivables were 1.07% at December 31, 2006 and 1.40% at December 31, 2005. Indirect consumer loan net

charge-offs decreased to $393,000 in 2006 compared to $400,000 in 2005.  Net charge-offs as a percentage of average

indirect consumer loans were 0.17% in 2006 and 0.20% in 2005. 

Past Due Loans and Non-performing Assets

The following table classifies the Company’s non-performing assets as of December 31 for each of last five years.  The

information in the table should be read in conjunction with the detailed discussion following the table (dollars in 

thousands):

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Loans past due greater than 90 days and still accruing:

Residential real estate and home equity $ 308 159 - - 32
Commercial, consumer and other 8,454 1,898 715 1,024 3,047
Premium finance receivables 4,306 5,211 3,869 3,439 2,198
Indirect consumer loans 297 228 280 313 423
Tricom finance receivables - - - - -

Total loans past due greater than 90 days 
and still accruing 13,365 7,496 4,864 4,776 5,700

Non-accrual loans:
Residential real estate and home equity 1,738 457 2,660 3,217 711
Commercial, consumer and other 12,959 11,712 3,550 9,646 1,132
Premium finance receivables 8,112 6,189 7,396 5,994 4,725
Indirect consumer loans 376 335 118 107 254
Tricom finance receivables 324 - - - 20

Total non-accrual 23,509 18,693 13,724 18,964 6,842

Total non-performing loans:
Residential real estate and home equity 2,046 616 2,660 3,217 743
Commercial, consumer and other 21,413 13,610 4,265 10,670 4,179
Premium finance receivables 12,418 11,400 11,265 9,433 6,923
Indirect consumer loans 673 563 398 420 677
Tricom finance receivables 324 - - - 20

Total non-performing loans 36,874 26,189 18,588 23,740 12,542
Other real estate owned 572 1,400 - 368 76
Total non-performing assets $ 37,446 27,589 18,588 24,108 12,618

Total non-performing loans by category
as a percent of itts own respective category’s
year end balance:

Residential real estate and home equity 0.23% 0.07% 0.32% 0.48% 0.14%
Commercial, consumer and other 0.51 0.42 0.17 0.63 0.30
Premium finance receivables 1.07 1.40 1.46 1.26 1.50
Indirect consumer loans 0.27 0.28 0.23 0.24 0.38
Tricom finance receivables 0.74 - - - 0.10

Total non-performing loans 0.57% 0.50% 0.43% 0.72% 0.49%

Total non-performing assets as a
percentage of total assets 0.39% 0.34% 0.29% 0.51% 0.34%

Allowance for loan losses as a
percentage of non-performing loans 123.90% 153.82% 184.13% 107.59% 146.63%
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Non-performing Residential Real Estate and 
Home Equity

The non-performing residential real estate and home

equity loans totaled $2.0 million at December 31, 2006.

The balance increased $1.4 million from December 31,

2005.  Each non-performing credit is well secured and in

the process of collection.  Management believes that the

current reserves against these credits are appropriate to

cover any potential losses.

Non-performing Commercial, Consumer and Other

The commercial, consumer and other non-performing

loan category totaled $21.4 million as of December 31,

2006.  The balance in this category increased $7.8 mil-

lion from December 31, 2005.  Management believes that

the current reserves against these credits are appropriate

to cover any potential losses.

Non-performing Premium Finance Receivables

The table below presents the level of non-performing pre-

mium finance receivables as of December 31, 2006 and

2005, and the amount of net charge-offs for the years

then ended.

2006 2005
Non-performing premium 

finance receivables $ 12,418 $   11,400
- as a percent of premium 

finance receivables outstanding 1.07% 1.40%

Net charge-offs of premium 
finance receivables $ 2,193 $     1,390
- annualized as a percent of average 

premium finance receivables 0.22% 0.16%

The level of non-performing premium finance receivables

as a percent of total premium finance receivables is

down from the prior year-end level.  As noted below, fluc-

tuations in this category may occur due to timing and

nature of account collections from insurance carriers.

Management is comfortable with administering the col-

lections at this level of non-performing premium finance

receivables and expects that such ratios will remain at rel-

atively low levels.

The ratio of non-performing premium finance receivables

fluctuates throughout the year due to the nature and tim-

ing of canceled account collections from insurance carri-

ers.  Due to the nature of collateral for premium finance

receivables, it customarily takes 60-150 days to convert

the collateral into cash collections.  Accordingly, the level

of non-performing premium finance receivables is not

necessarily indicative of the loss inherent in the portfolio.

In the event of default, Wintrust has the power to cancel

the insurance policy and collect the unearned portion of

the premium from the insurance carrier.  In the event of

cancellation, the cash returned in payment of the

unearned premium by the insurer should generally be

sufficient to cover the receivable balance, the interest and

other charges due.  Due to notification requirements and

processing time by most insurance carriers, many receiv-

ables will become delinquent beyond 90 days while the

insurer is processing the return of the unearned premium.

Interest continues to accrue until maturity as the

unearned premium is ordinarily sufficient to pay-off the

outstanding balance and contractual interest due. 

Non-performing Indirect Consumer Loans

Total non-performing indirect consumer loans were

$673,000 at December 31, 2006, compared to $563,000

at December 31, 2005.  The ratio of these non-perform-

ing loans to total indirect consumer loans was 0.27% at

December 31, 2006 compared to 0.28% at December 31,

2005.  As noted in the Allowance for Credit Losses table,

net charge-offs as a percent of total indirect consumer

loans were 0.17% for the year ended December 31, 2006

compared to 0.20% in the same period in 2005.  The level

of nonperforming and net charge-offs of indirect con-

sumer loans continues to be below standard industry

ratios for this type of lending.

Potential Problem Loans

Management believes that any loan where there are seri-

ous doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to comply

with the present loan repayment terms should be identified

as a non-performing loan and should be included in the

disclosure of “Past Due Loans and Non-performing Assets”.

Accordingly, at the periods presented in this report, the

Company has no potential problem loans as defined by

Securities and Exchange Commission regulations.

Credit Quality Review Procedures

The Company utilizes a loan rating system to assign risk

to loans and utilizes that risk rating system to assist in

identifying Problem Loan Report loans as a means of

reporting non-performing and potential problem loans. At

each scheduled meeting of the Boards of Directors of the

Banks and the Wintrust Risk Management Committee, a

Problem Loan Report is presented, showing all loans that

are non-performing and loans that may warrant additional

monitoring. Accordingly, in addition to those loans dis-

closed under “Past Due Loans and Non-performing

Assets,” there are certain loans in the portfolio which

management has identified, through its Problem Loan

Report, which exhibit a higher than normal credit risk.

These Problem Loan Report credits are reviewed indi-

vidually by management to determine whether any spe-
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cific reserve amount should be allocated to each respec-

tive credit.  However, these loans are still performing and,

accordingly, are not included in non-performing loans.

Management’s philosophy is to be proactive and conser-

vative in assigning risk ratings to loans and identifying

loans to be on the Problem Loan Report. The principal

amount of loans on the Company’s Problem Loan Report

(exclusive of those loans reported as non-performing) as

of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, was

approximately $84.7 million and $75.9 million, respec-

tively.  The year-over-year increase is primarily a result

of the acquisition of Hinsbrook Bank.  We believe these

loans are performing and, accordingly, do not cause

management to have serious doubts as to the ability of

such borrowers to comply with the present loan 

repayment terms.

Loan Concentrations

Loan concentrations are considered to exist when there

are amounts loaned to multiple borrowers engaged in

similar activities which would cause them to be similarly

impacted by economic or other conditions.  The Com-

pany had no concentrations of loans exceeding 10% of

total loans at December 31, 2006, except for loans

included in the premium finance operating segment. 

EFFECTS OF INFLATION

A banking organization's assets and liabilities are prima-

rily monetary.  Changes in the rate of inflation do not have

as great an impact on the financial condition of a bank 

as do changes in interest rates.  Moreover, interest rates

do not necessarily change at the same percentage as

does inflation.  Accordingly, changes in inflation are not

expected to have a material impact on the Company.  An

analysis of the Company's asset and liability structure

provides the best indication of how the organization is

positioned to respond to changing interest rates.  See the

"Asset-Liability Management" section of this report for

additional information
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statements

within the meaning of federal securities laws. Forward-

looking information in this document can be identified

through the use of words such as “may,” “will,” “intend,”

“plan,” “project,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “should,” “would,”

“believe,” “estimate,” “contemplate,” “possible,” and

“point.” The forward-looking information is premised on

many factors, some of which are outlined below. The

Company intends such forward-looking statements to be

covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking

statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995, and is including this statement for

purposes of invoking these safe harbor provisions. Such

forward-looking statements may be deemed to include,

among other things, statements relating to the Company’s

projected growth, anticipated improvements in earnings,

earnings per share and other financial performance

measures, and management’s long-term performance

goals, as well as statements relating to the anticipated

effects on financial results of condition from expected

developments or events, the Company’s business and

growth strategies, including anticipated internal growth,

plans to form additional de novo banks and to open new

branch offices, and to pursue additional potential devel-

opment or acquisitions of banks, wealth management

entities or specialty finance businesses. Actual results

could differ materially from those addressed in the for-

ward-looking statements as a result of numerous factors,

including the following:

• Competitive pressures in the financial services

business which may affect the pricing of the Com-

pany’s loan and deposit products as well as its

services (including wealth management services).

• Changes in the interest rate environment, which

may influence, among other things, the growth

of loans and deposits, the quality of the Com-

pany’s loan portfolio, the pricing of loans and

deposits and interest income

• The extent of defaults and losses on our loan portfolio.

• Unexpected difficulties or unanticipated develop-

ments related to the Company’s strategy of de

novo bank formations and openings. De novo

banks typically require 13 to 24 months of oper-

ations before becoming profitable, due to the

impact of organizational and overhead

expenses, the startup phase of generating

deposits and the time lag typically involved in

redeploying deposits into attractively priced

loans and other higher yielding earning assets.

• The ability of the Company to obtain liquidity and

income from the sale of premium finance receiv-

ables in the future and the unique collection and 

delinquency risks associated with such loans.

• Failure to identify and complete acquisitions in

the future or unexpected difficulties or unantici-

pated developments related to the integration of

acquired entities with the Company.

• Legislative or regulatory changes or actions, or

significant litigation involving the Company.

• Changes in general economic conditions in the

markets in which the Company operates.

• The ability of the Company to receive dividends 

from its subsidiaries.

• The loss of customers as a result of technological

changes allowing consumers to complete their

financial transactions without the use of a bank.

• The ability of the Company to attract and retain

senior management experienced in the banking

and financial services industries.

Therefore, there can be no assurances that future actual

results will correspond to these forward-looking state-

ments. The reader is cautioned not to place undue

reliance on any forward looking statement made by or on

behalf of Wintrust. Any such statement speaks only as of

the date the statement was made or as of such date that

may be referenced within the statement. Wintrust does

not undertake any obligation to update or revise any for-

ward-looking statements, whether as a result of new

information, future events or otherwise. Persons are

advised, however, to consult any further disclosures

management makes on related subjects in its reports

filed with the SEC and in its press releases.
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Corporate Locations

Wintrust Financial Corporation

www.wintrust.com

727 North Bank Lane
Lake Forest, IL 60045
847-615-4096

Lake Forest Bank & Trust Company

www.lakeforestbank.com

Lake Forest Locations

Main Bank
727 North Bank Lane
Lake Forest, IL 60045
847-234-2882

Main Drive-thru
780 North Bank Lane
Lake Forest, IL 60045
847-615-4022

West Lake Forest 
810 South Waukegan Avenue
Lake Forest, IL 60045
847-615-4080

West Lake Forest Drive-thru
911 Telegraph Road
Lake Forest, IL 60045
847-615-4098

Lake Bluff 

103 East Scranton Avenue
Lake Bluff, IL 60044
847-615-4060

Bank of Highwood – Fort Sheridan

507 Sheridan Road
Highwood, IL  60040
847-266-7600
www.bankofhwfs.com

Highland Park Bank & Trust

1949 St. Johns Avenue
Highland Park, IL  60035
847-432-9988
www.highlandparkbank.com

Highland Park Bank & Trust – Ravinia

643 Roger Williams Ave.
Highland Park, IL 60035
847-266-0300

North Chicago Community Bank

1801 Sheridan Road
North Chicago, IL  60064
847-473-3006
www.nchicagobank.com

Hinsdale Bank & Trust Company

www.hinsdalebank.com

Hinsdale Locations

Main Bank
25 East First Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521
630-323-4404

Drive-thru
130 West Chestnut
Hinsdale, IL 60521
630-655-8025

Clarendon Hills Bank

200 West Burlington Avenue
Clarendon Hills, IL 60514
630-323-1240
www.clarendonhillsbank.com

ATM Drive-thru
5 South Walker Ave
Clarendon Hills, IL 60514

The Community Bank of Western Springs

1000 Hillgrove Avenue
Western Springs, IL 60558
708-246-7100
www.communitybankws.com

Riverside Bank

17 E. Burlington
Riverside, IL 60546
708-447-3222
www.bankriverside.com

Community Bank of Downers Grove

1111 Warren Avenue
Downers Grove, IL 60515
630-968-4700

718 Ogden Avenue
Downers Grove, IL 60515
630-435-3600
www.downersgrovebank.com

Hinsbrook Bank

6262 South Route 83
Willowbrook, IL 60527
630-920-2700
www.hinsbrookbank.com

ATM Drive-thru
Route 83 at 67th Street
Darien, IL 60561

North Shore Community 
Bank & Trust Company

www.nscbank.com

Wilmette Locations

Main Bank
1145 Wilmette Avenue
Wilmette, IL 60091
847-853-1145

Drive-thru
720 12th Street
Wilmette, IL 60091

4th & Linden Walk-up
351 Linden Ave
Wilmette, IL 60091

Glencoe Locations

362 Park Avenue
Glencoe, IL 60022
847-835-1700

Drive-thru
633 Vernon Avenue
Glencoe, IL 60022

Winnetka 

576 Lincoln Avenue
Winnetka, IL 60093
847-441-2265

Skokie 

7800 Lincoln Avenue
Skokie, IL  60077
847-933-1900

Sauganash 

4343 West Peterson Avenue
Chicago, IL  60646
773-545-5700

Libertyville Bank & 
Trust Company

www.libertyvillebank.com

Libertyville Locations

Main Bank
507 North Milwaukee Avenue
Libertyville, IL 60048
847-367-6800

Drive-thru
201 Hurlburt Court
Libertyville, IL 60048
847-247-4045
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South Libertyville
1200 South Milwaukee Avenue
Libertyville, IL  60048
847-367-6800

Wauconda Community Bank

Main Bank
495 West Liberty Street
Wauconda, IL  60084
847-487-2500
www.waucondabank.com

Drive-thru
1180 Dato Lane
Wauconda, IL  60084
847-487-3770

Gurnee Community Bank

675 North O’Plaine Road
Gurnee, IL  60031
847-625-3800
www.gurneebank.com

Lake Villa Community Bank

345 South Milwaukee Avenue
Lake Villa, IL  60046
847-265-0300
www.lakevillabank.com

Mundelein Community Bank

1110 W. Maple Avenue
Mundelein, IL  60060
847-837-1110
www.mundeleinbank.com

Barrington Bank & 
Trust Company, N.A.

www.barringtonbank.com

Barrington Locations

Main Bank
201 S. Hough Street
Barrington, IL 60010
847-842-4500

Northwest Highway
233 W. Northwest Highway
Barrington, IL 60010
847-381-1715

Commercial Lending
217 S. Hough Street
Barrington, IL  60010
847-842-4500

Community Advantage

217 S. Hough Street
Barrington, IL  60010
847-842-7980
www.communityadvantage.com

Physicians Financial Care

217 S. Hough Street
Barrington, IL  60010
847-842-7980
www.physiciansfinancialcare.com

Hoffman Estates Community Bank

1375 Palatine Road
Hoffman Estates, IL   60195
847-963-9500
www.hecommunitybank.com

Palatine Bank & Trust

109 W. Slade Street
Palatine, IL 60067
847-963-0047
www.palatinebank.com

Crystal Lake Bank & 
Trust Company, N.A.

www.crystallakebank.com

Crystal Lake Locations

Main Bank
70 N. Williams Street
Crystal Lake, IL 60014
815-479-5200

Drive-thru
27 N. Main Street
Crystal Lake, IL 60014

South Crystal Lake 
1000 McHenry Avenue
Crystal Lake, IL 60014
815-479-5715

McHenry Bank & Trust

2205 N. Richmond Road
McHenry, IL  60050
815-344-6600
www.mchenrybank.com

Cary Bank & Trust

60 East Main Street
Cary, IL  60013
847-462-8881
www.carybank.com

Algonquin Bank & Trust

4049 W. Algonquin Rd.
Algonquin, IL 60102
847-669-7500
www.bankalgonquin.com

NorthAmerican Aviation Finance

27 N. Main Street
Crystal Lake, IL 60014
1-877-FLYMONEY
www.namaf.com

Northbrook Bank & Trust Company

www.northbrookbank.com

Main Bank
1100 Waukegan Road
Northbrook, IL 60062
847-418-2800

West Northbrook

875 Sanders Road
Northbrook, IL 60062
847-418-2850

Buffalo Grove Bank & Trust

200 N. Buffalo Grove Road
Buffalo Grove, IL 60089
847-634-8400
www.buffalogrovebank.com

Northview Bank & Trust

245 Waukegan Road
Northfield, IL 60093
847-446-0245
www.northview.com

Orchard Office

1751 Orchard Lane
Northfield, IL 60093
847-441-1751

Advantage National Bank

www.advantagenationalbank.com

Main Bank
75 East Turner Avenue
Elk Grove Village, IL 60007
847-364-0100

Roselle Facility

1350 West Lake Street
Roselle, IL 60172
630-529-0100
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Village Bank & Trust 

www.bankatvillage.com

Main Bank
234 West Northwest Highway
Arlington Heights, IL 60004
847-670-1000

Uptown Banking Center

150 East Rand Road
Arlington Heights, IL 60004
847-870-5000

Mid-Town Banking Center

311 South Arlington Heights Road
Arlington Heights, IL 60005
847-483-6000

Prospect Heights Banking Center

1845 East Rand Road
Arlington Heights, IL 60004
847-483-6000

Beverly Bank & Trust Company, N.A.

www.thebeverlybank.com

Main Bank
10258 South Western Avenue
Chicago, IL 60643
773-239-2265

1908 West 103rd Street
Chicago, IL 60643
773-239-2265 

Town Bank

www.townbank.us

Town Bank of Delafield 

400 Genesee Street
Delafield, WI  53018
262-646-6888

Town Bank of Madison

10 W. Mifflin Street
Madison, WI  53703
608-282-4840

Town Bank of Wales
200 West Summit Avenue
Wales, WI 53183
262-968-1740

Town Bank of Elm Grove

12960 W. Bluemound Rd
Elm Grove, WI 53122
262-789-8696

Wheaton Bank & Trust Company

www.wheatonbank.com

211 South Wheaton Avenue
Wheaton, IL 60187
630-690-1800

Glen Ellyn Bank & Trust

462 N. Park Boulevard, Suite 110
Glen Ellyn, IL 60137
630-469-4501
www.glenellynbank.com

500 Roosevelt Road
Glen Ellyn, IL 60137
630-469-3000

State Bank of The Lakes

www.thisisyourbank.com

Antioch

440 Lake Street
Antioch, IL 60002
847-395-2700

Lindenhurst

2031 Grand Avenue
Lindenhurst, IL 60046
847-356-5700

Grayslake

50 Commerce Drive
Grayslake, IL 60030
847-548-2700

Spring Grove

1906 Holian Drive
Spring Grove, IL  60081
815-675-3700

McHenry

2730 W. Route 120
McHenry, IL 60050
815-344-5100

Old Plank Trail Community Bank, N.A.

www.oldplanktrailbank.com

Frankfort

37 Old Frankfort Way
Frankfort, IL 60423
815-464-6888

Mokena

11041 Front Street
Mokena, IL 60448
708-478-4447

New Lenox

352 West Maple Street
New Lenox, IL 60451
815-485-0001

St. Charles  Bank & Trust Company

www.bankstcharles.com

311 North Second Street
St. Charles, IL 60174
630-377-9500

Geneva

2401 Kaneville Road
Geneva, IL 60134
630-845-4800

FIRST Insurance Funding Corp.

www.firstinsurancefunding.com

450 Skokie Blvd., Suite 1000
Northbrook, IL 60062
847-374-3000

Tricom, Inc. of Milwaukee

www.tricom.com

N48 W16866 Lisbon Road
Menomonee Falls, WI  53051
262-509-6200

Wintrust Information 
Technology Services Company

851 North Villa Ave.
Villa Park, IL 60181
630-516-4050
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Wayne Hummer Wealth 
Management

WWaayynnee  HHuummmmeerr  IInnvveessttmmeennttss,,  LL..LL..CC..
WWaayynnee  HHuummmmeerr  TTrruusstt  CCoommppaannyy,,  NN..AA
WWaayynnee  HHuummmmeerr  AAsssseett  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt

CCoommppaannyy

www.whummer.com

4049 West Algonquin Road
Algonquin, IL  60102
815-479-1710

440 Lake Street
Antioch, IL 60002
847-395-2700

311 South Arlington Heights Road
Arlington Heights, IL  60005
847-483-6039

201 South Hough Street
Barrington, IL 60010
847-842-4500

4343 West Peterson Avenue
Chicago, IL  60646
847-251-4385

10258 South Western Avenue
Chicago, IL 60643
773-298-6205

1908 West 103rd Street
Chicago, IL 60643
773-239-2265

1111 Warren Avenue
Downers Grove, IL 60515
630-325-6571

75 East Turner Avenue
Elk Grove Village, IL 60007
847-879-7935

50 Commerce Drive
Grayslake, IL 60030
847-838-7605/7608

675 North O'Plaine Road
Gurnee, IL 60031
847-549-1578

1949 St. Johns Avenue
Highland Park, IL 60035
847-810-5025

25 East First Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521
630-323-4404

727 North Bank Lane
Lake Forest, IL 60045
847-234-2882

810 South Waukegan Avenue
Lake Forest, IL 60045
847-615-4080

1200 South Milwaukee Avenue
Libertyville, IL 60048
847-573-1633

2205 North Richmond Road
McHenry, IL 60050
815-344-6600

352D West Maple Street
New Lenox, IL 60451
815-462-5510

1100 Waukegan Road
Northbrook, IL 60062
847-418-2813

245 Waukegan Road
Northfield, IL 60093
847-446-4378

1000 Hillgrove Avenue
Western Springs, IL 60558
708-246-0203

211 South Wheaton Avenue
Wheaton, IL 60187
630-588-4090

6262 South Route 83
Willowbrook, IL  60527
630-920-2700

720 12th Street
Wilmette, IL 60091
866-713-7227

1145 Wilmette Avenue
Wilmette, IL 60091
847-853-2093

200 East Washington Street
Appleton, WI 54911
920-734-1475

417 Genesee Street
Delafield, WI 53018
262-646-3157

WestAmerica Mortgage Company
Colorado Corporate Headquarters

5655 South Yosemite Street, Suite 460
Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111
303-771-2800

Illinois Corporate Headquarters 

1 South 660 Midwest Rd., Suite 100 
Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 60181
630-916-9299

Branch Offices

Phoenix, AZ 
Scottsdale, AZ 
Walnut Creek, CA
Fort Myers, FL 
Chicago, IL
Matteson, IL
Oakbrook Terrace, IL
Schaumburg, IL 
Tinley Park, IL
Warsaw, IN
Overland Park, KS  
Charlotte, NC
Ocean, NJ 
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Public Listing and Market Symbol

The Company’s Common Stock is traded on The Nasdaq
Stock Market® under the symbol WTFC.  The stock abbre-
viation appears as “WintrstFnl” in the Wall Street Journal.

Website Location

The Company maintains a financial relations internet web-
site at the following location:  www.wintrust.com

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

May 24, 2007
10:00 a.m. 
Michigan Shores Club
911 Michigan Avenue
Wilmette, Illinois

Form 10-K

The Form 10-K Annual Report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission will be available to holders of
record upon written request to the Secretary of the Com-
pany.  The information is also available on the Internet at
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website.  The
address for the web site is: http://www.sec.gov.

Transfer Agent

Illinois Stock Transfer Company
209 West Jackson Boulevard
Suite 903
Chicago, Illinois 60606
Telephone: 312-427-2953
Facsimile: 312-427-2879

Corporate Information


